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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Honorable County Auditor,
County Treasurer and the

Board of County Commissioners
Cuyahoga County, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the County of Cuyahoga,
Ohio (the “County”) as of December 31, 2001, and for the year then ended, listed in the foregoing table
of contents. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the
County. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based
on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component unit,
MetroHealth System. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the discretely presented
component unit, MetroHealth System, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States

of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts

and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing

the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors

provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, such general purpose financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the County at December 31,
2001, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note B to the general purpose financial statements, effective January 1, 2001, the County
implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 33, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, and Statement No. 36, Recipient Reporting for
Certain Shared Nonexchange Revenues (an Amendment to GASB Statement No. 33) and, retroactively
restated its fund balances for the change.

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu



As also discussed in Note B to the general purpose financial statements, the County’s discretely
presented component unit, MetroHealth System, changed its method of accounting for derivative
financial instruments to conform to Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended and interpreted.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements of the County, taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for the purpose of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is
not a required part of the general purpose financial statements. This schedule is the responsibility of the
management of the County. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
our audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material
respects when considered in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 7, 2002
on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in
conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

I lsTte v Tanebl coi

June 7, 2002




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

DECEMBER 31, 2001
b
(Amounts in 000's)
Proprietary
Governmental Fund Types Fund Type
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects Enterprise
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Equity in pooled cash and
INVESEMENTS........ocvcviicveiciieceeceeeeee $ 82,644 $ 79,710 $ $ 14,540 $ 8,170
Cash and investments -
segregated accounts ..............ccoceeeieenne 371
Receivables:
TAXES .o 40,664
Accounts .........cccueeee. 577 376 889
Special assessments.. 3,285
Accrued interest..........
LOANS ..o 1,000 14,013
Less: Allowance for
doubtful accounts ..........cceeeeieiieiiennene (284)
Net Receivables ............cccccoviiiiiiiiieinecin, 42,241 14,389 3,890
Due from other funds..........ccccooveeviiriineen. 88,485 253,210 21,897 82 42
Due from other governments.... 26,749 123,031 1,283 4,571 444
Inventory of supplies..........cccceviviiiicicnns 8
Prepaid expenses and
other assets .......coocvevvieeiiiciie e
Board designated investments
Deferred bond financing cost ...................... 38
Restricted assets -
Cash and investments.........cccccoeeeeneeee.. 37,345
Fixed assets:
Land......oooeeeeeeeeeeee e 5,802
Land improvements.... 10,647
Utility plant ..., 44,950
Buildings, structures
and improvements........ccoccevvieeiiieciieens 14,608
Furniture, fixtures and equipment... 3,228
VENICIES ... 3,432
Less: Accumulated depreciation ... (43,343)
Construction in progress ................ 7,989
Net Fixed ASSets ........ccceeeeeeviieeiicciiieeeee 47,313
Amount available for
debt Service ...
Amount to be provided for
retirement of general
long-term obligations:
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS .... $ 277,464 $ 470,340 $ 23,551 $ 19,193 $ 59,905

See notes to financial statements.




Proprietary Fiduciary

Fund Type Fund Type Account Groups
General General 2001 Totals MetroHealth 2001 Totals
Internal Fixed Long-Term Primary Government System Reporting Entity
Service Agency Assets Obligations (Memorandum Only) (Component Unit) (Memorandum Only)

$ 56,840 $ 156,762 $ $ $ 398,666 $ $ 398,666
39,996 40,367 8,596 48,963

1,401,368 1,442,032 1,442,032

18 1,860 52,455 54,315

3,285 3,285

4614 4,614 4,614

15,013 15,013

(284) (7,286) (7,570)

18 1,405,982 1,466,520 45,169 1,511,689

9,140 4,773 377,629 377,629

465 156,543 156,543

45 53 4,648 4,701

31,219 31,219

125,800 125,800

38 5,191 5,229

37,345 146,259 183,604

33,472 39,274 8,954 48,228

2,888 13,535 8,177 21,712

44,950 44,950

444,904 459,512 369,451 828,963

25,237 19,400 47,865 178,363 226,228
4,403 12,798 20,633 7,068 27,701
(22,360) (65,703) (361,235) (426,938)
62,417 70,406 6,270 76,676

7,280 575,879 630,472 217,048 847,520
8,261 8,261 8,261

320,232 320,232 320,232

76,917 76,917 76,917

$ 73,788 $ 1,607,513 $ 575,879 $ 405,410 $ 3,513,043 $ 583,930 $ 4,096,973

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

DECEMBER 31, 2001
b
(Amounts in 000's)
Proprietary
Governmental Fund Types Fund Type
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects Enterprise

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable ..............cccoeeiieiiienenieiene $ 6,901 68,331 $ $ 5,351 $ 788
Deferred revenue........ 50,122 243,379 22,876
Due third-party payors
Due to other funds........... 32,193 62,870 1 252
Due to other governments..... 38
Accrued wages and benefits . 6,813 9,910 22 77
Short-term notes payable....... 2,440
Other liabilities ...........ccccvenenee. 367
Payable from restricted assets ..
Loans payable ............ 6,357
Matured bonds payable. 14
Accrued self-insurance ..
Capital lease obligations....
Special termination benefits ...........ccccceeiinne 619
Other debt:

Notes payable.........cccoviiiiiiiiiiiieeee 6,105

Bonds payable.. 2,635
Total Other Debt .......cccoovievieiiiiicieeee, 8,740
TOTAL LIABILITIES ..o 96,029 384,490 22,890 7,814 17,878
FUND EQUITY AND

OTHER CREDITS
Investment in general

fixed @SSetS.....ccceeviiiiiieieeeee s
Contributed capital...........ccceeveniiiiiiniicceee, 18,524
Retained earnings:

Reserved for restricted assets

UNreserved ..........ooooevveieeecciiiiee e 23,503
Fund balance:

Reserved for restricted assets........................ 37,345

Reserved for loans receivable 1,000 14,013

Reserved for debt service ...........cccceeeevveennen. 7,600 661
Unreserved:

Designated for self-insurance............cccceeuee. 1,139

Designated for proprietary funds. 8,109

Undesignated..........cccooeniiniiniiiiiiiices 126,242 71,837 11,379
TOTAL FUND EQUITY

AND OTHER CREDITS........cccoviiiieieieeene 181,435 85,850 661 11,379 42,027
TOTAL LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY

AND OTHER CREDITS. .......cccvuimrimrnieinnnnns $ 277,464 470,340 $ 23,551 $ 19,193 $ 59,905

See notes to financial statements.




Proprietary Fiduciary

Fund Type Fund Type Account Groups

General General 2001 Totals MetroHealth 2001 Totals

Internal Fixed Long-Term Primary Government System Reporting Entity
Service Agency Assets Obligations (Memorandum Only) (Component Unit) (Memorandum Only)
$ 2,239 $ $ $ $ 83,610 $ 24,422 $ 108,032
316,377 316,377

45,404 45,404

4,147 278,166 377,629 377,629
18,590 1,285,667 1,304,295 1,304,295
3,592 22,135 43,189 42,348 85,537
2,440 2,440

43,680 15,368 59,415 10,816 70,231

554 554

3,888 10,245 10,245

14 14

29,471 29,471

437 9,611 10,048 10,552 20,600

4,709 25,915 31,243 31,243
6,105 6,105

328,493 331,128 183,829 514,957

328,493 337,233 183,829 521,062

33,714 1,607,513 405,410 2,575,738 347,396 2,923,134
575,879 575,879 575,879

18,524 18,524

5,159 5,159

40,074 63,577 231,375 294,952
37,345 37,345

15,013 15,013

8,261 8,261

1,139 1,139

8,109 8,109

209,458 209,458

40,074 575,879 937,305 236,534 1,173,839

$ 73,788 $ 1,607,513 $ 575,879 $ 405,410 $ 3,513,043 $ 583,930 $ 4,096,973

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Governmental Fund Types

Special Debt
General Revenue Service

REVENUES
Property taXES. .........coveveeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 22,646 $ 217,629 $ 19,335
Sales and use tax... 157,747
Other tax.......ccocevereieenns 13 28,898 9
State local government fund.. 41,050
Licenses and permits......... 104 985
Charges for services... 59,930 16,308
Fines and forfeitures... 5,707 413
Investment earnings ....... 34,284 1,878 1
Other intergovernmental 10,151 570,777 3,562
Miscellaneous............. 4,906 6,118
TOTAL REVENUES ......oooiiiiieeee e 336.538 843.006 22.907
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General gOVErNMENt..........cccuveiiuieieiieeiee e 51,543 17,020

Judicial.................. 215,898 62,516

Development..... 3,620 19,658

Social services...... 11,527 667,354

Health and safety.. 1,414 129,614

Public works.......... 32,656

Miscellaneous... 1,493
Capital OULIAY ......eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e
Debt service:

Principal retirement.............cccooeeiioiiiiieeeceee e 19,232

Interest.......ccccoeveeiennne 18,539
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ......cooiiiiiiiieieieie e 285.495 928.818 37.771
EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF

REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES. ... ..o 51,043 (85,812) (14,864)
OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES(USES)
Operating transfers in. 6,658 222,543 11,323
Operating transfers ou

Component unit (6,835) (18,215)

Debt retirement (10,678)

Other............. (65,100) (167,797)
Capitalized leases .. 8,520
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES).................... (75.955) 45.051 11.323
DEFICIENCY OF

REVENUES AND OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES

OVER EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER FINANCING USES......ccocovioeieeeeeieereeennn. (24,912) (40,761) (3,541)
FUND BALANCE AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR (AS RESTATED-SEE NOTE B).. 206,279 126,657 4,202
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS IN(OUT) ....cccveviieienene 68 (46)
FUND BALANCE AT

END OF YEAR $_ 181,435 $ 85,850 $ 661

See notes to financial statements.




Capital 2001 Totals
Projects (Memorandum Only)

$ $ 259,610

157,747

28,920

41,050

1,089

76,238

6,120

1,609 37,772

27,203 611,693

969 11,993

29 781 1.232 232

68,563

278,414

23,278

678,881

131,028

25,909 58,565

1,493

34,392 34,392

19,232

18,539

60.301 1.312.385

(30,520) (80,153)

8,584 249,108

(25,050)

(10,678)

(6,024) (238,921)

_— ___ 8520

2.560 (17.021)

(27,960) (97,174)

39,361 376,499

(22)
$__ 11,379 $__ 279,325




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL ANNUALLY BUDGETED GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

3 \J
(Amounts in 000's)
Annually Budgeted
General Fund Special Revenue Funds
Variance- Variance-
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES
Property taxes.........cccoveevineinicireeeeeeee $ 22419 § 22,571 $ 152 $ 219,764 $ 216687 $ (3,077)
Sales and use tax. 157,944 158,018 74
Other taX......cccceveevinerinnene 74 13 (61) 29,226 28,831 (395)
State local government fund. 40,837 41,048 211
Licenses and permits............ 150 104 (46) 1,094 985 (109)
Charges for services..... 54,129 61,163 7,034 18,777 16,406 (2,371)
Fines and forfeitures..... 6,300 6,013 (287) 463 472 9
Investment earnings ......... 25,000 28,750 3,750 4,022 3,570 (452)
Other intergovernmental... 10,565 10,343 (222) 698,184 554,223 (143,961)
Miscellaneous................... 9,354 5,286 (4,068) 6,119 3,169 (2,950)
TOTAL REVENUES ..ot 326,772 333,309 6,537 977,649 824,343 (153,306)
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government............ccoeeeveeeneenieenenes 64,501 50,689 13,812 18,281 16,596 1,685

Judicial......cccovviinnnne 225,024 212,289 12,735 45,419 38,995 6,424

Development....... 2,734 2,328 406 5,691 3,341 2,350

Social services........ 12,042 11,167 875 710,593 638,638 71,955

Health and safety.... 1,532 1,368 164 132,704 125,238 7,466

Public works............ 51,304 31,453 19,851

Miscellaneous............ccccovviieieeiciiiee e 5,785 1,438 4,347
Debt service:

Principal retirement..........cccoccoiviiiiniiiiiicies

Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. .......c.ooiiiiiiiieieeieeee 311,618 279,279 32,339 963,992 854,261 109,731
EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF

REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES.......ccooiiiiicieicieceeeeee 15,154 54,030 38,876 13,657 (29,918) (43,575)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)
Operating transfers in...........cccoeeriincicnncinnnnes 6,680 6,680 158,676 150,510 (8,166)
Operating transfers out:

Component UNit ..........ccoeeereineenicereeeeeee (6,835) (6,835) (18,215) (18,215)

Debt retirement... (10,683) (10,678) 5

OHNEF .o (37,359) (37,155) 204 (129,233) (127,994) 1,239
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES).... (54,877) (47,988) 6,889 11,228 4,301 (6,927)
EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF

REVENUES AND OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES

OVER EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER FINANCING USES........cccceceueue (39,723) 6,042 45,765 24,885 (25,617) (50,502)
FUND BALANCE AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR......ccccoiiiiiiiecine 153,003 153,003 41,568 41,568
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS IN ........ccc..... 68 68 201 201
FUND BALANCE AT

END OF YEAR $ 113,280 $ 159,113 $ 45,833 $ 66,453 $ 16,152 $ (50,301)

See notes to financial statements.
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Debt Service Fund

2001 Totals

(Memorandum Only)

Variance- Variance-
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 19,044 $ 19,223 $ 179 $ 261,227 $ 258,481 $ (2,746)
157,944 158,018 74
4 9 5 29,304 28,853 (451)
40,837 41,048 211
1,244 1,089 (155)
72,906 77,569 4,663
6,763 6,485 (278)
1 1 29,023 32,321 3,298
3,100 3,562 462 711,849 568,128 (143,721)
5,029 (5,029) 20,502 8,455 (12,047)
27,178 22,795 (4,383) 1,331,599 1,180,447 (151,152)
82,782 67,285 15,497
270,443 251,284 19,159
8,425 5,669 2,756
722,635 649,805 72,830
134,236 126,606 7,630
51,304 31,453 19,851
5,785 1,438 4,347
19,252 19,252 19,252 19,252
18,849 18,540 309 18,849 18,540 309
38,101 37,792 309 1,313,711 1,171,332 142,379
(10,923) (14,997) (4,074) 17,888 9,115 (8,773)
11,324 11,324 170,000 168,514 (1,486)
(25,050) (25,050)
(10,683) (10,678) 5
(166,592) (165,149) 1,443
11,324 11,324 (32,325) (32,363) (38)
401 (3,673) (4,074) (14,437) (23,248) (8,811)
4,044 4,044 198,615 198,615
269 269
$ 4,445 $ 371 $ (4,074) $ 184,178 $ 175,636 $ (8,542)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Proprietary Fund Types

2001 Totals

Internal Primary Government
Enterprise Service (Memorandum Only)

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for SEIVICES.........coouiiiiiiiiiiiie e $ 14,756 $ 82,014 $ 96,770
Patient service revenue-net......
Other revenue..........ccccceeveeieniennene 77 426 503
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES..........cccoviiiiieieceeeeee 14,833 82,440 97,273
OPERATING EXPENSES
PEersonal SEIVICES .........coeeueeeeeeeeeeeee e 7,213 40,782 47,995
Contractual services and claims... 1,312 10,774 12,086
CommOditieS......cccovevrrrrrrrrene 814 10,794 11,608
Depreciation.......... 2,294 2,840 5,134
Other eXpenses .........ccccceevevrvennenns 4,719 17,680 22,399
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES .......ccocoiiiiiiieeeeeeee e 16,352 82,870 99,222
OPERATING LOSS.....oiiioiieeeeeeie et (1,519) (430) (1,949)
NONOPERATING REVENUES(EXPENSES)
INVeStMENt INCOME ....ovviiiiieceee e
Interest expense........ (388) (36) (424)
GrantS ......oeeeeieiieneeseee e
Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets...........c.cceceenen. 23 (8) 15
NET NONOPERATING REVENUES(EXPENSES)............... (365) (44) (409)
LOSS BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS

AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS .......ccoiiiieiereieeeeene (1,884) (474) (2,358)
Operating transfers in..........ccocoveeiiiineieeeeee e 1,573 214 1,787
Operating transfers in - primary government .............c.ccccee..e.
Operating transfers out:

Debt retirement (646) (646)

Other.....cccoevveeenne (50) (600) (650)
Capital contributions ............cooeiiiiiiiiieeee, 5,593 5,593
NET OPERATING TRANSFERS

AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS .......c.ccoiiiireirecre e 6,470 386 6,084
NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT

OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE...........ccceouenn 4,586 (860) 3,726
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE (Note B)........cccvvvrviiiiiicnene
NET INCOME (LOSS) ...cotiiiiiiiiieieinieisteie et 4,586 (860) 3,726
DEPRECIATION ON FIXED ASSETS

ACQUIRED WITH CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL......c.cccvrreene 1,533 1,533
RETAINED EARNINGS AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR. ..ottt 17,384 40,934 58,318
RETAINED EARNINGS AT

END OF YEAR $ 23,503 $ 40,074 $ 63,577

See notes to financial statements.
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MetroHealth 2001 Totals

System Reporting Entity
(Component Unit) (Memorandum Only)
$ $ 96,770

414,580 414,580
19,655 20,158
434,235 531,508
310,712 358,707
10,302 22,388
52,304 63,912
32,300 37,434
76,652 99,051
482,270 581,492
(48,035) (49,984)
17,046 17,046
(8,079) (8,503)
5,829 5,829
- 15
14,796 14,387
(33,239) (35,597)
1,787

25,050 25,050
(646)

(650)

5,593

25,050 31,134
(8,189) (4,463)
1,232 1,232
(6,957) (3,231)
1,533

243,491 301,809
$ 236,534 $ 300,111
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from customers and others ..............c..........
Cash receipts from quasi-external
operating transactions
Other operating cash receipts
Cash payments to suppliers for
goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services ...........c.cccveenen.
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ..ot

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating transfers in from other funds ............ccccccene.
Operating transfers in from primary government.................
Operating transfers out to other funds ...
Receipts from noncapital grants..........
Proceeds from short-term interfund loan
Repayment of short-term interfund loan.............cccocccoeenene
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.......ccooevreinnne

CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Deposits in project fund...
Proceeds from notes ...
Contributed capital........
Proceeds from sale of capital assets ......
Acquisition and construction of capital assets .. .
Principal paid on capital leases............ccccevviiiiiiiiieneeneens
Interest paid on capital leases
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt .
Principal paid on notes
Principal paid on loans ....
Interest paid on loans ...
Principal paid on bonds
Interest paid on bonds

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.......ccoeoiiiieen

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received on investments
Change in investments

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES ...

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.........coooiiiiiiieenccciec i

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR......ccocciiiiiiiiiiiccccccce

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

(Amounts in 000's)
Proprietary Fund Types

2001 Totals

Internal Primary Government

Enterprise Service (Memorandum Only)
$ 15,009 $ 4,512 $ 19,521
78,973 78,973
78 78
(7,472) (35,727) (43,199)
(7,092) (40,863) (47,955)
523 6,895 7,418
1,573 214 1,787
(696) (600) (1,296)
28 1,184 1,212
(218) (218)
905 580 1,485
6,365 6,365
239 239
23 12 35
(4,647) (1,274) (5,921)
(281) (281)
(35) (35)
(6,080) (6,080)
(263) (263)
(179) (179)
(130) (130)
(165) (165)
(4,837) (1,578) (6,415)
18 18
18 18
(3,391) 5,897 2,506
11,561 50,943 62,504
$ 8,170 $ 56,840 $ 65,010

See notes to financial statements.
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MetroHealth
System
(Component Unit)

2001 Totals

Reporting Entity
(Memorandum Only)

$ 404,876

19,655

(112,904)
(310,073)

1,554

25,050

5,829

30,879

3,459

(18,991)

(6,753)
(7,274)

(29,559)

12,430
(18,942)

(6,512)
(3.638)
3,082

$ 344

$ 424,397

78,973
19,733

(156,103)
(358,028)

8,972

1,787
25,050
(1,296)
5,829
1,212

(218)
32,364

$ 65,354

(Continued)
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating 10SS ......cccoevveriiiiiiieneeiens

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING
INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY
(USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Depreciation.........cccceeeeiereeniienieneens

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable-net .................
Increase) decrease in due from other funds......................

(
(Increase) decrease in due from other governments .
(

Increase) decrease in inventory of supplies......................
(Increase) decrease in other current assets.............c.c.......
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable ...........c.cccceveenns

Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase

decrease) in other liabilities

Increase (decrease) in special termination benefits...

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS ......cccevviinne

NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

decrease) in due to other funds ...........cccccceeneee
decrease) in due to other governments .
decrease) in accrued wages and benefits .

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NO

NCASH

INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Capital contributions - fixed assets/sp

ecial assessments...

Unrealized appreciation in fair value of investments ..........

TOTAL NONCASH TRANSACTIONS

See notes to financial statements.

(Amounts in 000's)
Proprietary Fund Types
2001 Totals

Internal Primary Government

Enterprise Service (Memorandum Only)
$ (1,519) $ (430) $ (1,949)
2,294 2,840 5,134
924 (3) 921
(37) (3,119) (3,156)
(244) 4,169 3,925
4 4
(1,099) (1,060) (2,159)
21 487 508
(509) (237) (746)
73 (465) (392)
619 4,709 5,328
2,042 7,325 9,367
$__ 523 $__ 6895 $__ 1418
$ 5,357 $ $ 5,357
$ 5,357 $ 0 $ 5,357
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MetroHealth 2001 Totals

System Reporting Entity

(Component Unit) (Memorandum Only)
$ (48,035) $  (49,984)
32,300 37,434
4,921 5,842
(3,156)
3,925
4
(9,297) (9,297)
(2,159)
508
(746)
(392)
21,665 21,665
5,328
49,589 58,956
$ 1,554 $ 8,972
$ 5,357
5,346 5,346
$ 5,346 $ 10,703

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2001

NOTE A - Description of Cuyahoga County and Basis of Presentation

The County: Cuyahoga County (the County) operates as a political subdivision of the State of Ohio. The
County was formed by an act of the Ohio General Assembly in 1810. The three member Board of County
Commissioners is the legislative and executive body of the County. The County Auditor is the chief fiscal officer. In
addition, there are seven other elected administrative officials, each of whom is independent as set forth in Ohio law.
These officials are Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecuting Attorney, Recorder, Sheriff and Treasurer. There
are also thirty-four Common Pleas Court Judges, five Domestic Relations Court Judges, six Juvenile Court Judges,
two Probate Court Judges and twelve Court of Appeals Judges elected on a County-wide basis to oversee the
County's justice system.

The County applies the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14,
"The Financial Reporting Entity," under which the financial statements include all the organizations, activities,
functions and component units for which the County (Primary Government) is financially accountable. Financial
accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit's board, and either (1) the
County's ability to impose its will over the component unit, or (2) the possibility that the Component Unit will provide a
financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the County.

Discretely Presented Component Unit Disclosure: In accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, the
MetroHealth System (the Hospital or Component Unit) is included as a discretely presented Component Unit in the
County's financial statements. The Hospital provides health care and hospitalization to the general public and care
for the County’s indigents. The County appoints the majority of the Hospital's Board of Trustees. The Hospital’'s
annual operating budget and investment policy are both approved by the County. The Component Unit is included in
the County's reporting entity because of the significance of its operational and financial relationships with the County.
The financial information of the Hospital is presented in a separate column to emphasize that it is legally separate
from the government. Complete financial statements for the Hospital can be requested from the County Auditor.

Basis of Presentation: The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds or account groups,
each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a set
of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses,
as appropriate. The various funds are summarized by type in the general purpose financial statements.

Amounts in the "totals (memorandum only)" columns in the financial statements represent a summation of
the combined financial statement line items of the fund types and account groups and are presented for analytical
purposes only. The summation includes fund types and account groups that use different bases of accounting, both
restricted and unrestricted amounts. Interfund transactions have not been eliminated, and the caption "amount to be
provided" is not an asset in the usual sense. Consequently, amounts shown in the "totals (memorandum only)"
columns are not comparable to a consolidation and do not represent the total resources available or total revenues
and expenditures/expenses of the County.

The County uses the following fund types and account groups:
Governmental Funds:

General Fund: This fund accounts for the general operating revenues and expenditures of the County not
recorded elsewhere. The primary revenue sources are sales and use tax, property taxes, state local government
fund receipts, investment earnings and various service fees.

Special Revenue Funds: These funds are used to account for specific governmental revenues (other than
major capital projects) requiring separate accounting because of legal or regulatory provisions or administrative
action. Revenues are derived primarily from property taxes, other taxes, and federal and state grant programs.

Debt Service Fund: The Debt Service fund is used to account for revenues received and used to pay
principal and interest on all long-term bonded debt except those payable from Enterprise funds. Revenues are
derived primarily from property taxes.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2001

Capital Projects Fund: This fund is used to account for the acquisition or construction of capital assets
(other than those financed by Proprietary funds). Revenues and financing resources are derived from the issuance of
debt, operating transfers from the General and Special Revenue funds and capital grant programs.

Proprietary Funds:

Enterprise Funds: These funds are used to account for operations that provide services which are financed
primarily by user charges, or activities where periodic measurement of income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, management control or other purposes.

Internal Service Funds: These funds are used to account for the goods or services provided by certain
County departments to other County departments and funds on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds:

Agency Funds: These funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for other
governments, other funds and individuals. These assets include property and other taxes as well as other
intergovernmental resources which have been collected by the County and which will be distributed to other taxing
districts located within the County.

Account Groups:

General Fixed Asset Account Group: This account group is used to present the general fixed assets of the
County utilized in its general operations, exclusive of those used in Proprietary funds. General fixed assets include
land, land improvements, buildings, structures and improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment and vehicles
owned by the County.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group: This account group is used to record all long-term
obligations of the County except for those of Proprietary funds.

NOTE B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements of the County are prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America for local government units as prescribed in statements and
interpretations issued by the GASB.

Basis of Accounting: All financial transactions for Governmental and Fiduciary funds are reported on the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this accounting method, revenues are recognized when they become
susceptible to accrual, that is, when they are measurable and available to finance County operations. Revenues
accrued at the end of the year consist of reimbursements from other governments for grant expenditures and
amounts receivable from sales and use taxes collected in December and received within sixty days after year-end.
Property taxes are recorded as revenue when measurable and available within a period, which does not exceed sixty
days after year-end. Governmental fund expenditures are accrued when the related fund liability is incurred, except
interest on long-term debt, which is recorded when due. Proprietary fund financial transactions are recorded on the
accrual basis of accounting; revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized as incurred.

The County’s primary government currently follows GASB Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting” using the
guidance established in alternative no. 1, which requires the County to comply with all Financial Accounting Standard
Board (FASB) standards issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with GASB Statements. The
County’s primary government has chosen not to apply FASB Standards issued after November 30, 1989. The
County’s Component Unit has elected to apply alternative no. 2 under GASB Statement No. 20, under which it
applies all FASB statements and interpretations (even those issued after November 30, 1989), except for those that
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2001

Measurement Focus: All Governmental funds are accounted for on a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. Only current assets and current liabilities are included on the balance sheets. Operating
statements present increases and decreases in net current assets.

All Proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. All assets and
liabilities whether current or long-term are included on the balance sheets. Fund equity is separated into contributed
capital and retained earnings and operating statements present increases and decreases in total net assets.

Budgetary Accounting and Control: The County is required by state law to adopt annual budgets for the
General fund, certain Special Revenue funds and the Debt Service fund. Special Revenue funds which are budgeted
annually include Human Services, Health and Human Services Levies, Motor Vehicle Gas Tax, County Board of
Mental Retardation and Health and Community Services. The County Administrator prepares the budget, which is
approved by the Board of County Commissioners. The Office of Budget and Management prepares a separate
budgetary report. The Board of County Commissioners approves amendments to the original budget throughout the
year as allowed by state statute. During 2001, supplemental budgetary appropriations amounted to approximately
$247 million. The County maintains budgetary control within an organizational unit and fund by not permitting
expenditures/expenses and encumbrances to exceed appropriations for personnel, capital purchases and other
costs. Elected officials and managers may amend the budget without approval of the County Commissioners as long
as amendments are within legal categories. Unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end.
Encumbrances are closed to unreserved fund balance/retained earnings at year-end and are re-encumbered and
reappropriated at the start of the following year.

The accompanying budget basis financial schedules, comparing budget to actual results of operations, are
presented to demonstrate the County's compliance with legally adopted budgets and reflect only budget revisions
formally adopted by the Board of County Commissioners. The Commissioners and their staff monitor the level of
revenues and expenditures throughout the year, and policy decisions are made based on the available current
information. Formal revisions to previous budgets may not be processed if actual results are within previously
budgeted levels. Consequently, large variances may appear on the budget and actual comparisons in the
accompanying financial schedules.

The budgetary process does not include annual budgeting for certain grants (including Community
Development and Other funds) and the Capital Projects fund. Appropriations are made on a multi-year basis with the
free balance and encumbrances being reappropriated annually. The administrative control is on a grant/project basis
and, therefore, comparisons with annually appropriated funds do not provide meaningful data. The County adopts
annual budgets for Proprietary funds, however, budgetary data is not presented for Proprietary funds due to the
nature of the funds where demand for goods and services largely determines the level of revenues and expenses.
There is no legal requirement to report on compliance with such budgets.

The County's budgetary process accounts for certain transactions on a basis other than generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP basis).

The major differences between the budget basis and the GAAP basis are:

(1) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed to when susceptible to
accrual (GAAP).

(2) Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget) as opposed to when susceptible to
accrual (GAAP).

The actual results of operations compared to the revised appropriation passed by the Board of County
Commissioners for all annually budgeted Governmental funds are presented in the Combined Schedule of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis).
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2001

A reconciliation of the results of operations for the year on the GAAP basis to the budget basis follows:

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
(Amounts in 000's)

General Special Revenue Debt Service

Fund Funds Fund
GAAP DASIS...cceiiviieeeiiiie e $ (24,912) $ (40,761) $ (3,541)
Less: Multi-Year Budgeted..........ccccooviiiiiicnneenn. o _(1,058) o
GAAP basis for annually budgeted funds............... (24,912) (39,703) (3,541)
Increase (Decrease):
Accrued receivables at 12/31/01
not recognized in the 2001 budget ................ (157,475) (372,455) (23,180)
Accrued receivables at 12/31/00
recognized in the 2001 budget ..................... 158,987 415,975 21,404
Expenditures accrued as liabilities at 12/31/01
not recognized in the 2001 budget ................ 96,029 317,509 22,890
Expenditures accrued as liabilities at 12/31/00
recognized in the 2001 budget ...................... (67,245) (346,943) (21,246)
Other GAAP adjustments(1) ..., 658
BUAGEt DaSIS ......ceeveveeeeeeeeeceeee e, $ 6,042 $ (25,617) $ (3,673)

(1) Change in the amount of short-term interfund loans by the General fund, unrealized gain on
investments and net expenses for the Brownfield project.

Statement of Cash Flows: The County utilizes the direct method with respect to the combined statement of
cash flows as defined by the GASB Statement No. 9. For purposes of the combined statement of cash flows, the
Proprietary funds and Component Unit consider all highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or
less when purchased to be cash equivalents. The amount of cash and cash equivalents reported on the
accompanying combined statement of cash flows at the end of the year for the Component Unit differs from the
amount of cash and investments reported on the accompanying combined balance sheet by $280.3 million due to
certain investments that are not considered to be cash equivalents.

Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash resources of a majority of individual funds are combined to form
a pool of cash and investments, which is managed by the County Treasurer. Investments in the pooled cash and
cash equivalents accounts consist of U.S. Treasury Notes and other Federal Government securities, certificates of
deposit, commercial paper, revenue anticipation bonds and the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool.

Investments: The County accounts for its investments under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31,
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools,” which established
accounting and financial reporting standards for government investments and investment pools, requiring most
investments to be recorded at fair value and the recognition of unrealized gains and losses in the financial
statements. The County has the ability and intent to hold all investments to maturity. Interest on investments is
accrued as earned and distributed to appropriate funds utilizing a formula based on the average month-end balance
of cash and cash equivalents of appropriate funds. County policy requires interest earned on investments to be
credited to the General fund except where there is a legal requirement such as the Motor Vehicle Gas Tax Special
Revenue fund or where there are bond proceeds for capital improvements such as the Capital Projects fund.

Inventory of Supplies: Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (determined using the first-in first-out method)
or net realizable value. Costs are expensed when inventory is consumed for Proprietary funds and for the Discretely
Presented Component Unit. Costs are recognized as expenditures when inventory is purchased for Governmental
funds.

Board Designated Investments: Board designated investments are investments of the Hospital set aside by
the board of trustees for future capital improvements and for research and development.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2001

Restricted Assets: The primary government’s restricted assets are composed of the unspent proceeds of
certain borrowings that are restricted for use in specified economic development activities and capital projects, as
well as deposits and investments held at certain financial institutions throughout the County to support the County’s
Housing Enhancement Loan Program (H.E.L.P.), which allows homeowners in County communities to borrow money
from participating financial institutions to repair or remodel their homes or rental property at below market interest
rates. Included in the Discretely Presented Component Unit column are restricted assets consisting of investments
restricted by donors, assets under the control of the bond trustee that are used for payment of principal and interest
on the Hospital’s bonds when due and assets administered by a trustee for the Hospital’s self-insurance and workers’
compensation trust accounts.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation: Fixed assets are stated on the basis of historical cost or, if contributed, at
fair market value at the date received. Infrastructure assets are capitalized only if applicable to Proprietary funds.
Infrastructure assets including streets, bridges and sidewalks are not capitalized in the General Fixed Assets Account
Group. Depreciation is not provided for the General Fixed Assets Account Group. Depreciation for the Proprietary
funds and Hospital is determined by allocating the cost of fixed assets over the estimated useful lives of the assets on
a straight-line basis.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Land improvements 5 to 20 years
Utility plant 20 to 50 years
Buildings, structures and improvements 5 to 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6 to 22 years
Vehicles 4to 9 years

Capitalization of Interest: The County's policy is to capitalize interest on Proprietary fund and Discretely
Presented Component Unit construction projects until substantial completion of the project. Capitalized interest is
amortized on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset. During 2001, the County capitalized
interest amounting to $.2 million.

Compensated Absences: The County records accumulated unpaid sick, vacation and overtime pay benefits
as accrued wages and benefits payable when earned by employees. For Governmental funds, the portion of the
liability, which is not currently due and payable, is recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.
The County utilizes the termination payments method to determine the liabilities for compensated absences as
defined in GASB Board Statement No. 16.

Ohio law requires that vacation time not be accumulated for more than three years. Normally, all vacation
time is to be taken in the year available unless administrative approval for carry-over is obtained. Sick time not taken
may be accumulated until retirement. Employees with a minimum of ten years of service are paid one-fourth of
accumulated sick time at the employee’s current wage rate upon retirement up to a maximum of thirty days. Certain
agencies of the County that are not under the control of the Board of County Commissioners may have slightly
different policies for compensated absences.

Contributed Capital: Contributed capital represents Federal and State capital grants and other financing
resources provided by the County to Proprietary funds. These contributions are not subject to repayment as long as
all grant conditions are met. An amount equivalent to depreciation charges for assets acquired with the portion of
contributions that was externally restricted for capital acquisitions or construction is transferred annually to retained
earnings from contributed capital.

Net Patient Service Revenue: Net patient service revenue of the Hospital is reported at the estimated net
realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are
determined. The Hospital recorded unfavorable adjustments to Medicare and Medicaid revenue of $1.2 million in
2001 due to prior year retroactive adjustments in excess of amounts previously estimated. In addition, management
reduced net patient service revenue $12.1 million in 2001 to provide for estimated third-party settlement uncertainties.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2001

Net revenue from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 26% and 33%,
respectively, of the Hospital's net patient service revenue for the year ended December 31, 2001. Laws and
regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation. Compliance
with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation as well as significant
regulatory action including fines, penalties and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. As a result,
there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the near term.
Management believes that an adequate provision has been made in the financial statements for any adjustments that
may result from final settlements.

Nonexchange Transactions: Effective January 1, 2001, the County implemented GASB Statement No. 33,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, and Statement No. 36, Recipient Reporting for
Certain Shared Nonexchange Revenues (an amendment of GASB Statement No. 33). In general, GASB Statement
Nos. 33 and 36 establish accounting and financial reporting standards which address when to report the results of
nonexchange transactions involving financial or capital resources. In a nonexchange transaction, an entity gives (or
receives) value without directly receiving or giving equal value in return. These statements require retroactive
application and, accordingly, the County’s fund balances as of December 31, 2000 have been restated as follows:

Special Debt
General Revenue Service
Fund Funds Fund
Fund balances, as previously reported .............ccccceeveeieeneennnn. $ 200,035 $ 123,619 $ 4,010
Increases in assets resulting from implementation:
RECEIVADIES........coeeeeeeee e 15,327
Due from other funds .............. 229 2,180 192
Due from other governments 20,998 20,944 1,171
Increases in liabilities resulting from implementation:
Deferred reVENUES .........couuiiiieieeeee e (30,310) _(20,086) 1,171)
Fund balance as restated............ccoouveiveeieeieeiee e $ 206,279 $ 126,657 $ 4,202

Cash received or receivables recognized with respect to income taxes, property taxes, certain grants and
other nonexchange transactions that do not meet the revenue recognition criteria under GASB Statement Nos. 33
and 36 are recorded as deferred revenues.

GASB Statement Nos. 33 and 36 also require that the County report capital grants and other capital
contributions as revenues rather than contributed capital. Accordingly, during the year ended December 31, 2001,
the County reported $5.5 million of capital contribution revenues in its Enterprise funds rather than crediting the
amounts directly to contributed capital. These capital contribution revenues are composed of $1.6 million of special
assessments and $3.9 million of construction in progress paid for by the Capital Projects funds through the issuance
of general obligation debt and contributed to the County’s Enterprise funds when the assets were completed.

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting allows for the reservation of appropriations to provide for
purchase commitments pertaining to purchase orders, contracts and other commitments. Encumbrances are closed
to unreserved fund balance/retained earnings at year-end and are re-encumbered at the beginning of the following
year.

Interfund Transactions: During the normal course of operations, the County has numerous transactions
between funds including transfers of resources to provide services and construct assets. Interfund transactions are
generally classified as operating transfers in the accompanying financial statements. Operating transfers out are
further categorized as transfers to the Component Unit, for debt retirement or other purposes. Component unit
transfers represent monies transferred to the MetroHealth System. Transfers for debt retirement represent monies
transferred to the Debt Service fund and other transfers represent all other operating transfers out. Residual equity
transfers are non-routine, non-recurring transfers of fund balances between funds.
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Fund Balance: The County records reservations of portions of fund balances which are legally segregated
for specific future uses or which do not represent available, spendable resources and, therefore, cannot be
appropriated for expenditures. Designations of fund balance are amounts that have been designated by
management for a specific future use, but are not legally segregated. Undesignated fund balance represents the
portion of fund equity that is not reserved or designated for a specific purpose.

Risk Management: The County has implemented GASB Statement No. 10, "Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues". Employees’ health insurance is provided through a
commercial insurance program. The County pays a premium to the insurance providers without additional risk to the
County. The County maintains an Internal Service fund to account for the self-insurance of workers’ compensation
benefits through a retrospective rating plan with the State of Ohio. The County recognizes a liability for self-insured
claims if information prior to the issuance of the general purpose financial statements indicates that it is probable that
a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. In addition, the County has designated a portion of the fund balance of its General fund, pursuant to Ohio
law, to provide for claims and judgements not covered by the various County insurance policies.

New Accounting Standards Not Yet Implemented: The GASB has issued Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, Statement No. 37,
Basic Financial Statements- and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments:
Omnibus an Amendment of GASB Statement Nos. 21 and 34, and Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement
Note Disclosures. These statements revise accounting and reporting standards for general purpose external financial
reporting by governmental units and are effective for the year ending December 31, 2002. The County has not
completed an analysis of the impact of these statements on its reported financial condition and results of operations.

During May 2002 the GASB issued Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are
Component Units, which clarifies existing accounting guidance and provides greater consistency in accounting for
organizations that are closely related to a primary government. The standard, which is effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2003, provides criteria for determining whether certain organizations should be reported as
component units based on the nature and significance of their relationship with a state or local government. The
County has not completed an analysis of the impact of this statement on its reported financial condition and results of
operations.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities: In 2001, the Hospital adopted the provisions of
FASB Statement No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, which requires the Hospital
to recognize all of its derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in its financial statements. The Hospital
entered into an interest rate swap agreement in 1999 to effectively convert a portion of its fixed rate debt to a variable
rate basis. This derivative instrument is not designated as a hedging instrument; therefore, gains and losses are
recognized for the Component Unit in the accompanying combined statement of revenues, expenses and changes in
retained earnings — all proprietary fund types as changes in the fair value of the instrument occur. Net amounts
periodically receivable or payable as a result of the swap agreement are accrued as adjustments to interest expense
on the related debt. The implementation of FASB Statement No. 133 was recorded as the cumulative effect of an
accounting change, which increased the net income of the Component Unit for the year ended December 31, 2001
by $1.2 million as reported in the accompanying combined statement of revenues, expenses and changes in retained
earnings — all proprietary fund types.

NOTE C - Cash and Investments
Cash and Investments:

Pooled Cash and Investments: Certain monies for the General fund, Debt Service fund, certain Agency
funds and the Hospital are deposited and maintained in individual segregated bank accounts or invested in
specifically segregated investments. All other funds of the County are held in a common group of bank accounts and
investments. Collectively, these bank accounts and investments represent the Pooled Cash and Investments
account. Amounts reported as cash and investments for the segregated funds and the pooled funds principally
consist of bank balances, certificates of deposit, United States Treasury Notes, U.S. Agencies, commercial paper,
municipal obligations of political subdivisions of the State of Ohio and the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool.
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Certain funds have made disbursements from the pooled cash account in excess of their individual equity in
the pooled cash account. These amounts are reported in the combined balance sheet as "Due to other funds" and
are offset against the General fund’s equity in pooled cash and investments.

A summary of the Pooled Cash and Investments account balance by fund type at December 31, 2001,

follows:
(Amounts in 000's)

Fund Type Due To Equity In
GENEIAN .o $ $ 142,509
Due From:

Special Revenue ..........cccccveevieiiieiciiiiieee e 56,922

ENterprise ......cccuevvevieeiiiiieeee e 29

Internal Service...........occvvvieiiiiiiiiie e 2914 (59,865)
Net GeNeral ........coeeeeeieeee e 82,644
Special REVENUE.........covvvvivieiieieveieveeeieveeveveenens 79,710
Capital Projects.......ccoooviiieiiiiieeeee 14,540
ENterprise ......ooovveveieiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 8,170
Internal SErviCe.........oovvieeiiieeee e 56,840
AGENCY ... 156,762
Total Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments ...... $ 398,666

Amounts due to other funds by Special Revenue funds will be paid from collection of reimbursements under
grant programs from the Federal and State governments. Amounts owed by the Enterprise and Internal Service
funds will be paid through collection of charges for services.

Deposits and Investments:
Primary Government

Deposits: At year-end, the carrying amount of the County's deposits, including certificates of deposit, was
$47.9 million and the bank balances were $87.9 million. Of the bank balances, $.3 million was covered by federal
depository insurance and $87.6 million was uncollateralized as defined by the GASB. These deposits were, however,
covered by collateral held by the pledging institution's agent in the name of the depository or the Federal Reserve
Bank of Cleveland in pooled securities accounts which were not in the County's name, as permitted under Ohio law.
The pooled securities serve as collateral for all public deposits held by the banks, including the County's deposits.
The Ohio Revised Code requires that the market value of securities held in the pool be at least equal to 105% of the
public deposits held by the banks. Ohio law requires that deposits be placed in eligible banks or savings and loan
associations located in Ohio. County policy is to utilize federally insured banks and savings institutions located in the
County.

Component Unit

Deposits: At December 31, 2001, the financial statement carrying amount of the Hospital’s deposits was $.6
million and the actual bank balances, including accrued interest, totaled $.5 million. Federal depository insurance
covered approximately $.1 million of the Hospital's deposits at year-end and are thus a category (1) deposit risk in
accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 3. The remainder was uncollateralized as defined by the
GASB as it was secured by collateral pools of U.S. Government and municipal securities held by the pledging
institution’s agent or the Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland in the name of the depository.
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Primary Government and Component Unit

Investments: The County’s Statement of Investment Policy, approved by the County’s Investment Advisory
Committee, authorizes investment by the County in investments permitted under the Ohio Revised Code. Eligible
investments include U.S. Treasury Bills and Notes, backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government,
obligations of U.S. government agencies, commercial paper, bankers acceptances, obligations of political
subdivisions of the State of Ohio, certificates of deposit or savings or deposit accounts in an eligible institution defined
in the Ohio Revised Code, State Treasurer's Investment Pool, shares in open-end no-load money market mutual
funds registered under the Federal Investment Act of 1940 and repurchase agreements. Ohio statute prohibits the
use of reverse repurchase agreements. County investment policy restricts repurchase agreements to durations of
30 days or less and all investments to maturities of not more than 5 years.

GASB Statement No. 3 "Deposits with Financial Institutions, Investments (including Repurchase
Agreements), and Reverse Repurchase Agreements” requires the County to categorize its deposits and investments
into one of three credit risk categories. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which
the securities are held by the County or its agent in the County's name. Risk category 2 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the
County's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the
counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the County’s name.

At December 31, 2001, the County's Primary Government investments were as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Investment Type Category 1 Fair Value/Carrying Value
U.S. Treasury NOtES ........ccocuieiiiiiieiee e $ 5,067 $ 5,067
U.S. Agency Obligations ...........ccceiiiiiiiiiieiiieeie e 348,119 348,119
Commercial Paper.........cccuuiiiieeiiiiie e 17,284 17,284
Municipal Revenue Anticipation Bonds ..........cccccccoviiiiiennen. 18,900 18,900

$ 389,370 389,370
5] €= T ] o o TS 39,141
Total Primary Government Investments...........ccccceevcieeeeennes $ 428,511

At December 31, 2001, the County’s Component Unit investments were as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Investment Type Category 1 Category 3 Fair Value/Carrying Value
U.S. Treasury Notes .........cccveveveeevieeiiieenns $ 23,446 $ $ 23,446
U.S. Agency Obligations 123,362 123,362
Repurchase Agreements ...........cccccoeieeeennne L 8,693 8,693

$ 146,808 $ 8.693 155,501
Money Market Funds ..........ccccoccveeieriiiiennn. 124,602
Total Hospital Investments.............ccccceeneee $ 280,103

Amounts invested in the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool (Star Ohio) and money market funds are not
classified by risk category because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. Star
Ohio is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s. It is the objective of the fund to stabilize the net asset value per unit at
$1.00 for the purpose of sale and redemption of units of the fund, but it is not guaranteed. Star Ohio is not a
registered fund subject to regulatory oversight as the fund is only offered to Ohio public subdivisions with investment
authority. Star Ohio is authorized under Section 135.45 of the Ohio Revised Code and has been used by Ohio public
entities since its inception in 1986 as a short-term investment vehicle to meet daily liquidity needs.
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NOTE D - Interfund Receivables and Payables

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances as of December 31, 2001 follow:

(Amounts in 000's)
Interfund Interfund

Fund Types Receivables Payables
GENEIAI FUNG ... e e e e $ 88,485 $ 32,193
Special Revenue Funds:

HUMAN SEIVICES ... ceveiiieeeeeee e 14,915 59,104

Health and Human Services Levies..........cccccoevunrennne.. 123,265

Motor Vehicle Gas TaX .....cccceeiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeiiiieeeeee e 115 644

County Board of Mental Retardation .......................... 89,520 1,520

Health and Community Services ..........cccocecvvevveneenn. 25,069 842

Community Development ............ccoooeiiiiieeeiiiieeees 325 687

(O =T RPN 1 73
Total Special Revenue Funds..........cccooeiiiiiiiiiii. 253,210 62,870
Debt Service FuNd ..........oouiiiieiiiieeeee e, 21,897
Capital Projects Fund..........ccccoooiiiiiiiiiie e 82 1
Enterprise Funds:

Sanitary ENgineer.........cooocviiiiiiiiiiieeee e 3 200

County AIrPOrt........oeiiiiiei e 34

Huntington Park Garage...........cccooeiiiiiiniiieee 16

Cuyahoga County Information System...................... 39 _2
Total Enterprise FUNAS.......ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee, 42 252
Internal Service Funds:

Central Custodial Services .........cccoovevvveveeeeeiicciiieenn. 32 1,103

Maintenance Garage.........cccccoeeecviveeiieeeeeeciiiieeee e 134 630

Data Processing Center ...........cccovveevieeeieiiciiiieeeeee, 61 69

Printing, Reproduction and Supplies ...........ccccccoen. 214 17

CoMMUNICALIONS....ceuniiii e 282 2,328

Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation............ccccceeeun... 8,417 o
Total Internal Service FunNds.........cccouevvieiiiiiiiiiieeeee 9,140 4,147
Agency Funds:

Payroll ....oooeeeeee e 4773

Undivided TaX........coovviiiiiiieeeciiee e 267,643

Other . o 10,523
Total Agency FUNAS.........ooiiiiiiiiiiiee e 4,773 278,166
LI 1= S $ 377,629 $ 377,629
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A summary of interfund receivables/payables of the General fund follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Fund Types Receivables Payables

Special Revenue Funds:

HUM@N SEIVICES ... $ 56,251 $ 14,915

Health and Community Services ..........ccocecvvieeeeeeennn. 13,052

Community Development ... __671 o
Total Special Revenue Funds.........cccoooeiiiiiiiiiie. 56,922 27,967
Enterprise Funds:

County AITPOrt.......ovviiiieeiiecieeiee e 29

Cuyahoga County Information System....................... _ 29
Total Enterprise FUNdS...........cccoovieiiiiiiiiiiieeeeecieeee e 29 29

Internal Service Funds:

Central Custodial Services 32

Maintenance Garage.........cccccoveiiuiiieiieeiieiieieeeee e 622 66

Printing, Reproduction and Supplies ...........cccccceeenn. 123

COMMUNICALIONS ...eeeeeeeee e e 2,292 189

Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation...........ccccocveeeee. 2,438
Total Internal Service FUNAS ........ccooeveevieieiiieeeeeeeeeee, 2,914 2,848
Agency Funds:

Payroll ... 1,349

UNivided TaX......oooieeiiiieeieee e 21,471

(0] (o1 7149
Total Agency FUNAS.........cccuviiiiiieeieiieee e 28,620 1,349
TOAIS ... $ 88,485 $ 32,193

The receivables from Special Revenue, Enterprise and Internal Service funds represent amounts overdrawn
from the pooled cash account which are owed to the General fund. The receivable from the Undivided Tax Agency
fund represents property taxes levied in 2001 to be received in the General fund in 2002. The receivable from Other
Agency funds represents investment earnings and fees deposited in various outside bank accounts.

The amounts payable to the Human Services and Health and Community Services funds represent
additional subsidies due each of the funds. The amount payable to the Cuyahoga County Information System is for
computer charges from various General fund agencies. The amounts payable to Internal Service funds represent
unpaid charges at December 31, 2001. The amounts payable to the Payroll Agency fund represent current charges
for employee medical benefits and the early retirement program (see Note G).
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NOTE E - Contributed Capital - Proprietary Fund Types

A summary of reductions to contributed capital during 2001 for the County's Enterprise funds follows:

Enterprise Funds

(Amounts in 000’s)

Contributed Capital
At Beginning of Year

Less: Depreciation

and Disposition

of Fixed Assets

Acquired with

Contributed Capital

Contributed Capital

At End of Year

Sanitary Engineer ..........c.ccoevvevveieenenen. $ 9,015 $ 812 $ 8,203
County AIrport......c.ccceevieeiiieenieenieeeieen 9,770 374 9,396
Huntington Park Garage ...........c.ccceeeneee. 1,408 483 925
)2 O $ 20,193 $ 1,669 $ 18,524
NOTE F - General Fixed Assets
A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows:
(Amounts in 000's)
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
Asset Type 2001 Additions Deductions 2001
Land......ccoooieiiiieee e $ 29,879 $ 3,672 $ 79 $ 33,472
Land improvements ...................... 1,570 1,318 2,888
Buildings, structures
and improvements................... 387,745 62,523 5,364 444,904
Furniture, fixtures
and equipment...........ccccvveeene. 18,270 1,421 291 19,400
Vehicles ....ccceviieeeiiee e 12,922 299 423 12,798
Construction in
progress(!) ..., 100,490 24,196 62,269 62,417
Totals ....ceeeeeeeeeee e $ 550,876 $ 93,429 $ 68,426 $ 575,879
(1) Includes $3.9 million of construction in progress paid for by the Capital Projects fund through
the issuance of general obligation debt and contributed to the County’s Enterprise funds in
2001 when the assets were completed.
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A summary of construction commitments at December 31, 2001 follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Authorized

Project Expended as of Future
Function Amount December 31, 2001 Commitments
General government............... $ 10,259 $ 7,714 $ 2,545
Judicial.......ceeeveeiiiiiiiiiiieenee, 124,167 47,519 76,648
Social services............ccouuu..... 15,798 1,329 14,469
Health and safety................... 7,500 5,557 1,943
Public WOrks..........cccoveeeuneen.. 1,118 298 820
TotalS ..o, $1 42 $ 62,417 $ 96,425

The future construction commitments are expected to be financed primarily through bonded debt.
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NOTE G - Debt and Other Obligations

Notes Payable and Long-Term Liabilities:

A summary of the County’s notes payable and long-term liabilities at December 31, 2001 is provided below:

(Amounts in 000's)

Year Interest Balance Balance
Issued Rate January 1 Additions Reductions December 31
Capital Projects Fund:
2001 Bond Anticipation Notes
Orange Place Extension — Due in 2002..............cccccceeueunne. 450% $ 1,820 $ 4,260 $ 3,640 $ 2440
Enterprise Funds:
Various Loans Payable .............cccoovevoueueuiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeen e 4.04% -7.00% $ 6.818 $ $ 461 $ 6,357
2001 Special Termination Benefits — Due thru 2006 7.75% 688 _69 619
Notes Payable:
2001 Bond Anticipation Notes
OImsted Township and Shady Road Improvements
—DUE N 2002.....c.eiiiiiiieieieieee s 3.00% 5,560 5,845 5,560 5,845
2001 Bond Anticipation Notes
Chagrin Falls Waterline — Due in 2002 5.00% 260 520 520 260
Total Notes Payable 5,820 6,365 6,080 6,105
Self-Supporting Bonds Payable:
1992 Sewer Improvement-Due thru 2012 3.50%-6.50% 1,725 100 1,625
2000 Sewer Improvement-Due thru 2020..... . 4.55%-5.55% 1,040 _____ __30 1.010
Total Self-Supporting Bonds Payable.. 2765  _____ _130 2,635
Total Enterprise Funds $ 15,403 $ 7,053 $ 6,740 $.15,716
Internal Service Funds:
Various Equipment Capital Lease Obligation
- Due through 2005 .........ccocoiiiiiieiccee s $ 718 $ $ 281 $ 437
2001 Special Termination Benefits — Due thru 2006 7.75% _ 5,158 449 4,709
Total Internal Service Funds $ 1718 $ 5158 $ 1730 $ 5146
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group:
Accrued Wages and Benefits.............. $ 21,221 $ 914 $___ $ 22,135
1999 Installment Purchase Agreement — Due thru 2009................ 5.26%-5.46% 16,952 . 1,584 15,368
Loans Payable:
1989 Environmental Protection Agency — Due thru 2007 .... None 165 27 138
1997 Ohio Department of Development Loan — Due thru 2016.. None 4,000 o 250 3,750
Total Loans Payable ..........ccccoeeviiiiiiiiiieeieeeeeeee 4,165 o 277 3,888
Various Capital Lease Obligations
-Due thru 2023 2,165 8,520 1,074 9,611
2001 Special Termination Benefits — Due thru 2006 .... 7.75% o 28,340 2,425 25,915
General Obligation Bonds - Unvoted:
1983 Building Improvements-Due thru 2004 9.375% 3,500 875 2,625
1983 Health Service Facilities-Due thru 2004 .. . 9.375% 1,480 370 1,110
1983 Auditorium-Due thru 2004.................... . 9.375% 700 175 525
1983 Street Improvements-Due thru 2004 9.375% 200 50 150
1983 Sanitary Improvements-Due thru 2004............. . 9.375% 800 200 600
1993 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds-Due thru 2012 . . 2.20%-5.25% 38,015 3,000 35,015
1993 Rock and Roll Hall of Fame-Due thru 2018.......... . 2.75%-5.65% 9,970 345 9,625
1995 Various Purpose Improvements-Due thru 2015 . 3.75%-5.50% 25,410 2,190 23,220
2000 Capital Improvements-Due thru 2020...........c.ccecervrininnns 4.30%-5.75% _96,615 o 2,555 94,060
Total General Obligation Bonds - Unvoted.............c.c...... 176,690 o 9,760 166,930
General Obligation Bonds - Voted:
1991 Jail Il Series — Due thru 2006...........cccceovrueincineinneeneene 6.95%-7.05% 5,086 5,086
1993 Jail Facilities and Various Purpose Refunding Bonds
-Due thru 2013 2.20%-5.25% 38,709 o 5,360 33,349
Total General Obligation Bonds - Voted 43,795 o 5,360 38,435
Total Tax Supported Bonds 220,485 R 15,120 205,365

(CONTINUED)
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(Amounts in 000's)
Year Interest Balance Balance
Issued Rate January 1 Additions Reductions December 31

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group (Concluded):

Self-Supporting Bonds:

1976 Sewer Improvement 615A-Due thru 2001 ............ccce... 6.50% 155 R 155 R
Total Self-Supporting Bonds............ccoceeveiieniienienes 155 o 155 o
Revenue Bonds:
1992 Gateway Economic Development-Due thru 2022 Variable $ 35,200 $ $ 1,600 $ 33,600
1992 Gateway Economic Development-Due thru 2022 8.625% 35,000 35,000
1994 Gateway Economic Development-Due thru 2023 .......... 4.45%-7.60% 38,675 1,270 37,405
1994 Cleveland Foundation Economic Development
-Due thru 2002 ..o 3.00% 770 627 143
1998 Brownfield Economic Redevelopment
—Due thru 2018 ... 5.31%-6.75% 14,585 460 14,125
2000 Shaker Square Redevelopment-Due thru 2030 6.75% 2,855 [ 2,855
Total Revenue Bonds 127,085 o 3,957 123,128
Total Bonds Payable 347,725 o 19,232 328,493
Total General Long-Term Obligations Account Group................. $392,228 $ 37,774 $24,592 $ 405,410
Component Unit
Capital Lease Obligation:
Various Equipment Obligations-Due thru 2007 ...........ccccceieeeenne 4.958%-4.96% $_12,278 $ 757 $ 2,483 $ 10,552
Bonds:
1997 Hospital Improvement and Refunding
Revenue Bonds-Due Thru 2027 ..........ccceovvveveenieennen. 3.90%-5.80% 62,145 323 3,815 58,653
1997 Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds-Due thru 2019 ...... 4.10%-5.50% 68,173 432 220 68,385
1999 Hospital Improvement Revenue Bonds-Due thru 2029.. 6.125%-6.15% 56,783 -8 _____ 56,791
Total BONAS ..o 187,101 763 4,035 183,829
Total Component Unit $199,379 $ 1,520 $ 6,518 $ 194,381

Capital Lease Information: The following summarizes future minimum lease payments under the capital
leases, and the present values of net minimum lease payments for the Primary Government at December 31, 2001:

(Amounts in 000's)
General Long-Term
Obligations Internal Service
Year Account Group funds
2002, $ 1,894 $ 307
1,833 100
1,784 33
1,714 25
1,674
2007-201T et 8,320
2012-20716....eeeeeee e e 497
2017-2027 .o 42
2022-2023.....ccciieieeeeee e " 4 _
Total Minimum Lease Payments..............ccccccoeeeis 17,762 465
Amount Representing Interest .............cccccciiiiiiis (8,151) _(28)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments..... $ 9,611 $ 437
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The following summarizes future minimum payments and the present values of net minimum lease

payments for the Component Unit's equipment capital leases at December 31, 2001:

(Amounts in 000's)

Year Equipment Obligation
2002t $ 3,388
2003, e 3,388
2004 ... e 2,529
2005 . et 779
2006 e e 779
Thereafter ... 780
Total Minimum Lease Payments.............ccccccoeeinnnnee. 11,643
Amount Representing Interest ............cccocciiiiiinnen. (1,091)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments........ $ 10,552

As of December 31, 2001, the carrying value of the fixed assets recorded as capital leases under the
General Fixed Assets Account Group, Internal Service funds and Component Unit were $35.9 million, $1.4 million

and $14.4 million, respectively.

Future Debt Service Requirements: A summary of the County’s future debt service requirements for its
outstanding long-term bonds, notes, installment purchase agreement and loans payable at December 31, 2001 are

as follows:
(Amounts in 000's)
General Long-Term
Obligations
Enterprise Funds Account Group
Due In Principal Interest Principal Interest
2002.......ceeeeiieee, $ 7,224 $ 797 $ 21,757 $ 20,140
2003....iiiieeeeeeies 470 310 22,502 18,974
2004......ooeiieen 483 293 21,119 20,064
2005.....ccce e 502 275 20,331 19,718
2006......ccceeiiereennen. 521 255 19,496 18,836
2007-2011 ..ooveenneeen. 2,934 954 90,221 83,239
2012-2016 ............... 2,239 377 71,228 50,398
2017-2021 ............... 724 59 65,025 17,051
2022-2026 ............... 15,550 1,496
2027-2030 ............... 520 ___ 82
Totals.....ccccvvveenneen. $ 15,097 $ 3,320 $ 347,749 $ 249,998
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(Amounts in 000's)
Component Unit

Due In Principal and Interest
2002 .. $ 14,782
2003 .. 14,770
2004 ... e 14,769
2005 e 14,768
2006 ..o e 14,746
Thereafter.......ccccveeiieiieiie e 291,865
TOtal e 365,700
Amount representing interest ..o (171,530)

Unamortized difference between reacquisition
price and the net carrying amount of

previously defeased debt............ccccooviiiinienn. (8,226)
Unamortized discount...........ccccccveeeiiiiiiiiineeeeeene (2,115)
Present value of net minimum payments............. $ 183,829

Component Unit Swap Agreement: In 1999, the Component Unit entered into a 15 year interest rate swap
agreement for a notional amount of $56 million of its fixed rate general obligation bonds. Based on the swap
agreement, the Component Unit makes payments calculated at a variable rate equal to the BMA Swap Index to the
counterparty to the swap. In return, the counterparty makes payments to the Component Unit based on the fixed rate
of 5.41%. Only the net difference in payments is exchanged with the counterparty. The $56 million in bond principal
is not exchanged; it is only the basis on which the interest payments are calculated. The net interest savings for 2001
was $1.5 million and was recorded as a reduction in interest expense. At December 31, 2001, the fair value of the
swap agreement based on its current settlement value was a positive $2 million which was recorded as an other
asset in the accompanying combined balance sheet. The increase of $.8 million in the fair value of the swap during
2001 is recorded as an unrealized gain on investments.

Long-Term Bonds: All long-term bonded debt of the Primary Government is retired from the Debt Service
fund, except bonds payable from Enterprise funds which will be paid from cash flows generated by these funds.
General obligation bonds are secured by the County’s ability to levy a voted or unvoted property tax within limitations
of Ohio law. Self-supporting bonds, except revenue bonds, are secured by an unvoted property tax levy; however,
each bond indenture provides for principal and interest to also be paid from user charges. The revenue bonds are
secured by non-tax revenue of the County.

Under the Uniform Bond Act of the Ohio Revised Code, the County has the capacity to issue approximately
$120 million of additional unvoted general obligation debt.

Accrued Wages and Benefits: County employees become eligible to receive one-fourth of their accumulated
unpaid sick leave upon retirement after a minimum of ten years of service. Certain agencies may have policies that
vary with regard to payment of accrued sick leave upon retirement. Termination of employment must be by
retirement to receive accumulated unpaid sick leave. Employees with a minimum of one year of service become
vested in accumulated unpaid vacation time. Vacation time may not be accumulated for more than three years.
Unused vacation time is payable upon termination of employment. In general, employees are eligible to be paid for
unpaid overtime and unused compensatory time upon termination of employment. All sick, vacation, compensatory
and overtime payments are made at the employee's current wage rate.
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The accumulated unpaid sick, vacation, compensatory and overtime hours for which the $22.1 million
liability recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group at December 31, 2001 was based were as
follows:

Amount
Type Hours (in 000's)
SICK e 21,960 $ 389
Vacation.......cccoeeveeeiceneiienn 1,150,997 20,384
Overtime ......coococveevicieeeeieeee 76,879 1,362
Total..ccoveeeeceeeeeeee e 1,249,836 $ 22,135

Special Termination Benefits: In May 2001, the Board of County Commissioners authorized the purchase of
additional service credit (equal to 20% of accumulated service time up to a maximum of 5 years) under PERS (see
Note H) for certain employees close to retirement as an incentive to retire early. The Early Retirement Incentive
Program (ERIP) was approved for participating departments and agencies of the County by agreement with the
County Commissioners. Eligible employees have until June 30, 2002 to elect to participate in the program. As of
December 31, 2001, 401 employees had accepted the program resulting in a total cost of $34.2 million payable to
PERS. This cost and the related obligation was allocated to the County’s funds and General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Enterprise FUNAS...........coooviiiiiiiiiecie e $ 688
Internal Service FUNAS .......cooueiveeeeieieeeeeeeeeeeeeen, 5,158
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group...... 28,340
TOtal e $ 34,186

As of December 31, 2001, $2.4 million of the amount initially credited to the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group had been paid and recognized as an expenditure by the County’s Governmental funds. Payments
are made to PERS in quarterly installments over the life of the purchased service credit. The following summarizes
the future payment requirements to fund the cost of the special termination benefits for the employees who had
elected to participate in the plan by December 31, 2001:

General Long-Term
Proprietary Obligations
Year Funds Account Group
2002, . $ 1,446 $ 6,993
2003, . 1,428 6,922
2004 ... 1,396 6,787
2005, . e 1,344 6,475
2006, .., 744 3,780
Total Termination Benefit Payments........ 6,358 30,957
Amount Representing Interest ................. (1,030) (5,042)
Net AMOUNt......ccoeeiieeeeeee e $ 5,328 $ 25915

As of December 31, 2001, the County estimated 665 employees would elect to participate in the future
(through June 30, 2002). All or a portion of these employees could elect to participate in the future (through June 30,
2002), which would increase the County’s cost of the program along with its obligation to PERS.
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Advance Refunding of General Obligation Bonds: On March 19, 1993, the County issued general obligation
bonds amounting to $140.7 million with interest rates ranging from 2.2% to 5.25%. The issues consisted of voted and
unvoted refunding debt as well as new voted debt. The unvoted refunding debt amounted to $75.4 million, the voted
refunding debt amounted to $49.4 million and the additional voted debt amounted to $15.9 million. The refunding
debt proceeds were used to advance refund outstanding debt of $115.6 million which consisted of $49.6 million and
$66 million of voted and unvoted debt, respectively. The County advance refunded the bonds to reduce its total debt
service payments over the next 20 years by $1.5 million and $2.9 million on voted and unvoted debt, respectively,
and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and
new debt) of $1.2 million and $2.2 million on voted and unvoted debt, respectively. The aggregate amount of the
defeased General Obligation Bonds outstanding at December 31, 2001 is $3.5 million. The remaining proceeds from
the issuance were used to fund various capital projects.

Advance Refunding of Component Unit Bonds: Effective February 1, 1997, the County issued $70 million of
Hospital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 1997. The proceeds of the Series 1997 Bonds were
used to advance refund $20.9 million of Series 1989 Bonds scheduled to mature on February 15, 2007; to advance
refund $2.4 million, $2.6 million and $2.7 million of the Series 1989 Bonds stated to mature on February 15, 1999,
February 15, 2000 and February 15, 2001, respectively; to finance the construction of various improvements and
additions to the MetroHealth Medical Center; and to pay costs of issuance of the Series 1997 Bonds.

Effective November 1, 1997, the County issued $77.5 million of Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
1997A. The proceeds of the Series 1997A Bonds were used to advance refund $73.7 million of Series 1989 Bonds
scheduled to mature on February 15, 2019. The 1997 refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition
price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $9.8 million. This unamortized difference ($8.2 million at
December 31, 2001) is reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from long-term debt and is
being charged to operations through the year 2019 using the effective interest method.

Other Financial Obligations

Operating Leases: During the year 2001, the County had approximately 73 operating leases for office space
and equipment. At December 31, 2001, there were 40 remaining with future obligations. The operating lease
agreements range in length from one month to ten years. Total rental payments for 2001 amounted to $5.6 million,
of which $760,000 was expended from proprietary funds. Rental obligations for the years 2002 through 2011 are
$11.8 million of which $1.3 million represents the amount to be paid from proprietary funds. Rental payments for the
years 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006 will be $5.1 million, $4.0 million, $1.9 million, $.5 million and $.4 million,
respectively. Operating lease payments are recorded as an expenditure in the period to which they apply.

The Hospital has entered into operating lease agreements for a parking facility, medical space and office
space which expire through 2011. Certain leases contain rent escalation clauses and renewal options for additional
periods ranging from two to five years. Rent expense totaled $1.2 million in 2001. Minimum rental commitments
under operating leases extending beyond one year at December 31, 2001 are as follows: 2002 - $1.2 million; 2003 -
$1.2 million; 2004 - $1.1 million; 2005 - $11.4 million; 2006 - $.3 million, thereafter - $.9 million.

Gateway Loan Guarantees: The County currently guarantees the repayment of $35.5 million of bonded debt
of Gateway. This amount represents the outstanding par amount of bonds of two issues, the original outstanding
amount of which was $38.4 million of Subordinate Excise Tax Revenue Bonds and $31.0 million of Stadium Revenue
Bonds. As of December 31, 2001, the outstanding balance on these Gateway bond guarantees, including future
interest payments, was $8.9 million on the Subordinate Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (payable through September 1,
2005), and $38.1 million on the Stadium Revenue Bonds payable through September 15, 2014). The County has not
been required to make any payments on behalf of the Gateway bonds.

Conduit Debt Obligations: Periodically, the County has issued Industrial Development, Hospital Revenue
and Mortgage Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and
construction of industrial, commercial and hospital facilities deemed to be in the public interest. These bonds are
secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payment received on the underlying mortgage loans.
The bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the full faith and credit of the County and, therefore, are not reported
in the financial statements. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-
sector entity served by the bond issuance.
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As of December 31, 2001, the aggregate principal amounts outstanding for the Industrial Development,
Hospital Revenue and Mortgage Revenue Bonds were $218.1 million, $1.5 billion and $155.8 million, respectively.

NOTE H - Pension and Retirement Plans and Other Post-employment Benefits
Primary Government

PERS PLAN DESCRIPTION: All full-time employees of the County, except teachers employed by the
County Board of Mental Retardation, participate in the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS). Itis a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability benefits,
annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 145 of the Ohio
Revised Code assigns the authority to establish and amend benefits to the PERS Board of Trustees. PERS issues a
stand-alone financial report. A copy of the report may be obtained by making a written request to the Public
Employees Retirement System of Ohio, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642, or by calling (614) 466-
2085.

PERS FUNDING POLICY: The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer
contributions. Employees are required to contribute 8.5% of covered payroll, except for law enforcement employees.
In January 2001, House Bill 416 divided the PERS law enforcement program into two separate divisions with
separate employee contribution rates and benefits as follows: (1) The law enforcement classification which consists
of sheriffs and deputy sheriffs with an employee contribution rate of 10.1% and (2) all other members of the law
enforcement program who were placed in a newly named public safety division and are required to contribute 9%.
The employer contribution rate is 13.55% of covered payroll, except for law enforcement which is 16.70%. There was
a temporary employer contribution rate rollback effective July 2000 through December 2000. The rates were 8.13%
of covered payroll except for law enforcement personnel for which the contribution rate was 14.70%. The total
employer contributions from the County to PERS (excluding amounts paid in 2001 for ERIP — See Note G) for the
years 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $51.5 million, $40.3 million and $45.2 million, respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year.

OPEB BENEFITS PROVIDED THROUGH PERS: In addition to the pension benefits described previously,
PERS provides postretirement health care coverage to age and service retirants with 10 or more years of qualifying
Ohio service credit. Health care coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor recipients is also available.
The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB)
as described in GASB Statement No. 12.

A portion of each employer’s contribution to PERS is set aside for the funding of postretirement health care.
The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority requiring public employers to fund postretirement health care
through their contributions to PERS. The portion of the employer contribution rate used to fund postretirement health
care for 2001 and 2000 was 4.3% of covered payroll. During 2001 and 2000, $16.3 million and $15.9 million,
respectively, of the County’s total contribution to PERS was used for postretirement benefits. At December 31, 2001,
the County was not responsible for paying premiums, contributions, or claims for OPEB under PERS for any retirees,
terminated employees or other beneficiaries.

The OPEB is advance-funded on an actuarially determined basis through employer contributions and
investment earnings thereon. The principal assumptions used for the 2000 actuarial computations (latest available)
were as follows:

Funding Method: The entry age normal actuarial cost method of valuation is used in determining the
present value of OPEB. The difference between assumed and actual experience (actuarial gains and
losses) becomes part of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

Assets Valuation Method: For actuarial valuation purposes, a smoothed market approach is used. Under
this approach assets are adjusted annually to reflect 25% of unrealized market appreciation or depreciation
on investment assets.

Investment Return: The investment return assumption for 2000 was 7.75%.
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Active Employee Total Payroll: An annual increase of 4.75%, compounded annually, is the base portion of
the individual pay increase assumption. This assumes no change in the number of active employees.
Additionally, annual pay increases, over and above the 4.75% base increase, were assumed to range from
0.54% t0 5.1%.

Health Care: Health care costs were assumed to increase 4.75%.

At December 31, 2000, (latest information available), there were 411,076 active participants contributing to
the plan. The County’s actuarially required OPEB contribution for 2000 equaled the actual amount contributed to
PERS by the County. In addition, at December 31, 2000, the actuarial value of the plan’s net assets available for
OPEB approximated $11.8 billion and the actuarial accrued liability and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability,
based on the actuarial method used, were $14.4 billion and $2.6 billion, respectively.

The contributions allocated to retiree health care, along with investment income on allocated assets and
periodic adjustments in health care provisions, are expected to be sufficient to sustain the program indefinitely.

STRS PLAN DESCRIPTION: Teachers employed by the County Board of Mental Retardation (CBMR)
participate in the State Teachers Retirement System Of Ohio (STRS). It is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan. STRS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code assigns the authority to
establish and amend benefits to the STRS Board of Trustees. STRS issues a stand-alone financial report. A copy of
the report may be obtained by making a written request to the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio, 275 East
Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3771 or by calling (614) 227-4090.

STRS FUNDING POLICY: The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer
contributions. Employees are required to contribute 9.3% of covered payroll. The employer contribution rate is 14%
of annual covered payroll. The employer contributions from the County Board of Mental Retardation to STRS for the
years 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $1.9 million, $1.9 million and $1.8 million, respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year.

OPEB: STRS also provides OPEB to plan members. The qualifications required to receive benefits
replicate PERS. STRS has established a Health Care Reserve fund to accumulate monies for OPEB. The portion of
the employer contribution rate allocated to the Health Care Reserve fund was 4.5% of covered payroll. The County’s
contributions for OPEB for the years 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $.6 million, $.8 million and $1 million, respectively,
equal to the required contributions for each year.

The balance in the Health Care Reserve Fund was $3.3 billion at June 30, 2001 (latest information
available). For the year ended June 30, 2001, the net health care costs paid by STRS were $300.8 million and there
were 102,132 eligible recipients.

Component Unit

Retirement and OPEB benefits for Hospital employees are provided through PERS in the same manner as
employees of the County’s primary government. The Hospital's total contributions to PERS for the years 2001, 2000
and 1999 were $32.5 million, $24.3 million and $28.8 million, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each
year. The portion of the Hospital’s total contribution to PERS which was used to fund OPEB for the years 2001 and
2000 was $10.5 million and $9.5 million, respectively.

NOTE | - Deficit Balances

At December 31, 2001, the County Airport, Central Custodial Services and Communications funds had
retained earnings deficits of $.8 million, $4.7 million and $2.6 million, respectively. The County Airport is an
Enterprise fund and the Central Custodial Services and the Communications funds are Internal Service funds. The
deficits will be eliminated through adjustment of the related fee schedules.
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NOTE J - Fund Equity

Reserves and Designations: The County segregates fund balances using two different account categories;
reserved and designated. Two general types of reserved fund balance accounts are used. The first type indicates
the portion of fund balance which is legally segregated for a specific future use. The second type indicates the
portion of fund balance which does not represent available, spendable resources and is, therefore, not eligible to fund
current year expenditures. Designations indicate the portion of the unreserved fund balance which management has
earmarked for a specific future use. Designations are not legal segregations.

Reserve accounts used by the County include:

Reserved for Restricted Assets: This account represents the portion of fund equity that includes grants and
contributions made to the Hospital (Component Unit) which have been restricted by donors or grantees for specific
purposes and assets held by the Hospital in a custodial nature. At December 31, 2001, the balance in this account
was $5.2 million. Earnings on investments of these assets are included in restricted assets unless such earnings are
not restricted by donors.

This account also represents the portion of the General fund’s equity that includes certificates of deposit that
support the County’s Housing Enhancement Loan Program (H.E.L.P.) and the unspent proceeds of the County’s
Brownfield Economic Redevelopment bonds. At December 31, 2001, the balance in this account was $37.3 million of
which $25.5 million represents the fund equity related to the certificates of deposit and $11.8 million represents the
fund equity related to the Brownfield Redevelopment bond proceeds.

Reserved for Loans Receivable: This account is used to separate the portion of fund equity that pertains to
long-term loans receivable and is not available for current expenditure. At December 31, 2001, $15 million has been
reserved for loan repayments.

Reserved for Debt Service: This account is used to separate the portion of fund equity that must be used to
fund principal and interest on Gateway Economic Development Revenue Bonds in the succeeding year as well as the
equity balance in the Debt Service fund. At December 31, 2001, $8.3 million has been reserved for debt service.

Designation accounts used by the County include:

Designated for Self-Insurance: This account is used to designate resources which management has
earmarked to fund any claims or judgements against the County which are not covered by insurance. At December
31, 2001, $1.1 million has been designated for self-insurance.

Designated for Proprietary Funds: This account is used to designate resources which management has
earmarked to retire outstanding Enterprise and Internal Service funds' deficits. At December 31, 2001, $8.2 million
has been designated for future Enterprise and Internal Service funds'subsidies.

NOTE K - Risk Management and Other Contingencies
Primary Government

Litigation and Claims: There are certain pending and threatened lawsuits and other claims against the
County. The County’s management, after consultation with the County Prosecutor, is of the opinion that the potential
uninsured claims against the County are not material to the County’s combined financial statements.

Contingencies Under Grant Programs: The County participates in a number of Federal and State assisted
grant programs. These programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by grantors or their representatives.
The County believes that disallowed claims, if any, will not have a material adverse effect on the County's financial
position.
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Self-Insurance: The County has designated $1.1 million of the fund balance of the General fund, pursuant
to Ohio law, to provide monies for claims and judgements not covered by the various County insurance policies.
Settled claims from risks covered by the County's insurance policies have not exceeded the insurance coverage for
the past three fiscal years. Actual expenditures for claims and judgements against the County in 2001 and estimates
for unsettled claims at December 31, 2001, including those incurred but not reported, were immaterial. The County is
also self-insured with respect to unemployment and workers’ compensation benefits. Self-insurance expenditures
were immaterial for unemployment compensation in 2001. Since 1992, the County has maintained an Internal
Service fund for its self-insured workers’ compensation benefits administered through a retrospective rating plan with
the State of Ohio. Prior to 1992, the County was fully insured for workers’ compensation benefits. The County uses
a payroll-based rate to charge its various funds for workers’ compensation benefits. These charges are contributed
into the Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation fund and are based on estimates needed to pay current claims and
establish a reserve for claims incurred but not reported. Changes to the estimated claims payable recorded in the
Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation fund during the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 were:

(Amounts in 000’s)

Estimated Claims Payable 2001 2000

Estimated claims payable beginning of year...........ccccccceeveennenn. $ 18,827 $ 33,252
Plus: Current year claims and changes in estimates................... 4,833 (13,047)
Less: Claim payments(1) ............................................................ 5,070 1,378
Estimated claims payable end of year .........c.cccccceeivenieiiinnnenn, $ 18,590 $ 18,827

(1) The 2000 amount is net of a $2 million one-time, state-wide dividend credit the Ohio Bureau of Workers’
Compensation allowed the County to offset against its claim payments during that year only.

Uncertainties associated with estimates of workers’ compensation liabilities can often result in wide ranges
of reasonably possible estimates. Estimates developed in the year a claim occurs can vary significantly. Normally, a
finite estimate of cost for a specific claim does not become fixed and determinable until a determination of the benefit
award is made by the Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation. This can occur several years after an injury occurs
and a claim is filed. During 2000, the County reduced its estimated workers’ compensation liability recorded in prior
years by approximately $17.6 million based on the recommendation of an independent actuary. Since the County
entered the retrospective rating program in 1992, it had recorded its best estimate of the liability each year without the
assistance of an actuary. The passage of time since the County’s entry into the retrospective program has provided
sufficient historical information to enable the County’s previous liability estimates to be refined and an actuary was
consulted to assist in this process. Nevertheless, there is no assurance that additional costs greater than the amount
accrued at December 31, 2001 will not be incurred or that changes in workers’ compensation laws or their
interpretation will not require that additional amounts be spent.

Special Termination Benefits: The State of Ohio has granted statutory authority enabling Ohio public
employers to establish early retirement incentive programs. In conjunction with this program, the County Board of
Mental Retardation (CBMR) adopted a plan in 1999, which allows for participation by eligible CBMR employees in
such a program. The plan is in effect for the period July 1, 2000 through June 30, 2002 during which time eligible
employees may elect to retire in exchange for the County paying the necessary amount to PERS and STRS (see
Note H) to enable the individuals to receive full retirement benefits under these plans. In 2001, $.7 million was paid to
PERS and STRS under the program. Because CBMR pays these costs when employees elect to participate in the
program, there are no amounts recorded as a liability in the accompanying combined balance sheet.

Component Unit

Self-Insurance:  The Hospital is self-insured for professional and patient care third party liability and
workers’ compensation benefits. For the professional and patient care liability, professional insurance consultants
have been retained to determine funding requirements. Amounts funded for professional and patient care have been
placed in an irrevocable, self-insurance trust account, which is being administered by a trustee.
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Losses from asserted claims and from unasserted claims identified under the Hospital's incident reporting
system are accrued based on estimates that incorporate the Hospital's past experience, as well as other
considerations including the nature of each claim or incident and relevant trend factors. The reserve for estimated
self-insured claims includes estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not
reported, discounted at a rate of 6%. The changes in the reserve were as follows during the years ended December
31, 2001 and 2000:

(Amounts in 000’s)
Estimated Claims Payable 2001 2000
Estimated claims payable beginning of year...............ccccoveeveennen. $ 29,685 $ 24,987
Plus: Current year claims and changes in estimates ................. 18,169 16,577
Less: Claim payments ..........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 18,383 11.879
Estimated claims payable end of year.............ccccccceveeveeeriecneenen. $29,471 $ 29,685

NOTE L - Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is employed in all County funds during the normal course of operations for
purchase orders and contract-related expenditures/expenses. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are closed to
unreserved fund balance/retained earnings and are re-encumbered at the beginning of the succeeding year.

At December 31, 2001, encumbrances outstanding in Governmental funds and Proprietary funds which
were reappropriated in the 2002 budget were:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
General fUNA .......oeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 31,426
Special Revenue funds .........cccccoeiviiiiiiiiiie e 123,355
Capital Projects fund ..........c.c.oeeviiiiiiiiie e 68,369
Enterprise funds ..........ccccviiiiiiiiic e 3,461
Internal Service funds.........ccccooiiiii 13,724
TOal i $240,335

On a GAAP basis, a portion of these encumbrances represented liabilities of the County. At December 31,
2001, encumbrances recorded as liabilities were:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
GENETAI TUNG e $ 3,265
Special Revenue funds .........cccccooviiiiiiiiiiie e 33,638
Capital Projects fund ............oooiiiiiiiieeeee 5,335
Enterprise funds ............ouviiiiiiiiiiiiiii 389
Internal Service funds........ccooooviiiiieieiiiieee e 1,628
Total oo $ 44,255
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NOTE M - Property Tax Revenues

Property taxes include amounts levied against real, tangible (used in business) and public utility property.
The assessed value upon which the 2001 tax collection was based follows:

Property Type (Amounts in 000’s)
Real Property.......c.ccveeueeiueeiieecie e $ 24,341,838
Personal tangible property.........cccoccceiiiiieiiiiienenns 3,011,512
Tangible public utility property .........ccocceeviiieininen. 1,218,900
Total assessed Value ........ccceeeeveeeeeeeeciieeee e $ 28,572,250

Ohio law prohibits taxation of property from all taxing authorities in excess of 10 mills of assessed value
without a vote of the people. Presently, the County levies 1.45 mills of the first 10 mills of assessed value of which
.52 is designated for debt service and the remainder is credited to the County’s General fund. In addition to the 1.45
mills, 10.27 voted mills have been levied for debt service, mental retardation, health and human services and health
and welfare. A summary of voted millage follows:

Voter Rates Levied for Final
Authorized Current Year Collection
Purpose Rate (1) Collection (2) Year
Agricultural/ Commercial/
Residential Industrial
Debt Service........coooveeveeeicieeeeeeeeene. $ .27 $ .27 $ 27 2013
Mental retardation.............ccccceeeneeennn. 3.90 3.48 3.42 2005
Health and human services.................. 3.00 1.82 2.14 2004
Health and welfare..............ccccccoeeen. 3.10 2.76 2.71 2003
Total voted millage.............ccoevveneennene. $ 10.27 $ 833 $ 854
(1) In mills per $1,000 of assessed valuation.
(2) Ohio law provides for a credit to certain voted levies to offset inflation in the value of real property.
The mental retardation, health and human services and health and welfare levies are subject to this
credit.

Real property taxes are levied each December on the assessed values as of the preceding January 1st, the
lien date. Assessed values are established the preceding year by the County Auditor at 35% of appraised market
value. A revaluation of real property is required to be completed no less than every six years, with a statistical update
every third year. The most recent revaluation was completed in 2000. Public utility property taxes are assessed on
tangible personal property, as well as land and land improvements at true value, which is, in general, net book value.
Tangible property is assessed at 25% of true value except for inventories which are assessed at 25% of average
value. Personal property (other than public utility property) taxes are levied in October of the preceding calendar year
based on tax rates determined in the preceding year and assessed values determined at the close of the most recent
fiscal year of the taxpayer that ended on or before March 31 of the current calendar year. Under Ohio law, personal
property taxes do not attach as a lien on the personal property. Public utility real and tangible personal property
taxes collected in one calendar year are levied in October of the preceding calendar year on assessed values
determined as of January 1 of that preceding year, the lien date.

The County Treasurer bills and collects property taxes on behalf of all taxing districts in Cuyahoga County
including the County. Taxes are payable semi-annually. The County's practice is to extend the statutory due dates to
January and July. Unpaid taxes become delinquent after December 31 of the year they are due. Foreclosure
proceedings may be initiated by the County Prosecutor if delinquent taxes are not paid within one year.

The County Auditor periodically remits portions of the taxes collected to all taxing districts. The final
settlements of real and public utility property taxes are made in June and November and tangible taxes in July and
December for the first and second halves of the year, respectively.
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The County accrues property taxes as receivables since they can be measured and recorded when an
enforceable legal claim exists. The receivables are also recorded as deferred revenue since they are recorded in
advance of the year for which they are levied. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they
are levied.

Property tax revenues were recorded in the following funds in 2001:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
GENETAI TUN ... $ 22,646
Special Revenue funds ........ccccooeiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeeeee, 217,629
Debt Service fund..........ooeveeeeeiiiiiceeee e, 19,335
Total property tax revenues...........ccooeeeveeieieeeeneciiieeen. $ 259,610

Property tax revenues include levies collected from both the current levy and delinquent levies. The
cumulative delinquency as of December 31, 2001 for Cuyahoga County was $33.0 million. The delinquent property
tax revenue was not recorded in the financial statements due to the uncertainty of collection. Recording the
delinquency would not have an impact on the fund balances of the County since it would be offset by a reserve for
doubtful accounts.

The delinquent property taxes described above do not include certain receivables that have been sold to a
third party. Since 1998, the County has sold, on a nonrecourse basis, certain qualifying, delinquent real estate tax
receivables, along with the related liens, to a third party in exchange for cash payments that approximated the face
value of the receivables. In connection with the sale of the receivables, the third party obtained the right to foreclose
on the related properties, as well as charge interest and certain fees on the delinquent amounts. The cash payments
received by the County were credited to the County’s Undivided Tax Agency fund and distributed to the various
taxing districts within the County (including the County) in the same manner as if the delinquent receivables had been
collected directly from the taxpayers.
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NOTE N - Segment Information for Enterprise Funds and Component Unit

The County maintains four Enterprise funds which provide sanitary sewer, airport, parking, and regional
crime information services. The County also has a component unit which operates as a hospital (see Note A).
Segment information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2001, follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Cuyahoga
. Huntington County Total,
Sanjtary Count; ar Information Enterprise Component
Engineer Airpor Garage System Funds nit

Operating reVeNUES ..........cccceuevevinererenenss $ 9,065 $ 678 $ 2,543 $ 2,547 $ 14,833 $ 434,235
Operating expenses

before depreciation ............c.cccoeeveenen. 9,230 842 1,476 2,510 14,058 449,970
Depreciation..........cccoovevieieiiieieciecieene 1,340 _420 533 1 2,294 32,300
Operating iNcCOMe(I0SS) .......cccevevrveerieuennns (1,505) (584) 534 36 (1,519) (48,035)
Nonoperating revenues(expenses)

other than grants-net. (365) (365) 8,967
Operating grants 5,829
Operating transfers in...........ccccoecevvviennn, 158 1,415 1,573 25,050
Operating transfers out.............ccccccceeine (646) (50) (696)
Current capital contributions...................... 1,859 137 3,597 5,593
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle I I - P 1,232

Net income(loss) (11) (289) 3,485 1,401 4,586 (6,957)
Property, plant and equipment:

AddItioNS ...oeveeiii e 4,313 220 3,597 8,130 20,471

DispoSitions........cccevvviiiiiiiiiiie e 1,957 1,957 487
Net working capital ...........ccoceovvreiineccnnne 1,706 (90) 767 1,322 3,705 6,083
Total @ssets .......cccveirriiincecccene 43,868 8,810 5,716 1,511 59,905 583,930
Bonds and other long-term liabilities:

Payable from operating revenues........ 9,007 19 9,026 250,959
Total fund equity 26,511 8,644 5,565 1,307 42,027 236,534
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NOTE O - Other Intergovernmental Revenue

A summary of the principal components of other intergovernmental revenue for the year ended December
31, 2001 follows:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
General fund:
State Public Defender reimbursement............cccccovvveieennnss $ 5,999
State property tax reimbursement................ccooo e 3,431
OthEr ... 721
Total General fund...........c.coooiiiiiiiiie e $ 10,151
Special Revenue funds:
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development....... $ 15,328
U.S. Department of Justice............cccoeveiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeees 15,879
Federal and State mental health and retardation............... 159,379
Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
AdICtioN SEIVICES ....oeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 20,697
Ohio Department of Job and Family Services.................... 333,747
Ohio Department of Rehabilitation and Corrections........... 4,051
Ohio Department of Transportation .............cccceeeveerinineen. 476
Ohio Department of Youth Services .......ccccccevvvvvvvviviirnnnnns 1,186
State property tax reimbursement................coooo e 14,660
OthEr .. s 5,374
Total Special Revenue funds..............cccooeeiiiie $ 570,777
Debt Service fund:
State property tax reimbursement...............cccoceeiiiiiiinnns $ 3,562
Capital Projects fund:
Ohio Department of Job and Family Services.................... $ 2,404
Ohio Department of Mental Retardation.............ccccceeennn. 93
Ohio Department of Transportation ..........ccccceeeeiiiiieieiennnn. 18,778
OthEr e 5,928
Total Capital Projects fund ............ccceeovviiviiiiiieceecee e $ 27,203

NOTE P - Interfund Transactions

During the normal course of operations, the County has numerous transactions between funds which
include operating and residual equity transfers. Operating transfers are transfers of resources from a fund receiving
revenue to a fund through which those resources will be expended. Residual equity transfers are non-routine, non-
recurring transfers of equity between funds, usually transfers of residual balances of discontinued funds.

Operating transfers are recorded as other financing sources (uses) in Governmental funds and as
nonoperating revenues (expenses) in Proprietary funds. Residual equity transfers are recorded separately as an
adjustment to beginning fund balance in Governmental funds and as an adjustment to contributed capital or retained
earnings, as appropriate, for Proprietary funds.
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A summary of interfund transfers by fund type follows for the year ended December 31, 2001:

(Amounts in 000's)

Fund Type Transfer From
Special Capital Internal
Transfer To General  Revenue Projects Enterprise Services Total
Operating Transfers:
General.......ccoveeeccieeiee e $ $ 658 $ 6,000 $ $ $ 6,658
Special Revenue..........cccccvvvvvnnnee. 61,906 160,563 24 50 222,543
Debt Service .....cccevveieeeeiiee. 10,677 646 11,323
Capital Projects.......ccccceeviiiiinneee. 1,408 6,576 600 8,584
Enterprise ......ccccccveeiiiiiiiiiieeeee 1,573 1,573
Internal Service.......cccccceevveveeenennn. 214 214
Component Unit...........ccccvvveennnn. 6,835 18,215 o _ _25,050
Total Operating Transfers ................. $82613 $186,012 $ 6,024 $ 696 $ 600 $275,945
Residual Equity Transfers:
General.......c.ccooeveeieieece e, $ $ 68 $ $ $ $ 68
Special Revenue...........ccccuveeee... . 28 22 . . _50
Total Residual Equity Transfers......... $ 0 3 96 $ 22 $ 0 $ 0 $ 118
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NOTE Q - Transactions with Gateway

In 1990, the County, the city of Cleveland and Gateway Economic Development Corporation of Greater
Cleveland (Gateway) entered into a three party agreement which authorized Gateway to construct, own and provide
for the operation of a sports facility which included a baseball stadium, an arena and a joint development site.
Gateway was incorporated on May 31, 1990 and is a governmental not-for-profit corporation legally separate from
any other entity.

The County and Gateway also entered into a revolving loan agreement whereby the County agreed to issue
bonds and loan the bond proceeds to Gateway to pay arena construction costs. As part of this agreement, the County
issued taxable Economic Development Revenue Bonds of $75 million on September 24, 1992 and $45 million on
February 1, 1994. At December 31, 2001, the County has $106 million of debt outstanding relating to these bond
issues (See Note G).

The amount due from Gateway under the revolving loan agreement is $170.3 million at December 31, 2001,
including unpaid accrued interest. During 2001, Gateway repaid the County over $2 million and the remaining amount
is fully reserved due to the uncertainty of the repayment from Gateway.

The County, Gateway and the Convention and Visitors Bureau of Greater Cleveland (the Bureau) entered
into a cooperative agreement on September 15, 1992, which included a provision that allowed a credit to be given to
Gateway for the incremental amount the Bureau receives from the County Transient Occupancy Tax to use as
payment to the County for the bonds issued. This agreement was amended on December 22, 1998 to redefine the
annual incremental credit and to provide for the deposit by the Bureau for the years 1994 through 1998. The County
received $1 million from this agreement during the year ended December 31, 1999. The County will receive $.2
million during each subsequent year, subject to certain adjustments. The County received $.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001.

The County has also guaranteed the repayment of certain bonds issued by Gateway. See Note G for the
details of the County’s guarantee.

NOTE R - Loans

Loans receivable represent economic development and property rehabilitation loans outstanding under the
Federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and various other grant and development programs. The
loans are either non-interest bearing or have below market interest rates and are made to qualifying citizens and
businesses for rehabilitation of real property within the County. The loans are secured by mortgages against the
individual properties and generally have various repayment terms which may extend over several years.
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Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Title

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed Through the Ohio Department of Education:
Food Distribution
National School Lunch Program
National School Lunch Program
Total Child Nutrition Cluster
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed Through the Ohio Department of Education:
CCBMR Title VI-B School Age Grant
CCBMR Title VI-B School Age Grant
Total
CCBMR Title VI-B Preschool Grant
CCBMR Title VI-B Preschool Grant
Total
Total Special Education Cluster

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Rehabilitation
Services Commission:
Rehabilitation Services - Vocational Rehabilitation Grants to States
Total

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
Addiction Services:
Drug Free Schools
Total
Total U.S. Department of Education

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
Passed Through the Ohio Department of Development:
Home Weatherization Assistance Program
Home Weatherization Assistance Program
Home Weatherization Assistance Program
Home Weatherization Assistance Program
Total
Stripper
Stripper
Exxon
Exxon
Total
Total U.S. Department of Energy

(1) Federal CFDA number could not be identified.

Federal
CFDA
Number

10.550
10.555
10.555

84.027
84.027

84.173
84.173

84.126

84.186

81.042
81.042
81.042
81.042

(1
(1
(1
(M

Pass-Through
Grantor
Number

N/A
IRN66563
IRN66597

066563-6B-SF-01P
066563-6B-SF-02P

066563-PG-S1-01P
066563-PG-S1-02P

Title I

N/A

D-98-109
D-99-109
D-00-109
D-01-109

MDL-378
MDL-378
MDL-378
MDL-378

Grant

Expenditures

$

7,333
519,945

135,327

662,605

662,605

259,365
203,076

462,441

62,885

54,703

117,588

580,029

760,050

760,050

225,000

225,000

1,565,079

37

(37)
90,270
193,605

283,875

37
(37)
140,544

1,739

142,283

426,158

(Continued)
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Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Title

FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY
Passed Through the Ohio Disaster Services:
Emergency Management
Total
Passed Through the Ohio Department of Public Safety:
ODPP Training Aids 2001
Total
Total Federal Emergency Management Agency

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Direct Programs:
Post TANF Tracking Grant

Ryan White HIV Emergency Relief Project
Ryan White HIV Emergency Relief Project
Ryan White HIV Emergency Relief Project
Ryan White HIV Emergency Relief Project
Total HIV Cluster
Total

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Job
and Family Services:
Treatment Services PRC
Out of School Initiative
Total

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Development:
Home Energy Assistance Program
Home Energy Assistance Program
Home Energy Assistance Program
Home Energy Assistance Program
Total

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Alcohol
and Drug Addiction Services:
Prevention & Treatment of
Substance Abuse Block Grant

TASCFY’01

TASCFY’02
Total

Medicaid Assistance Program - Title XIX
Total

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Mental Health Services:
Social Services Block Grant - Title XX
Medicaid Assistance Program - Title XIX
Community Mental Health Services Block Grant
Total

Federal
CFDA
Number

83.530

83.552

93.239

93.914
93.914
93.914
93.914

93.558
93.558

93.568
93.568
93.568
93.568

93.959
93.959
93.959

93.778

93.667
93.778
93.958

Pass-Through
Grantor
Number

34 - 6000.817

H-536

98ASPE-305A

BRH-890045-03-0

2H89HA00045-06

H89-HA-00045-04
6H89HA00045-03-1

N/A
N/A

H-98-109
H-99-109
H-00-109
H-01-109

N/A

18-2962-00-TASC-T-01-9196
18-2962-00-TASC-T-02-9196

N/A

MH12
N/A
MHI12

Grant
Expenditures

88,809

88,809

4,694

4,694

93,503

22,438

(33)
1,784,460
3,327

1,231,697

3,019,451

3,041,889

27,948
398,487
426,435

37
(37
109,907
403,315
513,222

9,524,133
496,445
367,453

10,388,031

4,012,690

14,400,721

1,268,854
32,601,724
399,280
34,269,858

(Continued)
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Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Title

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Mental Retardation
and Developmental Disabilities:
Social Services Block Grant - Title XX
Medicaid Assistance Program - Title XIX
Total
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Direct Programs:

CDBG - Entitlement and (HUD-Administered) Small Cities Cluster

Emergency Shelter

Supportive Housing Program

Shelter Plus Care Program

CDBG Home Investment Partnership Program

Youthbuild Grant Program

Special Initiative Grant - Project East

Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control in Privately-Owned Housing
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Passed Through the Olffice of Criminal Justice Services:
State Criminal Alien Assistance Program
Ohio Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant
Vertical Prosecution - JAIBG FY2001
Vertical Prosecution - JAIBG FY2002
Evening Reporting Program
Total
Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant Administration
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention FY ‘98 Admin
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Block Grant FY ‘98
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Title V Block
Subgrant FY’98
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Title V Block
Subgrant FY*99
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Title IT Block
Subgrant FY*99
Total
Internet Crimes
Total

Federal
CFDA
Number

93.667
93.778

14.218
14.231
14.235
14.238
14.239
14.243
14.246
14.900

16.606
16.523
16.523
16.523
16.523
16.523
16.523

16.540

16.540

16.540

16.540

16.540

16.540

16.542

Pass-Through
Grantor
Number

MR-18-01
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

2001-AP-DX-1157
98-JB-D13-A053
1999-JB-013-0789
2000-JB-RPU-0700
99-1B-004-A107
00-JB-004-A107
1999-1B-002-A122

1999-JB-RPU-0709
98-JJ-ADM-0320
98-JJ-RPU-0785
98-JV-RPU-0786

1999-JV-RPU-0796

99-1J-RPU-0795

2000MCCXKO016

Grant
Expenditures

1,235,075

13,729,299

14,964,374

67,616,499

5,225,389
125,537
3,677,358
4,438,250
2,076,900
54,096
177,246
981,456

16,756,232

438,023

(17)

116,063
54,822
29,196
46,802
43,204

290,070

98,434
15,000
89,315
12,341
77,349

67,013

359,452

67,514

1,155,059

(Continued)
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Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Title

Passed Through the Olffice of Criminal Justice Services:
Aggression Control Training Program FY '99
Education and Employment Grant FY 99
Education and Employment Grant FY ‘98
Byrne Memorial Block Grant FY’97
2000 Youth Violence Therapy
2000 DV Survivors Project
FY’99 Byrne Administration
Narcotics Control Block Grant FY 98
Narcotics Control Block Grant FY ‘99
2000 Aggression Control Program
2000 Education and Employment
Forensic Training FY ‘99
Cognitive Education Project FY ‘00
Cuyahoga AFIS Upgrade
Youth Violence Therapy FY’01
Community Prosecution FY 01
DV Survivors Project FY’01
Polygraphing Sex Offenders FY'01
Gang Awareness FY'01
Byrne Administration FY’01
Narcotics Control Block Sub-Grant FY’00
RSAT Therapeutic Community
Children Who Witness Violence FY’01
2001 Aggression Control Program
2001 Education and Employment
Trace Evidence Study - FY’01
Cognitive Education Project FY’01
Unified Criminal History Project
C3JIS Planning Grant FY'01
Domestic Violence Tracking FY'01
Gang Awareness FY'00
Trace Evidence Study FY'99
Sex Offender Grant Management

Total Byrne Memorial Programs

Violence Against Women Act (VAWA)

Cleveland Prosecutor Violence Against Women Project
VAWA Block Subgrant FY ‘97

VAWA Block Subgrant FY ‘98

VAWA Coordinated Response - Cleveland Rape Crisis
VAWA Inter-Jurisdictional

VAWA Inter-Jurisdictional FY’01

VAWA Block Subgrant FY '99

VAWA Administration Funds FY'99

Federal
CFDA
Number

16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579
16.579

16.588
16.588
16.588
16.588
16.588
16.588
16.588
16.588
16.588

Pass-Through
Grantor
Number

98-DG-FO2-7467
98-DG-FO2-7407
97-DG-FO2-7407
97-DG-RPU-0777
99-DG-FO2-7429
99-DG-D02-7426
99-DG-ADM-7431
98-DG-RPU-0787
98-DG-RPU-0797
99-DG-D02-7467
99-DG-D02-7407
98-DG-GO3-7455
98-DG-GO2-7400
98-DG-GO1-7172
00-DG-FO2-7429
00-DG-BO1-7415
00-DG-D0O2-7426
00-DG-FO2-7432
00-DG-GO3-7413
00-DG-ADM-7431
00-DG-RPU-0707
99-RS-SAT-120
00-DG-D0O2-7472
00-DG-FO2-7467
00-DG-D0O2-7407
00-DG-GO2-7411
00-DG-GO2-7400
99-DG-GO1-9071
98-DG-GO1-7471
00-DG-FO2-7469
99-DG-G03-7413
99-DG-G02-7411
99-WP-VX-0007

96-WF-VA7-8673
96-WF-VA2-8670
97-WF-RPU-0778
98-WF-RPU-0788
96-WF-VAS5-8676
99-WF-VA1-8677
00-WF-VA1-8677
99-WF-RPU-0798
99-WF-VAW-8668

Grant
Expenditures

63
26
(12,172)
437
2,348
(9,078)
28,338
53,240
111,548
(8,873)
362
171
7,942
276,241
43,622
91,685
57,719
41,281
2,370
48,006
438,290
87,184
14,405
59,892
67,556
14,815
27,779
109,591
157,039
76,340
548
622
6,894

1,796,231

298
169
102,660
19,685
107
19,751
27,784
381,064
16,322

(Continued)
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Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Title

VAWA Block Subgrant FY ‘00
VAWA Administration Funds
Total Violence Against Women Programs

Direct Programs:

Domestic Preparedness Program

Planning and Implementing Strategies in
Community Prosecution

Federal Drug Court - Juvenile
Greater Cleveland Drug Court Implementation
Total

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant FY’98
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant FY’99
Total

Protection Order Registry
Total
Total U.S. Department of Justice

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Workforce Investment Act of 1998 Passed Through the Ohio
Department of Job and Family Services:
WIA Administration
WIA Adult
Total
WIA Administration
WIA Youth
Total
WIA Administration
WIA Dislocated Worker
WIA Rapid Response
Total

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Youth Services:
Youthful Offender Education and Training

Total U.S. Department of Labor

Federal

CFDA

Number

16.588
16.588

16.007

16.580

16.585

16.585

16.592
16.592

16.858

17.258
17.258

17.259
17.259

17.260

17.260
17.260

17.249

Pass-Through
Grantor
Number

00-WF-RPU-0708
00-WF-ADM-8668

00-TE-CX-0091
00-PP-CX-0030
99-DC-VX-0060

97-DC-VX--0106

1999-LBVX-6867
1999-LBVX-8228

97-WE-VX-0101

None
None

None
None

None

None
None

F-7542-9-00-50-60

Grant
Expenditures

53,217
1,486

622,543

299,526

188,176

168,828
21,067

189,895

765
179,806

180,571

174,845

1,033,013

4,606,846

59,283
617,148

676,431

61,654
651,497

713,151

116,194
1,128,231
88,696

1,333,121

295,506

295,506

3,018,209

(Continued)
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Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/Program Title

U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Passed Through the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency
Brownfield's Reclamation

Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Direct Program:
County Airport - Airport Improvement Program

Passed Through the Ohio Department of Transportation:
ODOT - LPA/Chagrin River Bridge
ODOT - LPA/Cedar Road
ODOT - LPA/Cochran Road Relocation
ODOT - LPA/East 200th Street
ODOT - LPA/East 71st Street #212
ODOT - LPA/Hilliard Road
ODOT - LPA/Lakewood Heights Boulevard
ODOT - LPA/Lee Road
ODOT - LPA/Richmond Road Bridge #136
ODOT - LPA/Smith Road
ODOT - LPA/Turney Road Reconstruction
ODOT - LPA/West 220th Street
ODOT - LPA/West 117th Street Project
Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster

Passed Through the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency:

Hazardous Materials Emergency Preparation Training
Total U.S. Department of Transportation

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

See notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Federal
CFDA
Number

66.802

20.106

20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205

20.703

Pass-Through
Grantor
Number

V005944-01-9

3-39-0021-1201

G000414
G990529
G990326
G990484
G990653
G000617

G000194-95

G010(127)
G990427
G010(039)
G000190
F973(124)
G000015

HMEOHS8016060

Grant
Expenditures

15,607

15,607

2,667

613,214
700,550
397,870
279,992
173,578
185,190

3,218,157
111,888

19,335
966,876

5,055,715

263,650

8,061,696

20,047,711

20,050,378

22,296

20,072,674

$ 114,833,412

(Concluded)

53



CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

1.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”) reflects the expenditures of
the primary government of Cuyahoga County, Ohio, (as defined by GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity) under programs financed by the U.S. government for the year ended December 31, 2001.
The Schedule has been prepared using the cash basis of accounting. For purposes of the Schedule, federal
awards include the following:

Direct federal awards
Pass-through funds received from non-federal organizations made under
federally sponsored programs conducted by those organizations.

The information presented in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance (CFDA) Numbers or Primary Grant Numbers are presented for those programs for which such
numbers are available.

The County’s general-purpose financial statements include the operations of MetroHealth System, a discretely
presented component unit, which expended $6,790,082 in federal awards during the year ended December 31,
2001. These expenditures are not included in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
for the year ended December 31, 2001 because MetroHealth System had a separate audit performed in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

As shown in the table below, the County had loans receivable outstanding at December 31, 2001 under the
Community Development Block Grant (“CDBG”) Entitlement and Home Investment Partnership programs.
All of the loans outstanding at December 31, 2001 pertained to federal awards received by the County, or
program income associated with these awards, and provided as loans to eligible recipients in prior years.

The loan balances detailed below were not included in federal expenditures presented in the accompanying
Schedule because the provisions of the grant agreements pertaining to such loans do not require the repayment
of the grant monies to the federal government. The loans outstanding at December 31, 2001 under federal
grant programs were as follows:

Loan Amounts
Outstanding at

Federal December 31,
Program Title CFDA No. 2001
CDBG - Entitlement and (HUD-Administered) Small Cities Cluster 14.218 $10,429,881
CDBG Home Investment Partnership program 14.239 3,779,646

$14.209,527

SUBRECIPIENTS

Certain funds are passed through to subgrantee organizations by the County. Expenditures incurred by the
subgrantees and reimbursed by the County are included in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards.
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

4. MEDICAID ASSISTANCE PROGRAM - TITLE XIX

The total amount expended by the County during 2001 under the Title XIX Medicaid Assistance Program
(CFDA No. 93.778) is summarized as follows:

Amount
Passed Through From Expended
Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services $ 4,012,690
Ohio Department of Mental Health Services 32,601,724
Ohio Department of Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities 13,729,299
Total $ 50,343,713

5. TITLE XX SOCIAL SERVICES BLOCK GRANT

The total amount expended by the County during 2001 under the Title XX Social Services Block Grant
(CFDA No. 93.667) is summarized as follows:

Amount
Passed Through From Expended
Ohio Department of Mental Health Services $1,268,854
Ohio Department of Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities 1,235,075
Total $2,503.929
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Deloitte & Touche LLP

Suite 2500

127 Public Square
Cleveland, Ohio 44114-1303

[}
Tel: (216) 589-1300 DeIO|tte
o . it com &Touche

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON THE AUDIT
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable County Auditor,
County Treasurer and the

Board of County Commissioners
Cuyahoga County, Ohio

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of Cuyahoga County, Ohio (the “County”) as of and

for the year ended December 31, 2001, and have issued our report thereon dated June 7, 2002, which contained
explanatory paragraphs describing the implementation of new accounting pronouncements by the County and

its discretely presented component unit, MetroHealth System. We did not audit the financial statements of the
discretely presented component unit. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report

has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the discretely presented
component unit, MetroHealth System, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit

in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit
and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances

of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to the management of the
County in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Status of Prior Year Comments on
Internal Control and Legal Compliance, Summary of Other Report, and a separate letter dated June 7, 2002.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over financial reporting in order
to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to
provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over
financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that
might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more
of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts
that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters
involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.
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However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to the
management of the County in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Status of Prior Year
Comments on Internal Control and Legal Compliance, Summary of Other Report and a separate letter dated June 7,
2002.

The comments and conclusions included in this report relate solely to the County’s primary government (as defined by
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity). We understand that the
comments and conclusions of the other auditors pertaining to the County’s discretely presented component unit,
MetroHealth System, regarding compliance and internal control over financial reporting have been separately
communicated to you.

This report is intended for the information and use of the Board of County Commissioners, County Auditor, County
Treasurer, management, federal awarding agencies, pass-through entities and the Auditor of the State of Ohio and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

OJM v Taunche coP

June 7, 2002
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM

The Honorable County Auditor,
County Treasurer and the

Board of County Commissioners
Cuyahoga County, Ohio

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Cuyahoga County, Ohio (the “County”) with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2001. The
County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the County’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the County’s compliance based on our audit.

The County’s general-purpose financial statements include the operations of MetroHealth System, a discretely
presented component unit, which expended $6,790,082 in federal awards during the year ended December 31, 2001.
These expenditures are not included in the County’s Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards for the year ended
December 31, 2001. Our audit, described below, did not include the operations of MetroHealth System because the
component unit engaged other auditors to perform an audit in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the County’s compliance with those
requirements.

As described in finding 00-1 in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, the County did not
comply with the Davis-Bacon Act requirements that are applicable to its Highway Planning & Construction Cluster.
Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the County to comply with requirements
applicable to that program.
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In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, the County, complied, in all
material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs
for the year ended December 31, 2001.

The results of our auditing procedures also disclosed other instances of noncompliance with those requirements that
are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as findings 99-1 and 01-1.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning
and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over compliance with requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

We noted a matter involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be a
reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant
deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over compliance that, in our judgment, could
adversely affect the County’s ability to administer a major federal program in accordance with applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. The reportable condition is described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as finding 00-1.

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited
may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all
reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we consider finding 00-1 to be a
material weakness.

This report is intended for the information and use of the Board of County Commissioners, County Auditor, County
Treasurer, management, federal awarding agencies, pass-through entities and the Auditor of the State of Ohio and is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

June 7, 2002
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Summary of Auditors’ Results

Type of Report Issued on the Financial Statements as of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2001 -
Unqualified.

Reportable Conditions in Internal Control Disclosed by the Audit of the Financial Statements -
N/A (none reported).

Noncompliance Noted that is Material to the Financial Statements - N/A (none reported).

A Reportable Condition in Internal Control Over Major Federal Award Programs was Disclosed
by the Audit of the Financial Statements - see Finding 00-1, which was also considered to be a
material weakness in internal control.

Type of Report Issued on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Major Federal Award
Programs - Qualified.

The audit disclosed three audit findings which are required to be reported under Section .510(a)
of OMB Circular A-133.

Major Federal Award Programs Identified for the Year Ended December 31, 2001:

e CFDA #14.235 Supportive Housing Program

e CFDA #14.238 Shelter Plus Care Program

e CFDA #16.579 Byrne Memorial Programs

e CFDA #20.205 Highway Planning and Construction Cluster

e CFDA #93.667 Social Services Block Grant

e CFDA #93.778 Medicaid Assistance Program

e CFDA #93.914 Ryan White HIV Emergency Relief Project

e CFDA #93.959 Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse Block Grant

Dollar Threshold Used to Distinguish Between Type A and Type B Programs - $3,000,000.

The County was not considered to be a Low Risk Auditee as defined under OMB Circular A-133.

Findings Related to the Financial Statements that are Required to be Reported Under Government
Auditing Standards:

None
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Findings and Questioned Costs Relating to Federal Awards

Finding No:

Program Name:

CFDA #:

Compliance Area:

99-1
Byme Formula Grant
Title XX Social Services Block Grant

16.579
93.667

Monitoring Subrecipients

Condition: During all or a portion of 2001, the subrecipients of the Department of Justice
Affairs and the Cuyahoga County Mental Health Board (“CCMHB”’) were not submitting
their monthly reports timely to the respective agencies.

Criteria: As stipulated in the Fiscal Guidelines of the Byrne Formula Grant and the Title
XX Social Services Block Grant, all monthly reports are to be received by the 10™ day of

the following month to enable the Department of Justice Affairs and CCMHB to prepare an
accurate quarterly report by the 15™ day following the end of the quarter. According to the
Title XX Social Services Block Grant requirements, subrecipients’ Single Audit Reports are
to be received by the granting agency within six months of year-end for proper monitoring of
the subrecipients’ activities. Additionally, OMB Circular A-133 specifies that the primary
recipient is responsible for determining whether a subrecipient expends the federal award in
accordance with the applicable federal laws and regulations. Additionally, the primary
recipient is responsible for ensuring audits are performed and prompt corrective action is taken
on any audit findings.

Cause and Effect: During all or a portion of 2001, there was no effective monitoring of the
submission of monthly reports of the subrecipients. Failure to receive these reports resulted
in insufficient monitoring of the subrecipients.

Questioned Costs: None

Recommendation: The Department of Justice Affairs and the CCMHB need to promptly
follow-up delinquent submissions to ensure that all reports are received according to the
guidelines.
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Management’s Response and Corrective Action Plan:

Cuyahoga County Mental Health Board - During the second half of 2001, the CCMHB
implemented the following:

e The provider agency contract now requires that the audit report be submitted 30 days after
completion or five months after the end of the contract service provider’s fiscal year being
reported, whichever is sooner.

e The CCMHB has established a Quality Improvement and Monitoring Committee. This
committee is made up of a group of the Board of Trustees. Contract service providers that
are delinquent must come before this committee to present the reasons for their delinquent
submission. The Quality Improvement and Monitoring Committee meets the second
Monday of each month.

e The CCMHB also reserves the right via its service provider contract to suspend agency
funds based upon the contract service provider’s failure to submit the required audit
within the required timelines.

e The CCMHB notifies agencies 30 days before their audit report is due as a reminder of
the due date and what they are required to submit.

As a result of the corrective actions noted above, only one agency continues to be delinquent
in providing the audit within the required time frame. This agency has been presented to the
CCMHB’s Quality Improvement and Monitoring Committee for review and follow up.

County Contact Person: Mark Jones, Finance Director

Anticipated Completion Date: July 31, 2002

Department of Justice Affairs - Effective January 1, 2002, the Department of Justice Affairs
will continue to send certified late notification letters to subrecipients who have failed to
submit their monthly financial reports by the 10" day of each month. These letters stress

the importance of maintaining fiscal compliance, that reimbursement will not be released
without the submission of outstanding monthly financial reports, and that failure to comply
could jeopardize future funding. The Cuyahoga County Criminal Justice Services Supervisory
Board will continue to support holding reimbursements as delays harm the subrecipients cash
position under the reimbursement process. Additionally, the Byrne Formula Grant Committee
will be advised of all projects that have demonstrated continual non-compliance. Another
alternative being considered is developing a scoring component which could be utilized during
the application review process to penalize subrecipients who have demonstrated continual
non-compliance.

County Contact Person: Greg Dickerhoof, Business Services Manager

Anticipated Completion Date: July 31, 2002
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Finding No:
Program Name:
CFDA No:

Compliance Area:

00-1

Highway Planning and Construction Cluster
20.205

Davis-Bacon Act

Condition: During the first half of 2001, the County Engineer’s Department (“County
Engineer”) did not request payrolls from contractors to determine if contractors are paying
prevailing wages.

Criteria: In accordance with 40 USC 276a through 276a-7, all laborers and mechanics
employed by contractors or subcontractors to work on construction contracts in excess of
$2,000 financed by Federal assistance funds must be paid prevailing wage rates.

Cause and Effect: Even though the County Engineer included a prevailing wage rate clause
and the prevailing wage rates for laborers and mechanics in construction contracts, the County
Engineer did not request payroll submissions from contractors during the first half of 2001 to
ensure that prevailing wages were being paid.

Questioned Costs: None

Recommendation: For appropriate monitoring, the County Engineer should request
contractors to submit payroll records for construction projects. The County Engineer should
designate appropriate personnel to review the payroll submissions and compare the contractor
wage rates to prevailing wage rates.

Management’s Response and Corrective Action Plan: During the second half of 2001,
the County Engineer designated two individuals to be responsible for compliance with the
Davis-Bacon Act. The current process includes organizing and maintaining a file of
contractor payroll registers for each project. From this file, random samples are selected to
ensure compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act. The random samples are compared to current
prevailing wage reports issued by the State of Ohio for accuracy. The chosen samples are
clearly marked with a unique stamp. Additionally, a Project Bid Manual was issued by the
Prevailing Wage department, which indicates the contractor responsibility for the payroll
reports.

Finally, the County Engineer has been reviewing various types of software used to track
and monitor contractor payrolls. Within the next two years, the County Engineer intends
to implement a tracking software to ensure contractor payrolls are in compliance with the
Davis-Bacon Act.

County Contact Person: Mike Bryne, Prevailing Wage Coordinator

Anticipated Completion Date: December 31, 2003
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Finding No:

Program Name:

CFDA No:

Compliance Area:

01-1

Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse Block Grant
Medicaid Assistance Program - Title XIX

93.959
93.778

Monitoring Subrecipients

Condition: The Alcohol & Drug Addiction Services Board (“ADASB”) and the Cuyahoga
County Mental Health Board (“CCMHB”) are not receiving certain subrecipient Single Audit
reports within six months after year-end.

Additionally, the ADASB has not completed the Ohio Department of Alcohol & Drug
Addiction Services (“ODADAS”) Provider Audit Review Checklist for subrecipients with
a year end of June 30, October 31, or December 31, during 2001.

Criteria: Circular A-133 states that grantees and subgrantees that expend $300,000 or

more federal funds shall have audits made by an independent auditor in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards. Audit reports are to be received by the granting agency
within six months of year-end for proper monitoring of the subrecipients’ activities.
Additionally, OMB Circular A-133 specifies that the primary recipient is responsible for
determining whether a subrecipient expends the federal award in accordance with the
applicable federal laws and regulations. Additionally, the primary recipient is responsible
for ensuring audits are performed and prompt corrective action is taken on any audit findings.

ODADAS Compliance Audit Guidelines require each agency receiving ODADAS funds to
have a complete and signed Provider Audit Review Checklist filed with ODADAS.

Cause and Effect: There is ineffective monitoring of subrecipients through inconsistent
receipt of Single Audit reports and the failure to complete the Provider Audit Review
Checklist.

Questioned Costs: None

Recommendation: ADASB and CCMHB should consider steps to enforce the timely
submission of the required audit reports by subrecipients.

ADASB should complete the Provider Audit Review Checklist and file the checklist with
ODADAS within 30 days of receipt of the subrecipient audit report.
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

Management’s Response and Corrective Action Plan:

Alcohol & Drug Addiction Services Board - ADASB has been unable to follow-up on
subrecipient Single Audit reports and complete Provider Audit Review Checklists due to the
transition of Bill Tobin into his new position as Director of Finance. Follow-up and review
procedures will be implemented during 2002.

County Contact Person: Bill Tobin, Director of Finance

Anticipated Completion Date: July 31, 2002

Cuyahoga County Board of Mental Health - The CCMHB has identified the contract agencies
that continue to be delinquent in submitting their audit reports by the due date. CCMHB staff
have implemented a process of providing agencies 30 days before their audit report is due a
reminder of the due date and what they are required to submit. It also has established a
Quality Improvement and Monitoring Committee (the “Committee””) which receives monthly
updates. Contract service providers that are delinquent must come before the Committee to
present the reasons for their delinquent submission. The Committee meets the first

Wednesday of each month.
County Contact Person: Ralph Pietak, Accountant
Date Completed: June 30, 2002
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR
COMMENTS ON INTERNAL CONTROL AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE

INTERNAL CONTROL AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE

Prior Year Finding (99-1) - Under the Byrne Formula Grant and the Title XX Social Services Block
Grant programs, the subrecipients of grants provided by the Department of Justice Affairs and the Board
of Mental Health, respectively, are not submitting their monthly reports timely to the respective
agencies. The Board of Mental Health is also not receiving the yearly Single Audit Reports from
subrecipients within six months after year-end.

Current Year Status - During 2001, the Department of Justice Affairs sent letters by certified mail to
subrecipients who had not submitted their monthly financial reports to the agency; however, certain
subrecipients are still failing to submit monthly reports on a timely basis. Subrecipients that fail to
submit their monthly financial reports will not be reimbursed until the monthly financial report is
received. The Board of Mental Health revised its subrecipient contract to require audit reports to be
received within 30 days of completion or five months after the subrecipient’s year-end, whichever is
earlier. The Board of Mental Health is not receiving certain subrecipient audit reports within this
timeframe. This finding is repeated in this Single Audit Report.

Prior Year Finding (99-2) - Work and Training Rehabilitation Services does not maintain a fixed asset
inventory listing for items purchased by the subrecipients of the grant funds. In addition, no site visits
occur to test the existence of these assets.

Current Year Status - Work and Training Rehabilitation Services performed site visits in July 2001 for
all subrecipients and a complete physical inventory of equipment was conducted. Furthermore, a
reconciliation of equipment records to the physical inventory was completed.

Prior Year Finding (00-1) - The County Engineer’s Department does not request payroll records from
contractors to determine if contractors are paying prevailing wages.

Current Year Status - During the second half of 2001, the County designated two individuals to be
responsible for ensuring compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act. Payroll records received from
contractors are maintained in a file and are randomly sampled to ensure compliance with the prevailing
wage laws. Because these new procedures were not in place during a significant portion of 2001, this
finding is repeated in this Single Audit Report.
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SUMMARY OF OTHER REPORT

CUYAHOGA COUNTY VETERANS SERVICE COMMISSION
PERFORMANCE AUDIT FINDINGS

During March 2002, the Auditor of the State of Ohio issued a report detailing the observations and
recommendations resulting from its performance audit of the Cuyahoga County Veterans Service
Commission. The principal findings resulting from the performance audit relating to internal control
and legal compliance matters were as follows:

Burial for Veterans Program

Observation - The Veterans Service Commission (the “Commission”) offers a $1,000 burial benefit in
lieu of a free grave program that does not fall within the guidelines of Section 5901 of the Ohio Revised
Code (“ORC”). The ORC permits the Commission to provide an amount, not to exceed $1,000, for the
funeral and burial of indigent, honorably discharged veterans that are residents of the County, in lieu of
the deceased being buried in a County-maintained site set aside for veterans. However, the
Commission’s program grants $1,000 to every honorably discharged veteran, regardless of indigence,
and is given without regard to the actual cost of the funeral and burial.

Auditor of State’s Recommended Corrective Action - The Commission should revise its policies and
procedures in this area to comply with the ORC.

Compensation Increases For Commission Members

Observation - Commission members were granted compensation increases while being in office. The
Ohio Attorney General and the County prosecutor have both issued opinions indicating that this is a
violation of the ORC.

Auditor of State’s Recommended Corrective Action - The Commission members should not seek
further increases in their compensation during their term of office. The raises that were given in 2001
should be repaid by the Commission members who received them. The Commission should request an
opinion from the County Prosecutor’s office as to whether raises granted in years prior to 2001 should
also be repaid.

Monitoring of Budgets

Observation - The Commission does not have a formal method in place to develop, review or manage a
budget. The budget that the Commission presents to the Board of County Commissioners does not
contain adequate details to justify requests. In each of the last four years, the Commission has exceeded
its annual appropriation. In 2001, the actual spending exceeded the original budget appropriation by 53
percent.

Auditor of State’s Recommended Corrective Action - The Commission should develop and utilize a
budget as a primary management tool. In addition, the Commission should develop a budget planning
process that ultimately is linked to a strategic plan. Once a budget has been developed and adopted, the
Commission members should make every effort to monitor spending and remain within the original
budget.
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CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO

SUMMARY OF OTHER REPORT

CUYAHOGA COUNTY VETERANS SERVICE COMMISSION
PERFORMANCE AUDIT FINDINGS (CONT.)

Hiring of an Executive Director

Observation - The position titles of the Commission are not in alignment with the ORC. ORC 5901.06
specifies that the Commission should hire an executive director to manage the day-to-day operations of
the Commission. Currently, the Commission members manage the day-to-day operations of the
Commission since the Commission does not have an executive director.

Auditor of State’s Recommended Corrective Action - The Commission should hire an executive
director to remove the Commission members from the day-to-day operations of the Commission.
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June 12, 2002

TO: The Citizens Of The County Of Cuyahoga

We are pleased to present the 2001 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the County of
Cuyahoga. This report provides a full and complete disclosure of the financial position and
operations of the County for the year ended December 31. 2001. My office believes that the data
herein is accurate in all respects and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain a
maximum understanding of the County's financial affairs have been included.

Preparation of this report represents a renewed commitment to the prudent financial management
of Cuyahoga County. The annual report provides Cuyahoga County's elected officials and
managers with accurate and reliable financial information for making the important decisions
affecting the quality and level of service provided to residents of the County.

We are proud that Cuyahoga County has received the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence
in Financial Reporting 17 times from the Government Finance Officers Association. Attainment
of this prestigious award is an annual goal of our office.

I thank Steven C. Letsky, Director of Accounting, and his staff for their efforts in this endeavor.

Respectfully submitted,

Frank Russo
Cuyahoga County Auditor

1219 ONTARIO STREET e CLEVELAND, OHIO 44113-1657 ¢ TELEPHONE (216) 443-7010 @ FAX (216) 443-5090
OHIO RELAY SERVICE (TTY) 1-800-750-0750
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June 12, 2002

Honorable Frank Hussa
Cuyahoge County Auditor

Honorable Jirmmy Dimara
Heonarable Peter Lawson Jones
Honarable Tim MoeCormack
Cuyahoga County Commissionors

Honarable Jameas Rokakis
Cuyahoga Caunly Treasurar

Wea are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the County of Cuyahoga
for the yaar ended December 31, 2001, This ropart contains the financial statements and otker
finarcial and =tatstical data that provide a complete and full disclosure of all materal financial
aspects of the County. The responsibility for the accuracy of all data presented, itz completeness
and fairnezs ol presentaton rasts with the County Acdilors Oflice [specilically the Financial
Raporbing Secian), the Board of County Comimissionars and the County Treasurer's Office,

Thiz & the ninetesnth consecutive year that the County haz issued a Comarehensive Annual
Finanoal Raport (CAFR).  This meporl, which s prepared @ accordancs with aceounting prnciphes
generally accepted o the United States of Amerca, is indicative of the commitment by County
managemant o provide guality financlal information 1o the citizens of the County and abl othar
interestad parties,

The SAFR iz arganized in tree sactionz:. The Inrodustery Section, the Finansal Section and the
Statstical Section. The Intredusteny Saction containg 2 table of contents, letlars of transmittal, the
Certficate of Achwevemeant for Excallenca m Fmancial Beporting for 2000, a het of elecled officials
and an orgamzation charl.  The Fnancial Seclion = soodvided o bwo parls. The Irst parl e the
Genaral Purpoze Fmancial Slalemenls (GPFS). The GREFS include the Audilors cpmion letler, Lhe
comained financial stztemanis and the rotes fo these slatemeants. The ss=cond par of the Finzncial
Section contams supglementzl financial statements znd schedules far he wvarious funds of the
County., The Slalistizal Seclion provides salectsd tinancial, ecanomic end demograznic in‘formation,
which may be used to indicate trends for comparative fiscal perods.

REPORTING ENTITY

ThE_CDunt:.f of Cuyanaga is a political subdivision of the Swate of Chioo I encompasses 59
municipaliizs, villzgss and townsnips. of which Claveland s the largest. The County includes 459
souare miles and hss an estimated population of 1380421, making it one of the largest counties in
the United States. The County provides general governmental services 10 its citizens which include: ©
Sodigl servicss including dnug and alsehal abuze programs and programs far the mentally motardad,
health and community assistance related servces, civil and edminal justice systam services, road
and Bridgs maintenancs and ather genesal adrmstrative support services, The County dperalos
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several enterprise activities including & sewer syslem, an airport, a parking garage and 2 cnme
infaimaton systam. The County alsa operales 3 hospital, which s presented in the financial
stataments as a Digcretely Presented Component Unil.

For financizl reparting purpcses, the entity cansists of the primary government, prganizations for
which the orimary gavernment is finansially accountable and olher arganizalicns for which the nature
and significance of their relationship with the primary government ara such that exclusion could
cause the Countys Gensal Fumpose Financizl Statements to be misleading or incompletc.
Fimancial acceuntability is defined as the appointment of a vabing majority of the component unit's
hoard and either the County's ability to impose i will over the component unit or the possibility that
the companent wnit will provide & financial banefit to or impose 2 finensial burden on the Caunty.

ECOmOIC OUTLOSE

in 2000, Cuyahoga County Auditor Frank Russe performed his state mandated sexennial role as
assessor of all county proparties. Owners of commersial and indusirizl propertios saw their market
yalue for tax purposes jump an average of 20%. Market values for commercial properties rose an
average of 26% while industial properfies rose 14%. Overall, valuss far all properties including
residential increased 11.5%. Property cwners could appeal ax values ta the Board of Revision from
mid Decembar 2000 through March 31, 2001, ©F 38,000 commercial and rndustnal parcels in the
County, 8000 comalaints were filed. Taxes levied on properly assessed in 2000 were callecied in
2001,

An examination of the job market for businesses in Cuyahoga County was nol as encouraging.
Employment for the 2™ guarter 2001 compared to the 2™ quarlar 2000 showed a reduction of 7.8%.
Ower the seven county region employmant droppsd 5.8%.  Initial claims for unemplayment which
peaked following Septemaer 11 have sleadily declined. Plant and office vacancies grew n Z001. A
year of manufacturing |ayofs led to an increase in vecancias in tha industrial markel of 1B.5%. The
vacancy rate in office space rose 3.2% with all areas of the County affected. The averall industrial
and office vacancy rate wes 11 4% and 16%, respecively, Holals were also hit with an incraase in
thair vacancy rate. The drop was 2.8%. The overall hots! occupancy rete was 55.1%.  Despite tha
sconomic downtum, MENS Carp., the credit card company, starled o construct a 150,000 square
toot bulding at its curent complex. The building will be four stenes and heuse 800 employess. |Is
current three building comaolex whish amploys 2,200 people is neanng capacity. b= asimated the
building will cest $25 million.

Thne Rack and Rall Hall of Fame and Museum, which apened in 1995, is proposing a new lizrany and
srchives as the conterpiece of an expansion whicn would connect tha Rock Hall te the Greal Lakes
Science Cenfer. Tha 40,000 sguare fool expansion would include public spaces. classrooms, a
rastaurant ard a muliperpese area. The original area slated to house a library was taken over by
the special evants, marketing and sccounting depsrments. zroundbreaking dales have not b2an
determined nar have costs, The Mew ¥York based Rock and Roll Hall of Fame Foundation, which
oversass the musewm in conjenction with the Cleveland Board, has raisec unspecified funds for the
library and archives. Acdilicnal funding is expected fo be both private and public with the hall likely
o sesk state monies. The goal is to not incur acditional debt.  The averall ecanomic news at the
Rock Hall was mixed. Cperating revenues grow 2.4% whila attendance roze 8.5%, Howsaver, falure
to seoure foundation and sponsership funding has resuttad in layoffs of staff.

The Civic Yision 2000 and Beyand report, & comprehensive plan that will serve as a blueprint for
transforming downtown Clavaland in the 1% century was completed in 1995, The Sieering
Cormrittee. congistng of ower 20 community leaders, met over 15 menths starling in December
14986, The report calls tor spending upwards of 32.7 billion in public and private funds over 10 yesrs
an § initiatives of mejor importence.  Oematically change the lzkefront, develop 2 new and
competiive downtown senvention center, restare and beautify Euclid Avenue. double the number of




downtown residents and develop attractive and user-frendly systems of connectivity.  In addition,
the Steering Commitiee recommended supporting the Greater Cleveland Growih Association task
farce review of Modhaast Ohio's required air service neecs, impraving the Clevelant public schaals
and building intzr-relalicnships with adjsining neighbarkeads. Mozt of the Euclic Avenue projecls
are under consiruction. Cims Vision's goal is 3,000 naw hausing units with 1,200 having already
hean added and 7.000 new downtawn hotel rooms with 17 currently in placa. Tne Old Arcade
linking Eucid and Superior avenues reopened May 2001 with a new Hyat Holel and retail stores.
Ons proposal being considered far tha lakeffont is the shifing of the shorsway, a main freeway
connecting downtown with the esst and west side of the Sounty, which runs along Laks Erie. Parts
of the shorewsy would become a tree-lined boulevard and an eight mile lakefront bike path would be
craatad. It is felt this proposal would fasilitate dewvsloprment along the lakeshore. The project could
cost over $1 billion and the source has not besn idenfitied.

In 1998, former Cleveland WMayar Michac! R White picked 30 business leagers and pofiticiang to find
a location for a new cowntown convention cener and develop a funding plan. The proposal was
delivered in Aarl 2000 which calls for spending 3560 milion for a convention center with up @
550,000 square fect of exhibit space and a BUO rocm hotel, Funding is to be provided by the State,
the City and the County as well as privale scurces. A coundy-wide restaurant meal tax and an
incregsed or reallacated hotel tax waould be the main sources. The faciliy waould be bl on the
current sice expanding north and weast, take 4 years 10 complete and would include & walkway 10
lakafront museurns. Ealso calls far a new fransit center for buses and light rail. A consensus with
the Sounfy Commissioners and City Council could not oe reached with the Mayor's praoosal. [Ma
Port Authority commizsioned another study to radically alter the lakefront and pave the way for a
separate proposal 1o build a convention center nest o the Cleveland Browns Stadium.  The HE5E
million propesal would raise 2 mils-long mar-mada igland i Lake Erie and mowe much af
Cleveland's port ta it A causeway with 8 road would conrect the island to the mainland.  Funding
has not besn identified for the project and the former Mayor of Cleveland has stated neighbarhoods
and dilapidated oty schaals are & higher pricrity. The slow acenamy and cther priorities have placed
the convention center on the back bumer. Cureni Mayar Jang Sampoell said the corvention center
remans an the City's ecanamic radar screen, albeit as a bhp.

The expansion of Cleveland Hopkins Intemational Arpet has beer debated and disputed for over
10 years. The cities af Cleveland and Srook Park hsve disagreed on the direcion of the sxpansicn
and whether the 1-¥ Canter, an exposition hell, needs 1o be demolished in order o accommadate
futlure airport rurway expanzcn. I 1999, the city of Cleveland paid $66.5 milfiar for tha 1-X Center
and Brook Park filed suit in Probate Court o anquirs the 1-X Canter by orminent domain.  The cities
at Cleweland and Brook Park ended their long disputs conocsming the dorport and the |-¥ Center in
Februasy 2001, Under the sattlement, the city of Cleveland would receive the |X Genter and B0
acres of neighboring land. The 23 Sonter would cortinue to remain aper: for trade shows until 2
third rurway is needed in 15 years. The city of Brook Park will recaive NASA Glenn Research
Ceantar and two tracts of land, ong 11 acres and the other 34 acres and will recove ane half of the
revenuas ol the Emerald Sorporate “are, a Cleveland indusTial park narth of the aijport. Cleveland
will purchase up o 300 homes in Brook Park 10 maks way for the new muneay. Tha dea! is subjsct
to approval by Lhe city councils of Cleveland and Brook Park. While the dispute confinued. a second
ranway was planned with a third to fallow fater. Former Mayor White propased a plan to ssue $750
million in girpart bends to be repaid over 30 years wilh arport revenue. The Sity will use 373 millioh
lo reduce curent debt and the remzining SA75 millian wauld go w0 rway projects. Clavelard City
Council has proposed bieaking the project vp into indivedual projects. The City receivec the
necassany permits to begin the scoomd rumesy in 2001 and it s susrantly under constraction,

In March 1999, Primary Health Systems, Inc. {PHS). the parent of three Cleveland hospitals and one
suburbar hospital, fled far Chapler 11 bankrugicy, In February 2000, cne of the three hospitals. Mt
Snai Medical Center, was closed and there was a proposed sale of St Michael's and M Sinai Ezst
fo the Claveland Slinic for the purpese of closing the fanilities. The Clinic also proposed to purchase
a medizal campus which i intended to cperate. Public autery aver the clozing of 5t Michae!s along




wilh local cengressional and Clevsland City Council support helped convincs the bankruptcy judge
to rescind the propossd sale. A poblc auction led to the sale of Bt Mishael's and ML Sinsi East o
Univarsity Hospitals for the purpese of remaining open as functional facllities and ta the Cleveland
Clinic purchasing the medical campus. UHHS St Michael Hospital was in the midst af a 32.2 million
expansion of ity emergency room. The sxpansicn allowed the hospital o moease patienl capacity
to 30,000 annually and create more freatment areas for wauma patents.  Constroction was
completed in 2001, An additional $300,000 project renowvating the lobby and main ertrance began in
2001, in Decamber 2000, the hospital opened & 20 bed inpatient gero-psychiatric unit for saniors.

Tyoe Imermational Lid. (farmery Seott Technelogies Inc. and Figgie Intemational Incarperatad)
agreed in 1989 w relocate its headquarlers from Richmond, Virginia to an area knawn as Chagrin
Highlards on land owned by the city of Cleveland. A number of financial and pracedural prablems
kept the praject fiom moving forward, There were legal disputes oetwesn the city of Cleveland and
Scott over this project which delayed development. A trial date of Spring 1936 nad been ==, bul an
aut of cournt setlement was reached and construction was o begin once an interchange was
completed off the fresway. Financing for the interchanges was in disputs, but an agreement was
reached between the City and the developer to fund thetr respactive shares of the exit as required by
the Ohic Departmen; of Transportation {(0DOT), ODROT awarded contracts for the interchangs and
work was completed in Summer 2000 at 8 cost of 8% milion.  The develeprnent on 650 acrss will
include a 3.5 millicn square foot affice complex and 250 000 sguare feet of retail space a5 well as
1,000 hoted rooms.  Developers expect S hotels with one 300 room full service inn and the rest in
the 8 1o 120 room range to be constructed. The project is espected to take 15 10 20 years to
complate amd will provids 16,000 to 20,000 permanent jobs when complated, generating 544 million
yearly in income taxes among five communities and 55 milien in income taxes from. construction
jobs over the project life. Ground was broken in June 1998 on the 514 million four story 110,000
sruare tant effica building and was cormpleted in Fall 1998, Seatt ocupies 15,000 square feet of the
multi-tenant building which is 83% leased. University Hospitals Heallh Systen constructed a
100,000 square foot, 4 story technaiogy advanced sutpatient specialty medical center in the Chagrin
Highlands at an estimated cost of $29.2 rmllion which opensd in February 2000 A complex of 3
restaurants with a total of 10 seats has been proposed for the projcl A controversy has
developad sver lhe use of the Chagrin Highlands' land. Although the developers promised o buaild @
campus for caiperate headguartsrs, & plan was also fermulatsd w include a mall. Expansion by a
rearby mal killed the mall plar, but & new proposal calls for 3 "big-box” stora on the land. While
Clevelznd City Councll was reviewing the propesed amendment to the development contract. the
former Mayor at Clevaland, Michas! White, vawed to wato such a proposal. |1f s alio opposed by thz
mayars of Beachwood, Drangs, Warrensville Haights and the Trustees of Highland Hills on whoso
land the davelopment is located

The Graater Cleveland Regional Transt Authorty (R4} proposed & sealed down wersion al a0
earlisr rejected transporlation syster now called the Euclid Corrdar Improvement Project. [
Euclid Comidor Imorovemant Project would consist of a dedicated slectin trolley bus ling behsesn
Tower City and University Cirdle and weuld relocate 3 stations snd renovate 3 athers io be
completed in 2006 A& praiminary engingering study began durng the first quarer of 1957 and is in
the final stages of complesiar.  The RTA hopes to abtain 5135 million of the cost of the Euclid
Corndar makeover from the Saderal government with S50 miliion from the State and $35.3 millian
tom RTA and the City. Final design began in lats 2000, The RTA switched from wire-guided,
frolley-style caaches to 8 wirsfree hybnd systemn using asrodyramic dieselislectnsal powersd
vehicles which saved %53 milior, Mayor Jane Camoball wants o ower the Site's $17 millian
previous oommitment. The Federal govemment has guarantesd 36 million and will decide by Lhe
end of 2002 whether to commit its full share. Canstruchen would begin in 2003,

A dowrturn in the economy ard competition from imparted seel led LTY Corporafion o shut down
its west-side stesl making and relling operations and reduce employment by 900, The stesimaker
was forced o operate under Chapter 11 bankruptoy. Management criginally deciczd W shut down
apsrations and liquidate the assets. Through a concersd effort by some employees, elscted
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officiale and communily leaders, & bankruptey judge agreed to allow its sale. Tha plant was sod in
2002 1o 15G and currently is back in oparation.

The largest development in the greater downiown area concermns & baseball stadium. basketball
arena and private development of land surmaunding the area called the Gateway project. Gataway s
a privete nonpiofit cntity formed by &n agresrment between the city of Cleveland gnd Cuyahoga
County for the puipose of constructing and operating the basaball and zrana fagilities. The County
Commissiones asthorzed by resclstion 8 public vate on an excise tax on lguarn, beer, wine and
cigarettes. The tax amounts to 168 on & gallzn of beer, 32¢ on a gellon of wine, 33 on a gallon of
liquor and 4.5¢ on & pack of cigarelles impazed at the wholesale level throughout the Caunty. The
tax will remain in existence for a pencd of 15 years. The citizens passed the tax ordinance in the
May 1880 primary election. Upan complation of the facilities, Gateway revealed a cost overrun al
5215 milicn. The cost overuns reprasanted monies owed to contractors.  Cuyahoga County
agreed to loan Gateway $71.5 million to pay contractor claims. The $11.5 million intzrest free loan
was to be repaid with 10 year commitments from the city of Cleveland for 5230.000 per year, tha
Coryention and Visitor's Bureau for $500 000 per year and Gateway for 3400.000 per year MNone of
the proposed repayment sources have agresd to their respective contributions except the city of
Claveiand which has agreed o repay the County with intersst earned on fulure sin tax moniss, if
any, supporing debt for the new Cleveland Browns stadium beginning in the year 2008, The
remaining $10 million was loaned to Gateway by a local bank. Repayment was o came from a grant
from the State of Chio capital budoet. Howewver, the staie l2gisiature sgreed to prownce a 310 millien
interest free loan to be repaid by both the County and the city of Cleveland egually over 20 years
from State Local Gowernmeant momes. Alse, the owner of the Clevsland Indians, Richard Jacobs,
annourced in Kay 1999 his intent 12 sl the Cleveland Indians. He wowed ta sell o an owner wino
would maintain the team in Cleveland. The lease betwesn the team and Cateway has 13 years
remaining. He stated e fearm would not be sold in the avant a suitable swner could not be found.
Lawrznes Dalan, & feeal lawyer snd busingssman, finalized the purchase of the Cleveland Indians in
February 20040 for $323 million. The sale nad ne financial impact an the opsrations of Gateway.

in December 1991, 3 lawsuit was filed in Perry County sesking a determination Lhal the cumrsnt
methed of funding public education was unsonstituticnal. The local court found tar e plaintiffe.
The trial cout orgered the Supsinlendent of Public Instruction and the State Baard ol Sducation to
prepane proposals for the General Assembly to eliminate disparifies amaong Ohio's pubhc school
districts.  The Ohio Attomey General appealed the decision  the Fifth District Court of Apoeals,
The Court of Appeals reversed fhe tnal court and determined the currert system of schocl funding
was cansblubenal. The decsion af the Apocals Court was appealzd oy the plaintifts to the Qo
Supreme Couil. 10 March 1997 the Suprame Court ruled for the plaintiffe anc overturned the Courl
of Appesls. While the Supreme Courd found the funding gystem to be uncanstitutional, the cour
gave no specific instructions on remedy.  Inskesd, the court instructed the Gensral Assembly to
enact legislation o corect the funcing disparty and submit it to te zrignal tial court juogs o
approval corsistenl with the courts desisicn. Due to the complexity of the issue, a stay of twalve
months was granted the Gensral Assembly in order to allow adeguate study and drefting of the
leyislation. The Genaral Assembly placed a 1% sales tax on the ballel e rase over 21 billion of
which approximately 3500 millior was to be sarmarked for property tax rebie! and the remaining for
public education. The ballel ssuc was cverwhelmingly defeated 80% to 20% in tne May 1508
primary. The issue was back in the hands of the frial court judge to determine o e SEEte was in
compliznce with the court decision ang, if not, what the remedies ars. The trial caurl jusge ruled the
Stare was not in complisnce and regquired the Superntandent of Publiz Instruction and the Sate
Board of Education to prepare a report seting farth steps for compliance with previcus orders of the
Court The propoesals were to be presented to the State Legeslature afier the 1999 session. setting
steps to reschve the issue. The Ohio Supreme Court an a vote of 5-4 arcensd the siate 12 change
he school funding formula to rely less an oraperty laxes.  The Courl gave the Gensral Assembly
untl June 2001 to craft @ new funding syvslem.  In Auogoest 2007 the Supreme Court of the State of
Ohio agreed tha schaal funding systemn aporoved by the state legislature was constitutional with
condtions which mclude spending mare an panty aid 10 poorar schoa! distncts,




In Surmmer 1945, the city of Cleveland passed a council resolution autharizing the imposition and
collection of an 8% parking tax on gl public parking in Cleveland and a 2% admission tax an all
entarlainment events. The County agreed to fund a porion of the cost of the project by extending
the excisa fax on baer, wing, aleohol and tobacea {sin tax) from the yvear 2005 through 2015, The
sin tax was anginally aoproved ta repay bonds used to build the baseball stadium s life would
have expired in the year 20048, when e sin tax bonds are retired. The County Commissioners
placed the 10 year tax extension an ihe ballot. During ihe tall campaign o pass the tax. the owner
of the Clevelard Browns, Art Modell, announcsd he was moving ihe team o Baitimore. The tax
paszcd with 75% of the vate in favor a5 & show of fan suppon far keeping the Browns in Cleveland.
The City sued Art Madell over a specific perfformance clause in the stadium lease, which required
the Browns ta play in the stadium duning the life of the lease which expired after the 1538 season. In
January 19896, during Matonal Football League (MFL) meetings in Chicago, a comoromise was
reached whereby Art Modell was allowed to take tis tzam o Baltimore but the team name and
colars would remain in Clevsland with 2 pramises from the MEL thatl a naw or existing team wauld be
located in Cleveland by the year 1995, and Modell would be required fo pay $9.3 milien in damages
In return, the City agreed to build a8 new siadium with city and county taxes passad for this purnoses
Since the county and city taxes would not support the full cost of a8 new stadwm, the NFL agreed to
loan up to 348 million to the project with repayment to come frem the sale of private seat licenses. &
30-year lease belwaen the city of Clevsland and the MFL was negotiated which gave the NFL the
right to azsign the lkease te the new team. The NFL oemers agreed that an expansiaon team would be
granted to thie City.  An awnership group headec by lecal billionzire Al Lemer was granted the
axpansion franchise al a fac of 3530 millkon. A plan for the dispersal of players from the other 30
rams was established as well as additional choices in te college plaver drafi  Demolition of
Municipal Stadium began In fall 1986, Groundbreaking on the new stadium commenced in May
1987 with the praject anginally estimated to cost 5247 milion. The stadium ooened in August 19595
but cost owerruns increased the price o aimost $300 million.  The WFL agreed to provide an
addifional $15 million teward any averruns and the Cliy has stated it has sufficient funding o covar
thie remainder.

CURREMT YEAR BEVIEW

The Counly bagan rencvabing and adding additional elevators to the Justce Center, the County
Courthouse, Hunfington Park Garage and the County Administration Building Annex to be comploted
in phasss at a cost af 320.9 million te be funded with bended debt. Phase |, which iz complete, cost
$3 million while Phaza 1| estimated at $13 millien began in 2001 and is 46% complets while Phaza
111, which inzludaes elevaior imorovaments Lo Jal 1, the annax and juvenile court, has noet bogun.

The County is addressing state mandates in the area of solid waste management. The Cuyahaga
County Salid Waste Managemant Flan Update was prapared by the Suyahoga County Sobd Waste
District, approved by the Chic Environmental Profection Agency and ratifiad by local govarrmenis in
20040, This plan is now peing implemanted by the Solid Waste Distict which was crealad in 1994
and is controlied oy the County Commissioners as trustses, with the County Auditar as fiscal oficsr
and the County Treasurer as fressuner

The plan implementation activities, which include assuring adequats landfill disposal cagacity and
conducting recycling awareness and cellections activites, are paid for by a 21 per ton waste
ganaialion fee. Cuyahoga County iz currently in compliance with Ohio EPA's recycling requirements
by recycling 25.3% of s residential, commerzial and institutional waste and §5.3% of its industrial
washa,

The Salid Waste District provided recycling educalion resources 1 county residents through ils web
site, publinatinns and speakers buseau. In 2001, the Disticl raceived over 58,000 waitars o its web
zite, distributed 65 000 publicatizns, and respondad ta €122 information reguests from the public
The Distret z2lsn implemerted collzsbon pragrarms tor matenals that are difficuit @ manage Lhroegh




community recycling programs. As a result, in 2001, the Distriet collected 428 tans of elaphons
books, 611 tons of hazerdous househald waste, 292,000 tons of scrap tires, 160 tons of camauters
anrd 19,954 hags af litker.

Other major initiatives include funding of a Brownfield Redevelopment Fund, an energy savings
grogram and setting up neighborhood sewice centers for the Ohia Warks First program. The
Erownticid Redevelopment Fund consists of 522 million, of which the Caunly contributed 5155
millian and the private sector has committed $8.5 millen, for the purpose of loaning the procesds to
muricipaliies and private sntities for environmantal cleanup. The Counby issusd $15.59 million in
acanamic redevelapment revenue bands for this purposs to be repaid by the berowers and cosnty
nan-tax revenues. The County has reserved 8 perian of fund balance for the purpose af futdre
loans fram bond procesds. As of December 31, 2007 the County has distributed $5.7 million. The
enargy saving program is a result of State of Ohio House Bill 300, The County spent $23 £ million i
15 caunty owned buildings for the program with the money to be recovered aver 11 years through
enargy cael savings. The eleven neighborhocd senece centers were an attzmpt ta bring jab training
closar to the clients they service in an effort to recuce entitement programs and move e clients
into the wark foree. The orogram will be funded by bonded debt. Seven of the siles were under
yarious stages of renovation while some of the cthars may ne longer go forward,

A number of County projecss had activity during the year. The Chicage Title Building ronovations
Fhase |l began in October 2001 with an estimated cost of 51.5 million to be compleled by Jure
002, The County completed some comection centsr rencvations costing 5 8 million which include
renovation of administrative offices and re-pregremming of lunchreom, training and sub-Kichen
areas to provide space for an addilional 120 inmatss at year end 2001, Phasea |l renovations
cetimated to cost $1.2 million will begin in 2002 The County alga constructed 3 new Sounty Kennsl
lcated in valley Wiew at a cost of $7.1 millian with work completed in 2% quartsr 2002, Amang the
various projests under constructian in 2001 are renovations of the courtrooms for Common Fleas
and Comestic Relations courts at a cost of $4.5 millian. Juvenile Court roof replacement estimated o
cost 5.3 million and projected to be compietad in mid-year 2003.

Coneerns about the integrity of the voting system has led the County to lock at technology for
solutians. It is estimated to cost $20 million 2o put electronis vating in place throughout the Sounty,
Curing the year touch screen machines were fested in vanous voling locations. The SDounty is
laaking io buy or lease 8000 machines.

The County Commissioners implemented an Early Retirement Incentwe Program efective July 1.
2001 and endirg June 30, 2002 The County sgreed to purchase an addtional 20% of an
amployes's vears of senvice up to 2 maxinum of 5 pears for eligibla amployees. In return, county
agencies agresd fo lmit replacement up te 40% of the wages and panefits of the bought-out
smploves and agreed not to rehine the employes during the period the County was making paymeant
ta the Public Emplayees Retiremen: System. Sorain county 2gencies including the Lommon Plezs
Courl givisions, the Corener and the Clerk of Courts declined to participate.  The goal is fo save
money and reduse the number of full-ims equivalents. It is estmated that 1,065 emplovess wil
retire with £33 having alrsady retired under the program as of December 31, 20d01.

D to significant cuts in funding for human service pragrams fram the State of Otio and reductions
i sales tax collection and inveslment earnings, the Sourty Commissionars, impasad budget cuts of
10% far all County General fund departments. The operating deficit for 2002 was forecast at $55
million with expenditures to exceed the budget by $38.8 million based on @ ** quartar review. Al
Agencies have been advised that adelitional appropriatians to cover overspending will not be
lgrthcoming.  The County is @lso pursding & legal option against lhe SHtate of Ohio for diveting

T



Federal dollars fram the local govemments in order @ plug its own budget shorfall. A legal
resalution is not expactad in 2002,

FUTURE PROWJECTS

An agreemant has been reached between the Juvenile Corrections Advisory Committes, the Board
of County Commissicners and Juvenile Court o consiruc & new Youth Intervention Center o
replace the existing Detention Center. The new facility will house 120 youths in the detention center
with an additional 180 beds in the new shelter care and assessment center. A Youth Internvention
Center wiould cost ar estmated $50 milion and bz completed in 3 to 4 wears, A site for the
Intervantian Center has  baen chazan and an envirchmental assessment of the property is
underway. Same of the sile is contaminated with lead and arsenic and other chemicalz. The cost of
cleaning up the envirenmsant is not yet known, The campuos style facility will conzsist of 3 orograms.
Level | will bz for shelter oene and assessment howsing, Leve! || will be for medium secure hausing
and Level Il will consist of masimum securs housing A number af tunctional praogram arsas will be
shared by each of the housing faciliies such a3z recreaton, fopd sarvice, lzuncry, storage and
housekeepingftrades workspace. The Dhio Youth Sendces Deparment has commitied 3735 millicn
and the County will fund its portion from & bond issue. The center ks expecied to open in lgte 2005
or early 2006, Alse, currently undsr review is the Jail Il faeility.  Jail 1 wauld be 3 200 bed
community based corrections faciliny of which 40 beds would be set =side for female norviolent
felens and a 500 bad misdameanant facility. The Chic Department of Rehakilitation has pledoed g
F9.6 mullign grant and the County would be responsiole for the cost of the site zccuisition. Total
cetimated cost of the project is 220.7 million. A new proposal for the jail is to corvert the Cleveland
polica headguarters into a jaill. The proposal iz currently under review. Site evaluations for the: jail
are currently in prograss.

ACCOUNTIMG SYSTEM AMD BUDGETARY CONTROL

The Ccounty utiizes an auvtomated accountng system. which provides the capability o prepare
financial infarmatiar based an Generally Accepted Accouning Principles (GAAR) for goverameants.
Financial Accourticg and Managemeant Information System. kKnown by the scronym FARIS. iz the
bass foar the County's accounting and budgetary controls. Al cperstions of the County, with the
gxcapbon of the Hosmtal use FAMIS, Adeguals internal accounting caontrols are an intogral par of
this system and are designed to achieve the fundamental objectives of safequard ng assets and
praviding reasonable assuranca that inancial transactions are propedy recorded.

The Caunty's day-to-day accounting and budgetary records are mantained 91 2 base other Lhan
GaAP.  Far finarcial reparting purpeses. the assountng records are converted o the modifed
accrual basis for all Gavernmeantal and Fiusciary funds and he accrual basis for Proonelary tunds.
A further discusgion af the two bases of accounting end ther reconcihabon can be lound i Nele 3 af
th= notes fa the financizl stazemants.
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GEMERAL GOVERMMEMNT REVIEW
General Covermment Beview highlights the revenues and expenditures in numeric and nar:ative
fomm far all Governmental funds inclucing the General fund. Special Revenue funds Debt Service
fund and Canital Prajsals fund,

Financial HeghlightsRevenues

Increases
[Decrease} Pearcantage
From Frior of
Feovenues  Percentage Year [rorease
{in 000's} of Total {in 000's) {Decreasa)
Fropety taxes 3 2584810 21.1% $25928 11.6%
Sales and use tax 157 747 128 (2,163 (2.6)
Other 1ax 28920 2.3 (210} 7
Staie local oovemment fund £ (150 a3 83 et
Licensesz and pemmits 1,084 (492) (31.13
Charges far senvices T 238 §.2 3.arvz 5.4
Fines and [ofeillres 4,120 5 (1913 (3.0
|nvasimenl eamings Tz A 13,798) 9.1
Other infergavernmeantal £11,893 496 (15,164 (2.4}
Misnelaneaus 11,993 B A (2021 (1443
Total Revenuas 51232 232 A00.0%, 5 4,845 A%
Revenues increascd 54 8 million with mast of the increase related to property taxes netled against

decreasas in sales and use tax, investment sarrings and other intergavemmentzl revenue. The
incresse in propaerly laxes of $26.% million resulted from a new mental refardation levy and the effact
af tha 2000 reappraisal. In 2000, volers approved a replacement levy for mental retardation.  Tha
former lewy wat 3 millz with an effective rate of 2 76 mills for residential property and 291 mills fo
commerial and ndustnal propery. The replacemert 2wy was 3.5 mills to begin callection in 2001
at the new Z000 property valugtion. The impact of the state mandated resppraisal in 2000 was fall
in 2001 as callectans of additicnal propery tax resulting from the reappraisal (orimarily related to tha
new eyl commenced. The sales tax decrease of $4.2 million was a direct result of the slogosh
aconomy in this regzn. The increase in jobessness and uncensinty created by the svent= on
Sepember 11, eoded consumer confidence and led o & reduction in spending  The decrease in
investment earnings af 53.8 millicn becomas mere significan: when you factor in the unrealizad gain
i 2001 was 389 milben while it was onky $2.8 million in 2200, The decrease in other
intergovernmental revenue was $15.2 milien. There was a drop in intergovernmental revenue rom
the State of over $40 million.  The State’s fiscal year begins July 1 and during the second nalf af
2001, Ihe State began cutiing funding to local govemments and diverting maonies to cover intemal
budgel doficits. Howewsr the Board of Mental Remardation and the Capital Projects funds saw
increases from State funding. The Hoard al Marlal Relardation ncreased its intergovernmantal
revenus by 5106 million primarily due o an increass in unding as a esoll of e Eady Star
program znd additional monies for hamestead exsmption which is a pragram thatl reimburses locsl
gavarnments [or homestead exemptions of propery fax oy the Stale  The incraasa n the lavy had a
© direct impact an the homesiead exemptions The Capital Projects fund increass of 3147 million
resulied from same major road projects under constructon in 2201,

————
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Financial Highlightz/Expenditures

Increasa
[Decraase) Fereantaga
From Priar af
Ezpenditurss Percaniage Year Ingrease
{in D00's] of Total {in DO {Decrease)
Seneral govarnmant P 6B563 2% 5 ZETT 4.1%
Judicial 278414 21.2 14795 06
Devalopment 23278 1.8 {6.632) (222
Social semvices 578,881 517 apoiad 155
FHealth and safety 131,028 10.0 8.0 T4
Public works 53,565 4.5 12542 75
hWiscellansous 1493 A 25H 208
Capital outlay 34 392 25 3B 1.1
Principal retirement 19,232 1.4 1,323 T
Interest 18.535 14 _B.011 480
Tatal Expenditures F 1312385 100 0% % 131.303 11 1%

Govaemmenlal expenditures increased 11.1% with most of the increase due to judicial social
sarvices, health and safety and public works, Judicial spending growtn was related to a variety of
praggrams from an increass in assigned counsel, greater number of cases being prasecuted versus
plea bargained and an incraasa i housing of juveniles in shelter care. Social Senvizes increases
were dua primarity 1o work and training and children and family programs. The State mandates on
“welfare ta work® require additional taining and day care programs to enable zble bodied aduts to
work, Spending in human services was up $55.5 millicn. At December 2000 5,600 childran were in
placement bui by Decamiar 2001, the number of children in placement arew to almost 6,200 The
County increasad staffing in order 1o deal with the increase in workload . There was an incrsase in
the rate given to daycare praviders in 2001 as wall as continued growth of the number of 2ervice
providers to allow clients ta wark white providing childcare,  Alsc, the numiber of chilkdren in County
custody rose again which resulted i an inerease in spending of $22.6 million in health and
community serviees,  The increase in health and safety was related primanly to increases in
spending by the Mental Health Baard and to a naw payment mechanism enacied in 2001, The public
works increase fn the Capital Projects fund was due o major construction projects on reads and

nridgas in the County

Results of operations for gavemmentzl tunos during 2001 revealed a decrease in fund balance of
5972 million with much of the decrease mlated to culs in funding by the SEate of Omo and planned
spending an major Sounty capital projects.

PROPRICTARY AND DISCRETELY SRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT REVIEWY

A rewieww of Proprictary funds and the Discretely Presented Companent Unit financia’ data reveals
operating revenues and expenses incregsed 323 1 milion and 3434 million, respecively
Emarpnse funds experencad gaing of 54 6 millien. Internal Serece fund revanue decreassd 555
rrnllen wiile expanses grew aimoest 519 million and had & net decrease of .5 million. The decreass
in earnings 2mong all intemal sevice funds was offset by eamings in the workers' compensation
tund. Much of the losses in 2001 resultad fram the early retirement inzentive program. The program
began inJuly 2001, Becausse employess eft in the second half of the year and the County had to
payaut accrued sick, vacation amd compensatary time as well as fund ERIF paymenls. there was na
savings from the reduction of employees during 2001, Also, & review of the rate struclures 1z under
way to determine if costs are being propsry recovered.  The Ssif-Fundad Workers' Cempensation
fund had an actuary review and analyzea the workers' companzatan claims labiliy for 2l epan claim
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years to assure management that major fuctuations in clzims liabililies which resulted in a
substartizlly reducad liability was accurate. The Hospital had & et loss of aimast 57 million dus in
part to an urfavorable adpstment of $1.2 milien Tam pror estmates of medicare and medicaid
reimbursernents and & $12.1 million reduclion in net patient service revanue to pravice for estimaed
thiri-party settlement unceraintizs. Combinzd net loss for 8l Propristany funds and the Discrotely
Presenled Somponent Linit was §3.2 million.

DEBT ADMIMISTRATICN

Certzin debt related ratios and informatien are useful indicators of the County's debt position. Data
for the County at December 31, 2001 follows:

Bend Rating - Seneral Cbhligations Bends

Moody's Investors Sanvics Aa1 (Drtobar 2000)
Bond Rating - Ganeral Cbligations Bonds

Standard & Poar's Adc [Cotaber 2000
Bend Rating — General Obligaticns Bonds

Fimzh IBCA Add (Dotober 20000

Bond Rating - Economic Development Rawvanue Bonds
Moody's Investors Service

Wariable rate AaiNMIG 1 {August 2000}
Fixed rate Aa3 (August 2000)
Mate Rating — Bond Anficipation MNotes
Moody's Invesiors Zervice MIG M arch 2001
Meat gencral bonded debt 207 million
Fatio of net dabt to assessad valus A%
Met direct bonded debt per capita 3148.29

CASH MANAGEMENT

Ths Investmant Advisory Sommittee, comprised af three County Commissioners, the Clerk of Courls
and the County Treasurer, astablishes investment policies and monitors gl investment activity.
Public Financial Management, Inn (FFRY pravides investment adwisory services.,  Amsndments to
Ohio Reavisad Code Section 135 (Senate Bill 87) now restict the tvpe and length of investments znd
provide for angoing investmeant training for County Treasurars.

The County Traasurer, through & change in State stalule, cenractad for the sale of definquent
propety tax recelvables. & portion of the receivebles for lax years 1808 and prior were sold at a
dizcourt, and the buyer agread to purchase future delingquencies on the same parcels at full valve
for tax years 1BOT-2000 and also purchase new oualifisd delinquancies on other parcels far the
years 1997-1989. The conbract was subsequently amended to remouwve the requirement 10 purchase
futrs tax delinquencies on specdic parcels when the totzl investment in fax cedtificates exceaded
40% of the markat value af the property. The delinguent sale which occurrad in 2001 resultad in &n
additicnal 25 6 millicn of delinguent tax collection. In addition, thers was an increasa in collections
al pnor tax delinquencies because taxpayers wished to settle past dus taxes with fhe County rather
than deal with a private owner af he receivable. The County Treasurer intends o confinue ta sell tax
serfticzlas in future vears

The County Treasurer has established a linked daposit loan program far the purpese of enhancirg
hausing in paticpating cities. The County has entered into agreements with cenain sligible kending
institutions and local commuonities to provide loans at below markel mterest rates o owners of real
propery located in the sontracting community far cartain heusing repairs and imprevements. Afler 2
linked deposit l0an is made @ an ligible borrower. the Traasares wll ese menies from the County's
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paitfolio of inactve funds fo place a certificate of deposit with the lending institution at balow marst
rates. The coniracting cemmunily is responsibie for inspecting the improvemsnts ta ansure their
compliance with local building cedes. Mare than 3,600 homaowners have borrowed avar $42 millon
since the pragram's inception in Juby 1998, Tha Courty feels increases in property values resullng
from the Ipan program will eventually bring additional rewenues o the County.

A gimilar inked deposil program was astablishad in 2002 to provide low interast home improvemsnt
joans to owners of older ang historic propeies. The Preservation Resource Center of the Cleveland
Restoration Socisty provides assistance to propery pwners znd monilors home improvemnents
sempleted thoeugh this program

It iz the policy of the County Treasurer that all ceposits be either coversd by insurance o
aollataralized. 1he collateral is held by the pledging institution's agent in the name of the c=pasitory
ar the Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland in pooled securities accourts consisiing of govsrmment
securities, The County's investment policy objectives cansioer safety, liouidity and yisld. Befors a
security fs purchased, the cash flow nesds of the County and the cash Apw forecast s analyzed
Key factors af dedision making o the purchase of ssourities include type. term to maturity, princips|
value and rate of refurn.

FISK MANAGEMENT

The County has designated $1.1 millien of General fund balance 1o provide reserves for claims and
judgements net cowared by various County insurance palicies. Setlled claims from risks covered by
the County's insurance policies have not excesdsd tha insuranse coverage for the past thres fiscel
years., Actual expenditures for slaims and judgements against the County and estimates for claims
inciuding those incurmed but not reparted, were immatera’ in 2001, The County i also self-insured
with respect to the Ohio Unemployment Compensation program. Self-insurance expencitures for
unemployment compensation were not materzl in 2001, The County maintaing an Internal Service
fung for the seffinsurance of workers compensation through a refrespective rating plan with the
Slale of Ohic. Al payrel funds in the County conTibuts to the Seli-Funded Workers' Sompenzation
fund based on estimates needed to pay claims and to establish a8 resarve for claims meued But not
taported. A changs in estimates provided by an actuary has substantially reducad Lhe County's
liatlity dusing 2000 (s Mote K o tha general purpose financial statemsnts for detail=).

THE INDEPEMOENT ALIDIT

Included i this report is an unqualified avdit cpnien rendered on the County’s financial operations
=5 wal 25 its asses and lianilities 2t yea-end 2001 by cur indspendent auditors. Delaitte & Toucha
LLF. County maragement wil continue to subject the inancial statements to an annual indenendent
sudit =5 parl of the preparation of the CAFRE. An annual sudit serves to hslp maintzin 2nd
stengthen the County's accounting and budgetary cuntrocs.

The County partivipatzs m the Federal "Single Aodit’ pragram, which consists of & single audit of all
federal and faderal flow-thraugh funded programs administared by the County. As a requirement for
continued fedaral funding aligibility, congressional legisialion has made participation in the single
gudit program mandatory far a majonity of local governments including Cuyahosa Sounty.




GFOA CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Gavernment Finance Oficers Assaciation of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Cerfificate of Achievement for Excellencea in Financial Reparting to the Caunly of Cuyahoga, Ohig for
its comprebensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended Dacember 31, 2000, In
order fo he awarded a Certificoe of Achievement. 3 govemment must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report.  This report must satisfy balh
generally accepted accounting principlas and applicable legal requirements.

The Cerificae of Achisvemsnt is vald tor & penod of one year cnly. We believe that our current

comprehansive annua’ financial report continues o meet the Certilicate of Achigverment Frogram's
requirements and wa are submitting it to the GFOA to determine it aligitility far ancther cerificats,

ACENIWL EDGEMEMTS

Preparstion of this repedt could not have been accomplished without the dedicated work of the entire
financial reparting staff of the Ceunty Auditer's Office. We would like to 2xpress apareciation o cach
member of the financial reporting slaff, the support staff in General Accounting, the staffs of the
Budget Commissian. the Counly Treasurer, the Infermation Services Center and the Office of
Burdget and Management. We wadld also like te thank Frank Russo, County Auditor, who has
contnued the tradition of Auditor's sourd fizcal management and the Sounty's other elested oificials
and managers far their assistance ir this projpest.

Sinceraly, s

[ ;};
Steven C. Letsky, CPA,
Lhractar of Accounting
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Certificate of

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

County of Cuyahoga,
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A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Assaciation of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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Financial Section

PART I

GENERAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND NOTES

The general purpose financial statements (GPFS) provide the
combined overview of the financial position of all funds, account groups
and the discretely presented component unit and of the operating results
of all funds and the discretely presented component unit. Notes to the
financial statements provide disclosures essential to the fair presentation
of the GPFS. The independent audit opinion is rendered on the GPFS
and accompanying notes.




Deloitte & Touche LLP
Suite 2500

127 Public Square
Cleveland, Ohio 44114

Tel: 216-589-1300
Fax: 216-589-1369
www.us.deloitte.com

Deloitte
& Touche

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Honorable County Auditor,
County Treasurer and the

Board of County Commissioners
Cuyahoga County, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of County of Cuyahoga, Ohio
(the “County”) as of December 31, 2001 and for the year then ended, listed in the foregoing table of
contents. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the
County. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based
on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the discretely presented component unit,
MetroHealth System. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the discretely presented
component unit, MetroHealth System, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general
purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, such general purpose financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of County at December 31, 2001,
and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note B to the general purpose financial statements, effective January 1, 2001, the County
implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 33, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, and Statement No. 36, Recipient Reporting for
Certain Shared Nonexchange Revenues (an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 33) and, retroactively
restated its fund balances for the change.

As also discussed in Note B to the general purpose financial statements, the County’s discretely presented
component unit, MetroHealth System, changed its method of accounting for derivative financial
instruments to conform to Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 133, Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended and interpreted.

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu




Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial statements
and schedules listed in the foregoing table of contents, are presented for the purpose of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the County. These financial
statements and schedules are also the responsibility of the management of County. Such additional
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the general purpose
financial statements and, in our opinion, based upon our audit and the report of other auditors, is fairly
stated in all material respects when considered in relation to the general purpose financial statements
taken as a whole.

The statistical schedules on pages 102 through 125 are presented for the purpose of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the County. Such additional

information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the general purpose
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Q,ﬂmﬂl ¢ Toueke (P

June 7, 2002
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Governmental Fund Types

Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

Equity in pooled cash and
INVeStMENtS........ccceecveeeveeccee e $ 82,644 $ 79,710 $ $ 14,540
Cash and investments -
segregated accounts ...........ccceceeiieiiicnnns 371
Receivables:

Accounts ... 577 376
Special ments
Accrued interest
Loans .....cccceeevveeeenns 1,000 14,013
Less: Allowance for

doubtful accounts .........cccceeeeienienieneens

Net Receivables .........ccccvvveviiiiiiiniiiennne 42,241 14,389

Due from other funds.........ccoceeeveevierivineens 88,485 253,210 21,897 82
Due from other governments... 26,749 123,031 1,283 4,571
Inventory of supplies.........cccccvvviiiiieiiciienne
Prepaid expenses and

other assets ........ccceveveieieeieiccee
Board designated investments
Deferred bond financing cost ......................
Restricted assets -

Cash and investments.........ccccceeeeeuveeeennn. 37,345

Fixed assets:

Land improvements ..
Utility plant ...
Buildings, structures
and improvements..........cccoceeeeeieniecinns
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Vehicles
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Construction in progress ...................
Net Fixed ASSets ........cccccevvvvieiiiiiiciiiieen,

Amount available for
debt Service .....ocoeeiiiiiiiiee
Amount to be provided for
retirement of general
long-term obligations:
Dbt ..

TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS .... $ 277,464 $ 470,340 $ 23,551 $ 19,193

See notes to financial statements.

Proprietary
Fund Type

Enterprise

$ 8,170

889
3,285

(284)
3,890

42
444

38

5,802
10,647
44,950

14,608
3,228
3,432

(43,343)
7,989

47,313

$ 59,905




Proprietary Fiduciary
Fund Type Fund Type Account Groups
General General 2001 Totals MetroHealth 2001 Totals
Internal Fixed Long-Term Primary Government System Reporting Entity
Service Agency Assets Obligations (Memorandum Only) (Component Unit) (Memorandum Only)
$ 56,840 $ 156,762 $ $ $ 398,666 $ $ 398,666
39,996 40,367 8,596 48,963
1,401,368 1,442,032 1,442,032
18 1,860 52,455 54,315
3,285 3,285
4,614 4,614 4,614
15,013 15,013
(284) (7,286) (7,570)
18 1,405,982 1,466,520 45,169 1,511,689
9,140 4,773 377,629 377,629
465 156,543 156,543
45 53 4,648 4,701
31,219 31,219
125,800 125,800
38 5,191 5,229
37,345 146,259 183,604
33,472 39,274 8,954 48,228
2,888 18,535 8,177 21,712
44,950 44,950
444904 459,512 369,451 828,963
25,237 19,400 47,865 178,363 226,228
4,403 12,798 20,633 7,068 27,701
(22,360) (65,703) (361,235) (426,938)
62,417 70,406 6,270 76,676
7,280 575,879 630,472 217,048 847,520
8,261 8,261 8,261
320,232 320,232 320,232
76,917 76,917 76,917
$ 73,788 $ 1,607,513 $ 575,879 $ 405,410 $ 3,513,043 $ 583,930 $ 4,096,973
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

DECEMBER 31, 2001
9
(Amounts in 000's)
Proprietary
Governmental Fund Types Fund Type
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects Enterprise

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable ... $ 6,901 68,331 $ 5,351 $ 788
Deferred revenue.......... 50,122 243,379 22,876
Due third-party payors..
Due to other funds................ 32,193 62,870 1 252
Due to other governments.... 38
Accrued wages and benefits 6,813 9,910 22 717
Short-term notes payable...... 2,440
Other liabilities .........cccceevveeeeene 367
Payable from restricted assets.
Loans payable ............c.cccceeuennen 6,357
Matured bonds payable 14
Accrued self-insurance......
Capital lease obligations.......
Special termination benefits ............cccceeriinene 619
Other debt:

Notes payable.........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciee 6,105

Bonds payable.... 2,635
Total Other Debt....... 8,740
TOTAL LIABILITIES ..ottt 96,029 384,490 22,890 7,814 17,878
FUND EQUITY AND

OTHER CREDITS
Investment in general

fixed @SSetS....coveeriiiieeieee s
Contributed capital..........cccceeverieniinieieneee, 18,524
Retained earnings:

Reserved for restricted assets...........cccceeeenen

UNreserved ........eooeeeiieineee e 23,503
Fund balance:

Reserved for restricted assets..........cc.ccu....... 37,345

Reserved for loans receivable.... 1,000 14,013

Reserved for debt service ..........ccccevrivrennen. 7,600 661
Unreserved:

Designated for self-insurance............ccccce.ee. 1,139

Designated for proprietary funds.... 8,109

Undesignated..........cccvveeniinieiiiiiiinieiees 126,242 71,837 11,379
TOTAL FUND EQUITY

AND OTHER CREDITS.......ccveirirenireieieens 181,435 85,850 661 11,379 42,027
TOTAL LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY

AND OTHER CREDITS. ........ccounmnminsnssninsnnas $ 277,464 470,340 $ 23,551 $ 19,193 $ 59,905

See notes to financial statements.




Proprietary Fiduciary

Fund Type Fund Type Account Groups
General General 2001 Totals MetroHealth 2001 Totals
Internal Fixed Long-Term Primary Government System Reporting Entity
Service Agency Assets Ob"gations (Memorandum Only) (Component Unit) (Memorandum Only)
$ 2,239 $ $ $ $ 83,610 $ 24,422 $ 108,032
316,377 316,377
45,404 45,404
4147 278,166 377,629 377,629
18,590 1,285,667 1,304,295 1,304,295
3,592 22,135 43,189 42,348 85,537
2,440 2,440
43,680 15,368 59,415 10,816 70,231
554 554
3,888 10,245 10,245
14 14
29,471 29,471
437 9,611 10,048 10,552 20,600
4,709 25,915 31,243 31,243
6,105 6,105
328,493 331,128 183,829 514,957
328,493 337,233 183,829 521,062
33,714 1,607,513 405,410 2,575,738 347,396 2,923,134
575,879 575,879 575,879
18,524 18,524
5,159 5,159
40,074 63,577 231,375 294,952
37,345 37,345
15,013 15,013
8,261 8,261
1,139 1,139
8,109 8,109
209,458 209,458
40,074 575,879 937,305 236,534 1,173,839
$ 73,788 $ 1,607,513 $ 575,879 $ 405,410 $ 3,513,043 $ 583,930 $ 4,096,973
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Governmental Fund Types

Special Debt
General Revenue Service

REVENUES
Property taXeS.......cccvuieiiieieiee et $ 22,646 $ 217,629 $ 19,335
Sales and use tax. 157,747
Other taX .....cccooevereeieceeenns 13 28,898 9
State local government fund. 41,050
Licenses and permits............ 104 985
Charges for services..... 59,930 16,308
Fines and forfeitures..... 5,707 413
Investment earnings ......... 34,284 1,878 1
Other intergovernmental... 10,151 570,777 3,562
Miscellaneous................... 4,906 6,118
TOTAL REVENUES ..o 336.538 843.006 22.907
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General gQOVErNMENt.......cceecveeeeiieeeiee e cree e 51,543 17,020

Judicial .......ccoveveiennnns 215,898 62,516

Development....... 3,620 19,658

Social services........ 11,527 667,354

Health and safety.... 1,414 129,614

Public works............ 32,656

Miscellaneous. 1,493
Capital QUHIAY ......ccvveeeeieeeeee e
Debt service:

Principal retirement............ccceeeiieeiieeecee e 19,232

Interest.......cccceeveveenennen. 18,539
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 285.495 928.818 37.771
EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF

REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES......coiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee e 51,043 (85,812) (14,864)
OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES(USES)
Operating transfers iN.........coceeeierienieseesee e 6,658 222,543 11,323
Operating transfers out:

Component unit .. (6,835) (18,215)

Debt retirement (10,678)

Other.....ccceeeenee. (65,100) (167,797)
Capitalized 1aSes ........cccoveeevveecreeceee e 8,520
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES,).................... (75.955) 45.051 11.323
DEFICIENCY OF

REVENUES AND OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES

OVER EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER FINANCING USES.......c.ccooviieieieieieeene (24,912) (40,761) (3,541)
FUND BALANCE AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR (AS RESTATED-SEE NOTE B).. 206,279 126,657 4,202
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS IN(OUT) ....cceveieienne 68 (46)
FUND BALANCE AT

END OF YEAR $_ 181,435 $ 85,850 $ 661

See notes to financial statements.




Capital 2001 Totals
Projects (Memorandum Only)

$ $ 259,610

157,747

28,920

41,050

1,089

76,238

6,120

1,609 37,772

27,203 611,693

969 11,993

29.781 1.032.232

68,563

278,414

23,278

678,881

131,028

25,909 58,565

1,493

34,392 34,392

19,232

18,539

60.301 1.312.385

(30,520) (80,153)

8,584 249,108

(25,050)

(10,678)

(6,024) (238,921)

8,520

2.560 (17.021)

(27,960) (97,174)

39,361 376,499

(22)
$__11,379 $__ 279,325




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL ANNUALLY BUDGETED GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

REVENUES

Property taXes.......cooeeuereererieieeeee s $
Sales and use tax.
Other taX......ccceoevevevinveiieenns
State local government fund.
Licenses and permits............
Charges for services.....
Fines and forfeitures.....
Investment earnings .........
Other intergovernmental...
Miscellaneous..................
TOTAL REVENUES ........ccocoiiiiiiiiicieceeece

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General governmMeNt ..........cooeeereereeneereeseeieeeenes
Judicial
Development........cc.ooverierieniereeeeee e
Social services........
Health and safety....
Public works............
MiSCellan@ouUS ........cceevveeriieiieieeieeie e
Debt service:
Principal retirement..........cccccooeiiiiieiiicie
Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES.......cceiieieieeeieieienen

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES........cccooooiiiiiiccccce,

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)

Operating transfers in ...
Operating transfers out:
Component UNit ........cooeereereeieeeeeeeeee e
Debt retirement.........cccceveiieiinienieeeeeees

NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)....

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING USES......................

FUND BALANCE AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR........cccooeiiiiiiiines

RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS IN ................

FUND BALANCE AT
END OF YEAR $

See notes to financial statements.

General Fund

Annually Budgeted

Special Revenue Funds

Variance- Variance-
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
22,419 22,571 $ 152 $ 219,764 $ 216,687 $ (3,077)
157,944 158,018 74
74 13 (61) 29,226 28,831 (395)
40,837 41,048 211
150 104 (46) 1,094 985 (109)
54,129 61,163 7,034 18,777 16,406 (2,371)
6,300 6,013 (287) 463 472 9
25,000 28,750 3,750 4,022 3,570 (452)
10,565 10,343 (222) 698,184 554,223 (143,961)
9,354 5,286 (4,068) 6,119 3,169 (2,950)
326,772 333,309 6,537 977,649 824,343 (153,306)
64,501 50,689 13,812 18,281 16,596 1,685
225,024 212,289 12,735 45,419 38,995 6,424
2,734 2,328 406 5,691 3,341 2,350
12,042 11,167 875 710,593 638,638 71,955
1,532 1,368 164 132,704 125,238 7,466
51,304 31,453 19,851
5,785 1,438 4,347
311,618 279,279 32,339 963,992 854,261 109,731
15,154 54,030 38,876 13,657 (29,918) (43,575)
6,680 6,680 158,676 150,510 (8,166)
(6,835) (6,835) (18,215) (18,215)
(10,683) (10,678) 5
(37,359) (37,155) 204 (129,233) (127,994) 1,239
(54,877) (47,988) 6,889 11,228 4,301 (6,927)
(39,723) 6,042 45,765 24,885 (25,617) (50,502)
153,003 153,003 41,568 41,568
68 68 201 201
113,280 $ 159,113 $ 45,833 $ 66,453 $ 16,152 $ (50,301)

10



Debt Service Fund

2001 Totals

(Memorandum Only)

Variance- Variance-
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$ 19,044 $ 19,223 $ 179 $ 261,227 $ 258,481 $ (2,746)

157,944 158,018 74

4 9 5 29,304 28,853 (451)

40,837 41,048 211

1,244 1,089 (155)

72,906 77,569 4,663

6,763 6,485 (278)

1 1 29,023 32,321 3,298

3,100 3,562 462 711,849 568,128 (143,721)

5,029 (5,029) 20,502 8,455 (12,047)

27,178 22,795 (4,383) 1,331,599 1,180,447 (151,152)

82,782 67,285 15,497

270,443 251,284 19,159

8,425 5,669 2,756

722,635 649,805 72,830

134,236 126,606 7,630

51,304 31,453 19,851

5,785 1,438 4,347
19,252 19,252 19,252 19,252

18,849 18,540 309 18,849 18,540 309

38,101 37,792 309 1,313,711 1,171,332 142,379

(10,923) (14,997) (4,074) 17,888 9,115 (8,773)

11,324 11,324 170,000 168,514 (1,486)
(25,050) (25,050)

(10,683) (10,678) 5

(166,592) (165,149) 1,443

11,324 11,324 (32,325) (32,363) (38)

401 (3,673) (4,074) (14,437) (28,248) (8,811)
4,044 4,044 198,615 198,615

269 269

$ 4,445 $ 371 $ (4,074) $ 184,178 $ 175,636 $ (8,542)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Proprietary Fund Types

2001 Totals

Internal Primary Government
Enterprise Service (Memorandum Only)

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for SEIVICES.........cuvviririiiiiie e $ 14,756 $ 82,014 $ 96,770
Patient service revenu
Other revenue........ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeenne 77 426 503
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES..........ccccooviiiecesece e 14,833 82,440 97,273
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal SEIVICES .......cccoecurereeeieiireie e eeteeee e eeree e e e e ee e 7,213 40,782 47,995
Contractual services and claims............ccoovvvreninenenenenennens 1,312 10,774 12,086
COMMOGITIES ....uveeeeeeeiiiiee ettt e e eaaaeee s 814 10,794 11,608
DePreciation........c.eeiieiiiiiieieee et 2,294 2,840 5,134
Other EXPENSES ....c.veieieiiieiieeie st 4,719 17,680 22,399
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES. ........cocooiiiiininenere e 16,352 82,870 99,222
OPERATING LOSS.....coiiiiireresierie et (1,519) (430) (1,949)
NONOPERATING REVENUES(EXPENSES)
INVEStMENT INCOME ...
Interest expense.......... (388) (36) (424)
GIFANES ...ttt
Gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets.........c.cceevreererereienens 23 (8) 15
NET NONOPERATING REVENUES(EXPENSES)............... (365) (44) (409)
LOSS BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS

AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS........coiiirieieieieieieeees (1,884) (474) (2,358)
Operating transfers iN ..o 1,573 214 1,787
Operating transfers in - primary government ...........ccccceeeenee.
Operating transfers out:

Debt retirement (646) (646)

(@1 1=Y (50) (600) (650)
Capital contribUtiONS ........cccoeiiiiiiiie e 5,693 5,593
NET OPERATING TRANSFERS

AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS........cecoererierenienienienieniees 6,470 386 6,084
NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT

OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE............cccevuenn 4,586 (860) 3,726
CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE (NOte B)....c.cvrveeerieiiriciiniciceinnens
NET INCOME (LOSS) ..ocueeieiieiieeeeee ettt 4,586 (860) 3,726
DEPRECIATION ON FIXED ASSETS

ACQUIRED WITH CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL .....cccvvvrreenene 1,533 1,533
RETAINED EARNINGS AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR. ..o 17,384 40,934 58,318
RETAINED EARNINGS AT

END OF YEAR $ 23,503 $ 40,074 $ 63,577

See notes to financial statements.
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MetroHealth 2001 Totals

System Reporting Entity
(Component Unit) (Memorandum Only)
$ $ 96,770

414,580 414,580
19,655 20,158
434,235 531,508
310,712 358,707
10,302 22,388
52,304 63,912
32,300 37,434
76,652 99,051
482,270 581,492
(48,035) (49,984)
17,046 17,046
(8,079) (8,503)
5,829 5,829
I 15
14,796 14,387
(33,239) (35,597)
1,787

25,050 25,050
(646)

(650)

5,593

25,050 31,134
(8,189) (4,463)
1,232 1,232
(6,957) (3,231)
1,533

243,491 301,809
$ 236,534 $ 300,111
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from customers and others ............cccceeuenneen.
Cash receipts from quasi-external
operating transactions
Other operating cash receipts
Cash payments to suppliers for
goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services ...........c.cccveenen.
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES......ccooiiiiiiscseneeseea

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating transfers in from other funds .........c..ccccoovrvnnne.
Operating transfers in from primary government ................
Operating transfers out to other funds ...
Receipts from noncapital grants..........
Proceeds from short-term interfund loan
Repayment of short-term interfund loan.............cccccccveens
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.......ccoevvverinnne

CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Deposits in project fund...
Proceeds from notes ...
Contributed capital........
Proceeds from sale of capital assets ......
Acquisition and construction of capital assets .. .
Principal paid on capital 1eases.........c..ccoceevvrieiiiinicneeneens
Interest paid on capital leases
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt .
Principal paid on notes
Principal paid on loans ....
Interest paid on loans ...
Principal paid on bonds
Interest paid on bonds

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES......ccccoveririnn

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received on investments............cccceevriinieiiniiniinene
Change in investments
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES ..ottt

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.........ccoiiiiiiiinne s

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR......cccooiiiiiiiiiiiic s

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

(Amounts in 000's)
Proprietary Fund Types

2001 Totals

Internal Primary Government

Enterprise Service (Memorandum Only)
$ 15,009 $ 4,512 $ 19,521
78,973 78,973
78 78
(7,472) (35,727) (43,199)
(7,092) (40,863) (47,955)
523 6,895 7,418
1,573 214 1,787
(696) (600) (1,296)
28 1,184 1,212
(218) (218)
905 580 1,485
6,365 6,365
239 239
23 12 35
(4,647) (1,274) (5,921)
(281) (281)
(35) (35)
(6,080) (6,080)
(263) (263)
(179) (179)
(130) (130)
(165) (165)
(4,837) (1,578) (6,415)
18 18
18 18
(3,391) 5,897 2,506
11,561 50,943 62,504
$ 8,170 $ 56,840 $ 65,010

See notes to financial statements.
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MetroHealth
System

(Component Unit)

2001 Totals

Reporting Entity
(Memorandum Only)

$ 404,876
19,655

(112,904)
(310,073)

1,554

25,050

5,829

30,879

3,459

(18,991)

(6,753)
(7,274)

(29,559)
12,430
(18,942)
(6,512)
(3,638)

3,982

$ 344

$ 424,397

78,973
19,733

(156,103)
(358,028)

8,972

1,787
25,050
(1,296)

5,829

1,212

(218)

32,364

12,448
(18,942)
(6,494)
(1,132)

66,486

$ 65,354

(Continued)
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating [0SS .......cccceererircreneniene

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING
INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY
(USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Depreciation..........cccecereeneenieneeneenns

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable-net .................

Increase) decrease in due from other funds......................

(
(Increase) decrease in due from other governments.
(

Increase) decrease in inventory of supplies............c........
(Increase) decrease in other current assets............ccccuc......

Increase (decrease
Increase (decrease
Increase (decrease
Increase (decrease

in other liabilities

Increase (decrease) in special termination benefits...

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS .......c.ccvennne

NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

)
)
)
)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable ...........c.cccceeeennes
(
(
(
(

in due to other funds ..........ccceevrnnene
in due to other governments...............
in accrued wages and benefits .

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH
INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Capital contributions - fixed assets/sp

ecial assessments...

Unrealized appreciation in fair value of investments ..........

TOTAL NONCASH TRANSACTIONS

See notes to financial statements.

(Amounts in 000's)
Proprietary Fund Types
2001 Totals

Internal Primary Government

Enterprise Service (Memorandum Only)
$ (1,519) $ (430) $ (1,949)
2,294 2,840 5,134
924 (3) 921
(37) (3,119) (3,156)
(244) 4,169 3,925
4 4
(1,099) (1,060) (2,159)
21 487 508
(509) (237) (746)
73 (465) (392)
619 4,709 5,328
2,042 7,325 9,367
$ 523 $ 6,895 $ 7,418
$ 5,357 $ $ 5,357
$ 5357 $ 0 $ 5,357
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MetroHealth 2001 Totals

System Reporting Entity

(Component Unit) (Memorandum Only)
$  (48,035) $ (49,984)
32,300 37,434
4,921 5,842
(3,156)
3,925
4
(9,297) (9,297)
(2,159)
508
(746)
(392)
21,665 21,665
5,328
49,589 58,956
$ 1,554 $ 8,972
$ 5,357
5,346 5,346
$ 5,346 $ 10,703

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2001

NOTE A - Description of Cuyahoga County and Basis of Presentation

The County: Cuyahoga County (the County) operates as a political subdivision of the State of Ohio. The
County was formed by an act of the Ohio General Assembly in 1810. The three member Board of County
Commissioners is the legislative and executive body of the County. The County Auditor is the chief fiscal officer. In
addition, there are seven other elected administrative officials, each of whom is independent as set forth in Ohio law.
These officials are Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecuting Attorney, Recorder, Sheriff and Treasurer. There
are also thirty-four Common Pleas Court Judges, five Domestic Relations Court Judges, six Juvenile Court Judges,
two Probate Court Judges and twelve Court of Appeals Judges elected on a County-wide basis to oversee the
County's justice system.

The County applies the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14,
"The Financial Reporting Entity," under which the financial statements include all the organizations, activities,
functions and component units for which the County (Primary Government) is financially accountable. Financial
accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit's board, and either (1) the
County's ability to impose its will over the component unit, or (2) the possibility that the Component Unit will provide a
financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the County.

Discretely Presented Component Unit Disclosure: In accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, the
MetroHealth System (the Hospital or Component Unit) is included as a discretely presented Component Unit in the
County's financial statements. The Hospital provides health care and hospitalization to the general public and care
for the County’s indigents. The County appoints the majority of the Hospital's Board of Trustees. The Hospital’'s
annual operating budget and investment policy are both approved by the County. The Component Unit is included in
the County's reporting entity because of the significance of its operational and financial relationships with the County.
The financial information of the Hospital is presented in a separate column to emphasize that it is legally separate
from the government. Complete financial statements for the Hospital can be requested from the County Auditor.

Basis of Presentation: The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds or account groups,
each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a set
of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses,
as appropriate. The various funds are summarized by type in the general purpose financial statements.

Amounts in the "totals (memorandum only)" columns in the financial statements represent a summation of
the combined financial statement line items of the fund types and account groups and are presented for analytical
purposes only. The summation includes fund types and account groups that use different bases of accounting, both
restricted and unrestricted amounts. Interfund transactions have not been eliminated, and the caption "amount to be
provided" is not an asset in the usual sense. Consequently, amounts shown in the "totals (memorandum only)"
columns are not comparable to a consolidation and do not represent the total resources available or total revenues
and expenditures/expenses of the County.

The County uses the following fund types and account groups:
Governmental Funds:

General Fund: This fund accounts for the general operating revenues and expenditures of the County not
recorded elsewhere. The primary revenue sources are sales and use tax, property taxes, state local government
fund receipts, investment earnings and various service fees.

Special Revenue Funds: These funds are used to account for specific governmental revenues (other than
major capital projects) requiring separate accounting because of legal or regulatory provisions or administrative
action. Revenues are derived primarily from property taxes, other taxes, and federal and state grant programs.

Debt Service Fund: The Debt Service fund is used to account for revenues received and used to pay
principal and interest on all long-term bonded debt except those payable from Enterprise funds. Revenues are
derived primarily from property taxes.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2001

Capital Projects Fund: This fund is used to account for the acquisition or construction of capital assets
(other than those financed by Proprietary funds). Revenues and financing resources are derived from the issuance of
debt, operating transfers from the General and Special Revenue funds and capital grant programs.

Proprietary Funds:

Enterprise Funds: These funds are used to account for operations that provide services which are financed
primarily by user charges, or activities where periodic measurement of income is appropriate for capital maintenance,
public policy, management control or other purposes.

Internal Service Funds: These funds are used to account for the goods or services provided by certain
County departments to other County departments and funds on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds:

Agency Funds: These funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for other
governments, other funds and individuals. These assets include property and other taxes as well as other
intergovernmental resources which have been collected by the County and which will be distributed to other taxing
districts located within the County.

Account Groups:

General Fixed Asset Account Group: This account group is used to present the general fixed assets of the
County utilized in its general operations, exclusive of those used in Proprietary funds. General fixed assets include
land, land improvements, buildings, structures and improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment and vehicles
owned by the County.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group: This account group is used to record all long-term
obligations of the County except for those of Proprietary funds.

NOTE B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements of the County are prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America for local government units as prescribed in statements and
interpretations issued by the GASB.

Basis of Accounting: All financial transactions for Governmental and Fiduciary funds are reported on the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this accounting method, revenues are recognized when they become
susceptible to accrual, that is, when they are measurable and available to finance County operations. Revenues
accrued at the end of the year consist of reimbursements from other governments for grant expenditures and
amounts receivable from sales and use taxes collected in December and received within sixty days after year-end.
Property taxes are recorded as revenue when measurable and available within a period, which does not exceed sixty
days after year-end. Governmental fund expenditures are accrued when the related fund liability is incurred, except
interest on long-term debt, which is recorded when due. Proprietary fund financial transactions are recorded on the
accrual basis of accounting; revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized as incurred.

The County’s primary government currently follows GASB Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting” using the
guidance established in alternative no. 1, which requires the County to comply with all Financial Accounting Standard
Board (FASB) standards issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with GASB Statements. The
County’s primary government has chosen not to apply FASB Standards issued after November 30, 1989. The
County’s Component Unit has elected to apply alternative no. 2 under GASB Statement No. 20, under which it
applies all FASB statements and interpretations (even those issued after November 30, 1989), except for those that
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.
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Measurement Focus: All Governmental funds are accounted for on a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. Only current assets and current liabilities are included on the balance sheets. Operating
statements present increases and decreases in net current assets.

All Proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. All assets and
liabilities whether current or long-term are included on the balance sheets. Fund equity is separated into contributed
capital and retained earnings and operating statements present increases and decreases in total net assets.

Budgetary Accounting and Control: The County is required by state law to adopt annual budgets for the
General fund, certain Special Revenue funds and the Debt Service fund. Special Revenue funds which are budgeted
annually include Human Services, Health and Human Services Levies, Motor Vehicle Gas Tax, County Board of
Mental Retardation and Health and Community Services. The County Administrator prepares the budget, which is
approved by the Board of County Commissioners. The Office of Budget and Management prepares a separate
budgetary report. The Board of County Commissioners approves amendments to the original budget throughout the
year as allowed by state statute. During 2001, supplemental budgetary appropriations amounted to approximately
$247 million. The County maintains budgetary control within an organizational unit and fund by not permitting
expenditures/expenses and encumbrances to exceed appropriations for personnel, capital purchases and other
costs. Elected officials and managers may amend the budget without approval of the County Commissioners as long
as amendments are within legal categories. Unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end.
Encumbrances are closed to unreserved fund balance/retained earnings at year-end and are re-encumbered and
reappropriated at the start of the following year.

The accompanying budget basis financial schedules, comparing budget to actual results of operations, are
presented to demonstrate the County's compliance with legally adopted budgets and reflect only budget revisions
formally adopted by the Board of County Commissioners. The Commissioners and their staff monitor the level of
revenues and expenditures throughout the year, and policy decisions are made based on the available current
information. Formal revisions to previous budgets may not be processed if actual results are within previously
budgeted levels. Consequently, large variances may appear on the budget and actual comparisons in the
accompanying financial schedules.

The budgetary process does not include annual budgeting for certain grants (including Community
Development and Other funds) and the Capital Projects fund. Appropriations are made on a multi-year basis with the
free balance and encumbrances being reappropriated annually. The administrative control is on a grant/project basis
and, therefore, comparisons with annually appropriated funds do not provide meaningful data. The County adopts
annual budgets for Proprietary funds, however, budgetary data is not presented for Proprietary funds due to the
nature of the funds where demand for goods and services largely determines the level of revenues and expenses.
There is no legal requirement to report on compliance with such budgets.

The County's budgetary process accounts for certain transactions on a basis other than generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP basis).

The major differences between the budget basis and the GAAP basis are:

(1) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed to when susceptible to
accrual (GAAP).

(2) Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget) as opposed to when susceptible to
accrual (GAAP).

The actual results of operations compared to the revised appropriation passed by the Board of County
Commissioners for all annually budgeted Governmental funds are presented in the Combined Schedule of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis).
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A reconciliation of the results of operations for the year on the GAAP basis to the budget basis follows:

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
(Amounts in 000's)

General  Special Revenue Debt Service

Fund Funds Fund
GAAP DASIS.....ceoiuiieiieeiiierieese e $ (24,912) $ (40,761) $ (3,541)
Less: Multi-Year Budgeted..........cccceevvieeeniienennns (1,058)
GAAP basis for annually budgeted funds............... (24,912) (39,703) (8,541)
Increase (Decrease):
Accrued receivables at 12/31/01
not recognized in the 2001 budget ................ (157,475) (372,455) (23,180)
Accrued receivables at 12/31/00
recognized in the 2001 budget .............ceeee... 158,987 415,975 21,404
Expenditures accrued as liabilities at 12/31/01
not recognized in the 2001 budget ................ 96,029 317,509 22,890
Expenditures accrued as liabilities at 12/31/00
recognized in the 2001 budget ...................... (67,245) (346,943) (21,246)
Other GAAP adjustments(1) ............................. 658
Budget basis .........ccceviiireiiriiie e $ 6,042 $ (25,617) $ (3,673)

(1) Change in the amount of short-term interfund loans by the General fund, unrealized gain on
investments and net expenses for the Brownfield project.

Statement of Cash Flows: The County utilizes the direct method with respect to the combined statement of
cash flows as defined by the GASB Statement No. 9. For purposes of the combined statement of cash flows, the
Proprietary funds and Component Unit consider all highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or
less when purchased to be cash equivalents. The amount of cash and cash equivalents reported on the
accompanying combined statement of cash flows at the end of the year for the Component Unit differs from the
amount of cash and investments reported on the accompanying combined balance sheet by $280.3 million due to
certain investments that are not considered to be cash equivalents.

Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash resources of a majority of individual funds are combined to form
a pool of cash and investments, which is managed by the County Treasurer. Investments in the pooled cash and
cash equivalents accounts consist of U.S. Treasury Notes and other Federal Government securities, certificates of
deposit, commercial paper, revenue anticipation bonds and the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool.

Investments: The County accounts for its investments under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31,
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools,” which established
accounting and financial reporting standards for government investments and investment pools, requiring most
investments to be recorded at fair value and the recognition of unrealized gains and losses in the financial
statements. The County has the ability and intent to hold all investments to maturity. Interest on investments is
accrued as earned and distributed to appropriate funds utilizing a formula based on the average month-end balance
of cash and cash equivalents of appropriate funds. County policy requires interest earned on investments to be
credited to the General fund except where there is a legal requirement such as the Motor Vehicle Gas Tax Special
Revenue fund or where there are bond proceeds for capital improvements such as the Capital Projects fund.

Inventory of Supplies: Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (determined using the first-in first-out method)
or net realizable value. Costs are expensed when inventory is consumed for Proprietary funds and for the Discretely
Presented Component Unit. Costs are recognized as expenditures when inventory is purchased for Governmental
funds.

Board Designated Investments: Board designated investments are investments of the Hospital set aside by
the board of trustees for future capital improvements and for research and development.
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Restricted Assets: The primary government’s restricted assets are composed of the unspent proceeds of
certain borrowings that are restricted for use in specified economic development activities and capital projects, as
well as deposits and investments held at certain financial institutions throughout the County to support the County’s
Housing Enhancement Loan Program (H.E.L.P.), which allows homeowners in County communities to borrow money
from participating financial institutions to repair or remodel their homes or rental property at below market interest
rates. Included in the Discretely Presented Component Unit column are restricted assets consisting of investments
restricted by donors, assets under the control of the bond trustee that are used for payment of principal and interest
on the Hospital’s bonds when due and assets administered by a trustee for the Hospital’s self-insurance and workers’
compensation trust accounts.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation: Fixed assets are stated on the basis of historical cost or, if contributed, at
fair market value at the date received. Infrastructure assets are capitalized only if applicable to Proprietary funds.
Infrastructure assets including streets, bridges and sidewalks are not capitalized in the General Fixed Assets Account
Group. Depreciation is not provided for the General Fixed Assets Account Group. Depreciation for the Proprietary
funds and Hospital is determined by allocating the cost of fixed assets over the estimated useful lives of the assets on
a straight-line basis.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Land improvements 51to 20 years
Utility plant 20 to 50 years
Buildings, structures and improvements 5 to 40 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6 to 22 years
Vehicles 4to 9years

Capitalization of Interest: The County's policy is to capitalize interest on Proprietary fund and Discretely
Presented Component Unit construction projects until substantial completion of the project. Capitalized interest is
amortized on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset. During 2001, the County capitalized
interest amounting to $.2 million.

Compensated Absences: The County records accumulated unpaid sick, vacation and overtime pay benefits
as accrued wages and benefits payable when earned by employees. For Governmental funds, the portion of the
liability, which is not currently due and payable, is recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.
The County utilizes the termination payments method to determine the liabilities for compensated absences as
defined in GASB Board Statement No. 16.

Ohio law requires that vacation time not be accumulated for more than three years. Normally, all vacation
time is to be taken in the year available unless administrative approval for carry-over is obtained. Sick time not taken
may be accumulated until retirement. Employees with a minimum of ten years of service are paid one-fourth of
accumulated sick time at the employee’s current wage rate upon retirement up to a maximum of thirty days. Certain
agencies of the County that are not under the control of the Board of County Commissioners may have slightly
different policies for compensated absences.

Contributed Capital: Contributed capital represents Federal and State capital grants and other financing
resources provided by the County to Proprietary funds. These contributions are not subject to repayment as long as
all grant conditions are met. An amount equivalent to depreciation charges for assets acquired with the portion of
contributions that was externally restricted for capital acquisitions or construction is transferred annually to retained
earnings from contributed capital.

Net Patient Service Revenue: Net patient service revenue of the Hospital is reported at the estimated net
realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are
determined. The Hospital recorded unfavorable adjustments to Medicare and Medicaid revenue of $1.2 million in
2001 due to prior year retroactive adjustments in excess of amounts previously estimated. In addition, management
reduced net patient service revenue $12.1 million in 2001 to provide for estimated third-party settlement uncertainties.
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Net revenue from the Medicare and Medicaid programs accounted for approximately 26% and 33%,
respectively, of the Hospital's net patient service revenue for the year ended December 31, 2001. Laws and
regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to interpretation. Compliance
with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation as well as significant
regulatory action including fines, penalties and exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs. As a result,
there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates could change by a material amount in the near term.
Management believes that an adequate provision has been made in the financial statements for any adjustments that
may result from final settlements.

Nonexchange Transactions: Effective January 1, 2001, the County implemented GASB Statement No. 33,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, and Statement No. 36, Recipient Reporting for
Certain Shared Nonexchange Revenues (an amendment of GASB Statement No. 33). In general, GASB Statement
Nos. 33 and 36 establish accounting and financial reporting standards which address when to report the results of
nonexchange transactions involving financial or capital resources. In a nonexchange transaction, an entity gives (or
receives) value without directly receiving or giving equal value in return. These statements require retroactive
application and, accordingly, the County’s fund balances as of December 31, 2000 have been restated as follows:

Special Debt
General Revenue Service
Fund Funds Fund
Fund balances, as previously reported .........ccccocoveinieericinenn. $ 200,035 $ 123,619 $ 4,010
Increases in assets resulting from implementation:
RECEIVADIES........ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee s 15,327
Due from other funds ............cccoeeveieieennns 229 2,180 192
Due from other governments 20,998 20,944 1,171
Increases in liabilities resulting from implementation:
Deferred reVENUES .........ceevi i (30,310) (20,086) 1,171)
Fund balance as restated.............cccoooeieeiiiieececee e $ 206,279 $ 126,657 $ 4,202

Cash received or receivables recognized with respect to income taxes, property taxes, certain grants and
other nonexchange transactions that do not meet the revenue recognition criteria under GASB Statement Nos. 33
and 36 are recorded as deferred revenues.

GASB Statement Nos. 33 and 36 also require that the County report capital grants and other capital
contributions as revenues rather than contributed capital. Accordingly, during the year ended December 31, 2001,
the County reported $5.5 million of capital contribution revenues in its Enterprise funds rather than crediting the
amounts directly to contributed capital. These capital contribution revenues are composed of $1.6 million of special
assessments and $3.9 million of construction in progress paid for by the Capital Projects funds through the issuance
of general obligation debt and contributed to the County’s Enterprise funds when the assets were completed.

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting allows for the reservation of appropriations to provide for
purchase commitments pertaining to purchase orders, contracts and other commitments. Encumbrances are closed
to unreserved fund balance/retained earnings at year-end and are re-encumbered at the beginning of the following
year.

Interfund Transactions: During the normal course of operations, the County has numerous transactions
between funds including transfers of resources to provide services and construct assets. Interfund transactions are
generally classified as operating transfers in the accompanying financial statements. Operating transfers out are
further categorized as transfers to the Component Unit, for debt retirement or other purposes. Component unit
transfers represent monies transferred to the MetroHealth System. Transfers for debt retirement represent monies
transferred to the Debt Service fund and other transfers represent all other operating transfers out. Residual equity
transfers are non-routine, non-recurring transfers of fund balances between funds.
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Fund Balance: The County records reservations of portions of fund balances which are legally segregated
for specific future uses or which do not represent available, spendable resources and, therefore, cannot be
appropriated for expenditures. Designations of fund balance are amounts that have been designated by
management for a specific future use, but are not legally segregated. Undesignated fund balance represents the
portion of fund equity that is not reserved or designated for a specific purpose.

Risk Management: The County has implemented GASB Statement No. 10, "Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues". Employees’ health insurance is provided through a
commercial insurance program. The County pays a premium to the insurance providers without additional risk to the
County. The County maintains an Internal Service fund to account for the self-insurance of workers’ compensation
benefits through a retrospective rating plan with the State of Ohio. The County recognizes a liability for self-insured
claims if information prior to the issuance of the general purpose financial statements indicates that it is probable that
a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. In addition, the County has designated a portion of the fund balance of its General fund, pursuant to Ohio
law, to provide for claims and judgements not covered by the various County insurance policies.

New Accounting Standards Not Yet Implemented: The GASB has issued Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments, Statement No. 37,
Basic Financial Statements- and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments:
Omnibus an Amendment of GASB Statement Nos. 21 and 34, and Statement No. 38, Certain Financial Statement
Note Disclosures. These statements revise accounting and reporting standards for general purpose external financial
reporting by governmental units and are effective for the year ending December 31, 2002. The County has not
completed an analysis of the impact of these statements on its reported financial condition and results of operations.

During May 2002 the GASB issued Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are
Component Units, which clarifies existing accounting guidance and provides greater consistency in accounting for
organizations that are closely related to a primary government. The standard, which is effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2003, provides criteria for determining whether certain organizations should be reported as
component units based on the nature and significance of their relationship with a state or local government. The
County has not completed an analysis of the impact of this statement on its reported financial condition and results of
operations.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities: In 2001, the Hospital adopted the provisions of
FASB Statement No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, which requires the Hospital
to recognize all of its derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in its financial statements. The Hospital
entered into an interest rate swap agreement in 1999 to effectively convert a portion of its fixed rate debt to a variable
rate basis. This derivative instrument is not designated as a hedging instrument; therefore, gains and losses are
recognized for the Component Unit in the accompanying combined statement of revenues, expenses and changes in
retained earnings — all proprietary fund types as changes in the fair value of the instrument occur. Net amounts
periodically receivable or payable as a result of the swap agreement are accrued as adjustments to interest expense
on the related debt. The implementation of FASB Statement No. 133 was recorded as the cumulative effect of an
accounting change, which increased the net income of the Component Unit for the year ended December 31, 2001
by $1.2 million as reported in the accompanying combined statement of revenues, expenses and changes in retained
earnings — all proprietary fund types.

NOTE C - Cash and Investments
Cash and Investments:

Pooled Cash and Investments: Certain monies for the General fund, Debt Service fund, certain Agency
funds and the Hospital are deposited and maintained in individual segregated bank accounts or invested in
specifically segregated investments. All other funds of the County are held in a common group of bank accounts and
investments. Collectively, these bank accounts and investments represent the Pooled Cash and Investments
account. Amounts reported as cash and investments for the segregated funds and the pooled funds principally
consist of bank balances, certificates of deposit, United States Treasury Notes, U.S. Agencies, commercial paper,
municipal obligations of political subdivisions of the State of Ohio and the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool.
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Certain funds have made disbursements from the pooled cash account in excess of their individual equity in
the pooled cash account. These amounts are reported in the combined balance sheet as "Due to other funds" and
are offset against the General fund’s equity in pooled cash and investments.

A summary of the Pooled Cash and Investments account balance by fund type at December 31, 2001,

follows:
(Amounts in 000's)

Fund Type Due To Equity In
(1T 01T o= RN $ $ 142,509
Due From:

Special Revenue ..........cccoeceeeiiiiiiiiniece e 56,922

ENterprise ......ooovieeiiiieee e 29

Internal Service.........ccocevvviiiiiiiiii e 2,914 (59,865)
Net GeNeral ........uuveeevivieiiiiiiiiieieiereeereeer, 82,644
Special ReVENUE..........covviiiiiieiiie e 79,710
Capital Projects.........cccooeveneeiiieeiiie e 14,540
ENterprise ... 8,170
Internal ServiCe.........ooovvveeeeeeieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 56,840
AGENCY ...t 156,762
Total Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments ...... $ 398,666

Amounts due to other funds by Special Revenue funds will be paid from collection of reimbursements under
grant programs from the Federal and State governments. Amounts owed by the Enterprise and Internal Service
funds will be paid through collection of charges for services.

Deposits and Investments:
Primary Government

Deposits: At year-end, the carrying amount of the County's deposits, including certificates of deposit, was
$47.9 million and the bank balances were $87.9 million. Of the bank balances, $.3 million was covered by federal
depository insurance and $87.6 million was uncollateralized as defined by the GASB. These deposits were, however,
covered by collateral held by the pledging institution's agent in the name of the depository or the Federal Reserve
Bank of Cleveland in pooled securities accounts which were not in the County's name, as permitted under Ohio law.
The pooled securities serve as collateral for all public deposits held by the banks, including the County's deposits.
The Ohio Revised Code requires that the market value of securities held in the pool be at least equal to 105% of the
public deposits held by the banks. Ohio law requires that deposits be placed in eligible banks or savings and loan
associations located in Ohio. County policy is to utilize federally insured banks and savings institutions located in the
County.

Component Unit

Deposits: At December 31, 2001, the financial statement carrying amount of the Hospital’s deposits was $.6
million and the actual bank balances, including accrued interest, totaled $.5 million. Federal depository insurance
covered approximately $.1 million of the Hospital’s deposits at year-end and are thus a category (1) deposit risk in
accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 3. The remainder was uncollateralized as defined by the
GASB as it was secured by collateral pools of U.S. Government and municipal securities held by the pledging
institution’s agent or the Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland in the name of the depository.
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Primary Government and Component Unit

Investments: The County’s Statement of Investment Policy, approved by the County’s Investment Advisory
Committee, authorizes investment by the County in investments permitted under the Ohio Revised Code. Eligible
investments include U.S. Treasury Bills and Notes, backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government,
obligations of U.S. government agencies, commercial paper, bankers acceptances, obligations of political
subdivisions of the State of Ohio, certificates of deposit or savings or deposit accounts in an eligible institution defined
in the Ohio Revised Code, State Treasurer's Investment Pool, shares in open-end no-load money market mutual
funds registered under the Federal Investment Act of 1940 and repurchase agreements. Ohio statute prohibits the
use of reverse repurchase agreements. County investment policy restricts repurchase agreements to durations of
30 days or less and all investments to maturities of not more than 5 years.

GASB Statement No. 3 ‘"Deposits with Financial Institutions, Investments (including Repurchase
Agreements), and Reverse Repurchase Agreements” requires the County to categorize its deposits and investments
into one of three credit risk categories. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which
the securities are held by the County or its agent in the County's name. Risk category 2 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the
County's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the
counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the County’s name.

At December 31, 2001, the County's Primary Government investments were as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Investment Type Category 1 Fair Value/Carrying Value
U.S. Treasury NOES .......c.cerierieriiiieeie e $ 5,067 $ 5,067
U.S. Agency ODbligations ..........ccceeverieerieenienee e 348,119 348,119
Commercial Paper........c.ooooiciiieieiiiieee e 17,284 17,284
Municipal Revenue Anticipation Bonds ............cccccevievenneens 18,900 18,900

$ 389,370 389,370
STAr OO .. 39,141
Total Primary Government Investments............c..ccocoevenene. $ 428,511

At December 31, 2001, the County’s Component Unit investments were as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Investment Type Category 1 Category 3 Fair Value/Carrying Value
U.S. Treasury Notes .........cceeeevevenrencnnenne. $ 23,446 $ $ 23,446
U.S. Agency Obligations 123,362 123,362
Repurchase Agreements ...........ccccocceeeeeene 8,693 8.693

$ 146,808 $ 8,693 155,501
Money Market FUNAS .........cceeeiiiiiiiiiiiies 124,602
Total Hospital Investments...........ccccccevueenen. $ 280,103

Amounts invested in the State Treasurer’s Investment Pool (Star Ohio) and money market funds are not
classified by risk category because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. Star
Ohio is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s. It is the objective of the fund to stabilize the net asset value per unit at
$1.00 for the purpose of sale and redemption of units of the fund, but it is not guaranteed. Star Ohio is not a
registered fund subject to regulatory oversight as the fund is only offered to Ohio public subdivisions with investment
authority. Star Ohio is authorized under Section 135.45 of the Ohio Revised Code and has been used by Ohio public
entities since its inception in 1986 as a short-term investment vehicle to meet daily liquidity needs.

26



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2001

NOTE D - Interfund Receivables and Payables

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances as of December 31, 2001 follow:

(Amounts in 000's)
Interfund Interfund

Fund Types Receivables Payables
(T 0 1= =TI LU o T TN $ 88,485 $ 32,193
Special Revenue Funds:

HUMAN SEIVICES .....coeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeevevevevevevavavanees 14,915 59,104

Health and Human Services Levies..........ccccevvveveeneee. 123,265

Motor Vehicle Gas TaX......cccoeoeeeericereiiiiee e 115 644

County Board of Mental Retardation .......................... 89,520 1,520

Health and Community Services ...........ccceevvierernnnen. 25,069 842

Community Development ...........cccooieeeiniieeeeniieeees 325 687

L0 1 =T SRR 1 73
Total Special Revenue FUNdS.........ccooceveiiiiieeeiiee e 253,210 62,870
Debt Service FUNd..........cooooviviiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee, 21,897
Capital Projects FuNd..........ccooeeeiiiiiiiiiiie e 82 1
Enterprise Funds:

Sanitary ENgiNeer..........cocoviiiiiiiiieiien e 3 200

County AIMPOI....cceiiiiieeie e 34

Huntington Park Garage..........cccoveeeenveeneeenieeneenen 16

Cuyahoga County Information System.............c.c....... 39 _2
Total Enterprise FUNAS.........ccovvvieieiiiieeceee e 42 252
Internal Service Funds:

Central Custodial Services ........ccoeeeeveviiiiiiiieieeeeeeiinnnn, 32 1,103

Maintenance Garage.........cccooceevvienienniiesiee e 134 630

Data Processing Center ........ccccocoeeviienieeniee e 61 69

Printing, Reproduction and Supplies ...........ccccceeeiernne 214 17

COMMUNICALIONS....uveeeereeiee e e e e e 282 2,328

Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation.............ccco........ 8,417 -
Total Internal Service Funds...........coooeveeeieiiiiiiiiieee 9,140 4,147
Agency Funds:

PaYIOIl .. 4,773

UNdivided TaX......ccvvveeeeereirireierrrererererererererereee.——. 267,643

(0] (g - 10,523
Total Agency FUNAS.......ccoooiiiiiiiiii e 4,773 278,166
B 1o 7 PP $ 377,629 $ 377,629
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A summary of interfund receivables/payables of the General fund follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Fund Types Receivables Payables

Special Revenue Funds:

HUMAN SEIVICES ......oevvvieieieieieieeeieieveierereverevesaeaeeanaes $ 56,251 $ 14,915
Health and Community Services ..........cccccvevvverernnnen. 13,052
Community Development ..........ccoceveieiinieenieenieee, 671
Total Special Revenue FUuNdS.........c.coccceveviiieeiniiiee e, 56,922 27,967
Enterprise Funds:
County AIMPOM........eeiiiiiiieeeie e 29
Cuyahoga County Information System....................... _ 29
Total Enterprise FUuNdS.........ccoeviiiiiiiiiiieeee e 29 29

Internal Service Funds:

Central Custodial Services 32
Maintenance Garage..........cccvovevereerniieeneeenieeseee e 622 66
Printing, Reproduction and Supplies ...........cccccveenunen. 123
COoOMMUNICALIONS.....uueeiiiiic e 2,292 189
Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation..............cccceeuee 2,438
Total Internal Service Funds............cocoeeeeeeiiiiiiiiiiee 2,914 2,848
Agency Funds:
Payroll ... 1,349
UNdivided TaX.....oouueeieieieieiiiee e 21,471
(15T TSR 7,149
Total Agency FUNAS.........cccooiiiiiieiniiece e 28,620 1,349
o) =1 [ $ 88,485 $ 32,193

The receivables from Special Revenue, Enterprise and Internal Service funds represent amounts overdrawn
from the pooled cash account which are owed to the General fund. The receivable from the Undivided Tax Agency
fund represents property taxes levied in 2001 to be received in the General fund in 2002. The receivable from Other
Agency funds represents investment earnings and fees deposited in various outside bank accounts.

The amounts payable to the Human Services and Health and Community Services funds represent
additional subsidies due each of the funds. The amount payable to the Cuyahoga County Information System is for
computer charges from various General fund agencies. The amounts payable to Internal Service funds represent
unpaid charges at December 31, 2001. The amounts payable to the Payroll Agency fund represent current charges
for employee medical benefits and the early retirement program (see Note G).
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NOTE E - Contributed Capital - Proprietary Fund Types

A summary of reductions to contributed capital during 2001 for the County's Enterprise funds follows:

(Amounts in 000’s)
Less: Depreciation
and Disposition

of Fixed Assets

Contributed Capital Acquired with Contributed Capital
Enterprise Funds At Beginning of Year Contributed Capital At End of Year
Sanitary ENgineer ........ccoceeveeeenenienesennens $ 9,015 $ 812 $ 8,203
County AIrport.......cocceeerveeeiieeeniee e 9,770 374 9,396
Huntington Park Garage ..........ccccceeeeennnen. 1,408 _ 483 925
TOtal e $ 20,193 $ 1,669 $ 18,524

NOTE F - General Fixed Assets

A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

Asset Type 2001 Additions Deductions 2001
Land.....cccocoeeeeeee e $ 29,879 $ 3,672 $ 79 $ 33,472
Land improvements .........cc..cco...... 1,570 1,318 2,888
Buildings, structures

and improvements................... 387,745 62,523 5,364 444,904
Furniture, fixtures

and equipment........cccccoooiinnis 18,270 1,421 291 19,400
Vehicles ....cooviiieiieieieeiee e 12,922 299 423 12,798
Construction in

progress{!) ..o, 100,490 24,196 62,269 62,417
TOAIS oo $ 550,876 $ 93,429 $ 68,42 $ 575,879
(1) Includes $3.9 million of construction in progress paid for by the Capital Projects fund through

the issuance of general obligation debt and contributed to the County’s Enterprise funds in

2001 when the assets were completed.
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A summary of construction commitments at December 31, 2001 follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Authorized

Project Expended as of Future
Function Amount December 31, 2001 Commitments
General government.............. $ 10,259 $ 7,714 $ 2,545
Judicial......cccceeeiiiiiiiiiiieen, 124,167 47,519 76,648
Social services..........cceevvnnnne. 15,798 1,329 14,469
Health and safety................... 7,500 5,557 1,943
Public works........ccccevvveveveeenes 1,118 298 820
TotalS....ccooeeciveeieeeeeeeeee $1 42 $ 62,417 $ 96,425

The future construction commitments are expected to be financed primarily through bonded debt.




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2001

NOTE G - Debt and Other Obligations

Notes Payable and Long-Term Liabilities:

A summary of the County’s notes payable and long-term liabilities at December 31, 2001 is provided below:

(Amounts in 000's)

Year Interest Balance Balance
Issued Rate January 1 Additions Reductions  December 31
Capital Projects Fund:
2001 Bond Anticipation Notes
Orange Place Extension — Due in 2002............ccocerereeieenennns 450% $ 1,820 $ 4,260 $ 3,640 $ 2,440
Enterprise Funds:
Various Loans Payable ..........cccccveeirieuinieenieieesieesiee et 4.04% -7.00% $ 6,818 $ $ 461 $ 6.357
2001 Special Termination Benefits — Due thru 2006 7.75% 688 _69 619
Notes Payable:
2001 Bond Anticipation Notes
Olmsted Township and Shady Road Improvements
—DUE N 2002.......ccooiiiiciicicee s 3.00% 5,560 5,845 5,560 5,845
2001 Bond Anticipation Notes
Chagrin Falls Waterline — Due in 2002 5.00% 260 520 520 260
Total Notes Payable 5,820 6.365 6.080 6.105
Self-Supporting Bonds Payable:
1992 Sewer Improvement-Due thru 2012..........ccccoeeniinincnnnnns 3.50%-6.50% 1,725 100 1,625
2000 Sewer Improvement-Due thru 2020..... . 4.55%-5.55% 1,040 __30 1,010
Total Self-Supporting Bonds Payable.. 2,765 _130 2,635
Total Enterprise Funds $ 15,403 $ 7,053 $ 6,740 $15,716
Internal Service Funds:
Various Equipment Capital Lease Obligation
- Due through 2005 $ 718 $ $ 281 $ 437
2001 Special Termination Benefits — Due thru 2006 ... 7.75% _ 5,158 449 4,709
Total Internal Service FUNS .........cccocoieiiiciiecieceeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 1718 $ 5,158 $ 730 $ 5,146
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group:
Accrued Wages and Benefits..........ccceeereennenineeseenenenes $ 21,221 $ 914 $ $22,135
1999 Installment Purchase Agreement — Due thru 2009................ 5.26%-5.46% 16,952 o 1,584 15,368
Loans Payable:
1989 Environmental Protection Agency — Due thru 2007 ............ None 165 27 138
1997 Ohio Department of Development Loan — Due thru 2016... None 4,000 - 250 3,750
Total Loans Payable ..........ccooeeiiiieniinieniceeccecee 4,165 - 277 3,888
Various Capital Lease Obligations
-Due thru 2023 ......... 2,165 8.520 1.074 9,611
2001 Special Termination Benefits — Due thru 2006....................... 7.75% _ 28,340 2,425 25,915
General Obligation Bonds - Unvoted:
1983 Building Improvements-Due thru 2004 ..............ccccocvnvnnenne. 9.375% 3,500 875 2,625
1983 Health Service Facilities-Due thru 2004 9.375% 1,480 370 1,110
1983 Auditorium-Due thru 2004.................... 9.375% 700 175 525
1983 Street Improvements-Due thru 2004 9.375% 200 50 150
1983 Sanitary Improvements-Due thru 2004.............. . 9.375% 800 200 600
1993 Various Purpose Refunding Bonds-Due thru 2012 . . 2.20%-5.25% 38,015 3,000 35,015
1993 Rock and Roll Hall of Fame-Due thru 2018.......... . 2.75%-5.65% 9,970 345 9,625
1995 Various Purpose Improvements-Due thru 2015 . 38.75%-5.50% 25,410 2,190 23,220
2000 Capital Improvements-Due thru 2020............ . 4.30%-5.75% 96,615 - 2,555 94,060
Total General Obligation Bonds - Unvoted 176,690 - 9,760 166,930
General Obligation Bonds - Voted:
1991 Jail Il Series — Due thru 20086.............ccceveeeevieeeiieeeiree e 6.95%-7.05% 5,086 5,086
1993 Jail Facilities and Various Purpose Refunding Bonds
-Due thru 2013 2.20%-5.25% 38,709 - 5,360 33,349
Total General Obligation Bonds - Voted 43,795 - 5,360 38,435
Total Tax Supported Bonds ...........coereereenieieeieeieeieieeeens 220,485 - 15,120 205,365

(CONTINUED)
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DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)
Year Interest Balance Balance
Issued Rate January 1 Additions Reductions December 31
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group (Concluded):
Self-Supporting Bonds:
1976 Sewer Improvement 615A-Due thru 2001 6.50% 155 155
Total Self-Supporting Bonds 155 155
Revenue Bonds:
1992 Gateway Economic Development-Due thru 2022 .......... Variable $ 35,200 $ $ 1,600 $ 33,600
1992 Gateway Economic Development-Due thru 2022 .......... 8.625% 35,000 35,000
1994 Gateway Economic Development-Due thru 2023 .......... 4.45%-7.60% 38,675 1,270 37,405
1994 Cleveland Foundation Economic Development
-DUE thru 2002 .......coivieiieieeieieee e 3.00% 770 627 143
1998 Brownfield Economic Redevelopment
—DUE thru 2018 ... s 5.31%-6.75% 14,585 460 14,125
2000 Shaker Square Redevelopment-Due thru 2030 6.75% 2,855 2,855
Total Revenue Bonds 127,085 3,957 123,128
Total Bonds Payable 347,725 19,232 328,493
Total General Long-Term Obligations Account Group................. $392,228 $ 37,774 $24,592 $ 405,410
Component Unit
Capital Lease Obligation:
Various Equipment Obligations-Due thru 2007 ...........cccceeeveeuenennen 4.958%-4.96% $_12,278 $ 757 $ 2,483 $ 10,552
Bonds:
1997 Hospital Improvement and Refunding
Revenue Bonds-Due Thru 2027 ..........cccoeeeveevveeeinnnne 3.90%-5.80% 62,145 323 3,815 58,653
1997 Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds-Due thru 2019 ...... 4.10%-5.50% 68,173 432 220 68,385
1999 Hospital Improvement Revenue Bonds-Due thru 2029.. 6.125%-6.15% 56,783 _8 56,791
Total BONAS ..o 187,101 763 4,035 183,829
Total Component Unit $199,379 $ 1,520 $ 6,518 $ 194,381

Capital Lease Information: The following summarizes future minimum lease payments under the capital
leases, and the present values of net minimum lease payments for the Primary Government at December 31, 2001:

(Amounts in 000's)

General Long-Term
Obligations

Internal Service

Year Account Group funds

2002, e $ 1,894 $ 307
1,833 100
1,784 33
1,714 25
1,674

2007-20TT ittt 8,320

2012-2016....eeeeeeeiieeiee ettt 497

201720271 ...ttt e 42

2022-2023.....ccceieiieeiee e . 4 _

Total Minimum Lease Payments.............cccccceennnis 17,762 65

Amount Representing Interest ............cocceeeviiiiinnnen. (8,151) _(28)

Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments..... $ 9,611 $ 437
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The following summarizes future minimum payments and the present values of net minimum lease
payments for the Component Unit’s equipment capital leases at December 31, 2001:

(Amounts in 000's)
Year Equipment Obligation
2002t $ 3,388
2003, et e 3,388
2004 ...t e 2,529
2005, et 779
2006ttt 779
Thereafter ... 780
Total Minimum Lease Payments............ccccoceeeninnnnes 11,643
Amount Representing Interest ..., (1,091)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments........ $ 10,552

As of December 31, 2001, the carrying value of the fixed assets recorded as capital leases under the
General Fixed Assets Account Group, Internal Service funds and Component Unit were $35.9 million, $1.4 million
and $14.4 million, respectively.

Future Debt Service Requirements: A summary of the County’s future debt service requirements for its
outstanding long-term bonds, notes, installment purchase agreement and loans payable at December 31, 2001 are
as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)
General Long-Term
Obligations
Enterprise Funds Account Group
Due In Principal Interest Principal Interest
2002.....ccciiieieieee $ 7,224 $ 797 $ 21,757 $ 20,140
2003....cceeeiereeeeee 470 310 22,502 18,974
2004.....cccoeieieieene 483 293 21,119 20,064
2005.....cceiieieeeeee 502 275 20,331 19,718
2006......ceeerereineennne 521 255 19,496 18,836
2007-2011 ..o, 2,934 954 90,221 83,239
2012-2016 ............... 2,239 377 71,228 50,398
2017-2021 .......cc.eee. 724 59 65,025 17,051
2022-2026 ............... 15,550 1,496
2027-2030 ........c....... 520 82
o] c=1 - $ 15,097 $ 3320 $ 347,749 $ 249,998

33



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)
Component Unit
Principal and Interest

$ 14,782
14,770
14,769
14,768
14,746

291,865
365,700

Amount representing interest ..........ccccceeeeeeeenee. (171,530)
Unamortized difference between reacquisition

price and the net carrying amount of

previously defeased debt (8,226)
Unamortized discount...........cccoevvveieiiiieeeniienenns (2,115)
Present value of net minimum payments............. $ 183,829

Component Unit Swap Agreement: In 1999, the Component Unit entered into a 15 year interest rate swap
agreement for a notional amount of $56 million of its fixed rate general obligation bonds. Based on the swap
agreement, the Component Unit makes payments calculated at a variable rate equal to the BMA Swap Index to the
counterparty to the swap. In return, the counterparty makes payments to the Component Unit based on the fixed rate
of 5.41%. Only the net difference in payments is exchanged with the counterparty. The $56 million in bond principal
is not exchanged; it is only the basis on which the interest payments are calculated. The net interest savings for 2001
was $1.5 million and was recorded as a reduction in interest expense. At December 31, 2001, the fair value of the
swap agreement based on its current settlement value was a positive $2 million which was recorded as an other
asset in the accompanying combined balance sheet. The increase of $.8 million in the fair value of the swap during
2001 is recorded as an unrealized gain on investments.

Long-Term Bonds: All long-term bonded debt of the Primary Government is retired from the Debt Service
fund, except bonds payable from Enterprise funds which will be paid from cash flows generated by these funds.
General obligation bonds are secured by the County’s ability to levy a voted or unvoted property tax within limitations
of Ohio law. Self-supporting bonds, except revenue bonds, are secured by an unvoted property tax levy; however,
each bond indenture provides for principal and interest to also be paid from user charges. The revenue bonds are
secured by non-tax revenue of the County.

Under the Uniform Bond Act of the Ohio Revised Code, the County has the capacity to issue approximately
$120 million of additional unvoted general obligation debt.

Accrued Wages and Benefits: County employees become eligible to receive one-fourth of their accumulated
unpaid sick leave upon retirement after a minimum of ten years of service. Certain agencies may have policies that
vary with regard to payment of accrued sick leave upon retirement. Termination of employment must be by
retirement to receive accumulated unpaid sick leave. Employees with a minimum of one year of service become
vested in accumulated unpaid vacation time. Vacation time may not be accumulated for more than three years.
Unused vacation time is payable upon termination of employment. In general, employees are eligible to be paid for
unpaid overtime and unused compensatory time upon termination of employment. All sick, vacation, compensatory
and overtime payments are made at the employee's current wage rate.
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The accumulated unpaid sick, vacation, compensatory and overtime hours for which the $22.1 million

liability recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group at December 31, 2001 was based were as
follows:

Amount
Type Hours (in 000's)
S]] 21,960 $ 389
Vacation.........ooeevvveeeeeeeeeeennnnnn.. 1,150,997 20,384
Overtime .......coooeveveveeeeeeeeeeeeeees 76,879 1,362
B o) =1 1,249,836 $ 22,135

Special Termination Benefits: In May 2001, the Board of County Commissioners authorized the purchase of
additional service credit (equal to 20% of accumulated service time up to a maximum of 5 years) under PERS (see
Note H) for certain employees close to retirement as an incentive to retire early. The Early Retirement Incentive
Program (ERIP) was approved for participating departments and agencies of the County by agreement with the
County Commissioners. Eligible employees have until June 30, 2002 to elect to participate in the program. As of
December 31, 2001, 401 employees had accepted the program resulting in a total cost of $34.2 million payable to
PERS. This cost and the related obligation was allocated to the County’s funds and General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group as follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Enterprise FUNAS........cooieiiiiiiiiiee e $ 688
Internal Service FUNAS .........cooovvvveeieeiiiiiiieeeeeeeee, 5,158
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group...... 28,340
LI 7= | TR $ 34,186

As of December 31, 2001, $2.4 million of the amount initially credited to the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group had been paid and recognized as an expenditure by the County’s Governmental funds. Payments
are made to PERS in quarterly installments over the life of the purchased service credit. The following summarizes
the future payment requirements to fund the cost of the special termination benefits for the employees who had
elected to participate in the plan by December 31, 2001:

General Long-Term
Proprietary Obligations
Year Funds Account Group
2002, e $ 1,446 $ 6,993
2003..c e 1,428 6,922
2004 ... i 1,396 6,787
2005, 1,344 6,475
2006, ciiieiie e 744 3,780
Total Termination Benefit Payments........ 6,358 30,957
Amount Representing Interest ................. (1,030) (5,042)
Net AMouNnt.......ccccveviverie e $ 5,328 $ 25915

As of December 31, 2001, the County estimated 665 employees would elect to participate in the future
(through June 30, 2002). All or a portion of these employees could elect to participate in the future (through June 30,
2002), which would increase the County’s cost of the program along with its obligation to PERS.
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Advance Refunding of General Obligation Bonds: On March 19, 1993, the County issued general obligation
bonds amounting to $140.7 million with interest rates ranging from 2.2% to 5.25%. The issues consisted of voted and
unvoted refunding debt as well as new voted debt. The unvoted refunding debt amounted to $75.4 million, the voted
refunding debt amounted to $49.4 million and the additional voted debt amounted to $15.9 million. The refunding
debt proceeds were used to advance refund outstanding debt of $115.6 million which consisted of $49.6 million and
$66 million of voted and unvoted debt, respectively. The County advance refunded the bonds to reduce its total debt
service payments over the next 20 years by $1.5 million and $2.9 million on voted and unvoted debt, respectively,
and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and
new debt) of $1.2 million and $2.2 million on voted and unvoted debt, respectively. The aggregate amount of the
defeased General Obligation Bonds outstanding at December 31, 2001 is $3.5 million. The remaining proceeds from
the issuance were used to fund various capital projects.

Advance Refunding of Component Unit Bonds: Effective February 1, 1997, the County issued $70 million of
Hospital Improvement and Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 1997. The proceeds of the Series 1997 Bonds were
used to advance refund $20.9 million of Series 1989 Bonds scheduled to mature on February 15, 2007; to advance
refund $2.4 million, $2.6 million and $2.7 million of the Series 1989 Bonds stated to mature on February 15, 1999,
February 15, 2000 and February 15, 2001, respectively; to finance the construction of various improvements and
additions to the MetroHealth Medical Center; and to pay costs of issuance of the Series 1997 Bonds.

Effective November 1, 1997, the County issued $77.5 million of Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series
1997A. The proceeds of the Series 1997A Bonds were used to advance refund $73.7 million of Series 1989 Bonds
scheduled to mature on February 15, 2019. The 1997 refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition
price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $9.8 million. This unamortized difference ($8.2 million at
December 31, 2001) is reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from long-term debt and is
being charged to operations through the year 2019 using the effective interest method.

Other Financial Obligations

Operating Leases: During the year 2001, the County had approximately 73 operating leases for office space
and equipment. At December 31, 2001, there were 40 remaining with future obligations. The operating lease
agreements range in length from one month to ten years. Total rental payments for 2001 amounted to $5.6 million,
of which $760,000 was expended from proprietary funds. Rental obligations for the years 2002 through 2011 are
$11.8 million of which $1.3 million represents the amount to be paid from proprietary funds. Rental payments for the
years 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006 will be $5.1 million, $4.0 million, $1.9 million, $.5 million and $.4 million,
respectively. Operating lease payments are recorded as an expenditure in the period to which they apply.

The Hospital has entered into operating lease agreements for a parking facility, medical space and office
space which expire through 2011. Certain leases contain rent escalation clauses and renewal options for additional
periods ranging from two to five years. Rent expense totaled $1.2 million in 2001. Minimum rental commitments
under operating leases extending beyond one year at December 31, 2001 are as follows: 2002 - $1.2 million; 2003 -
$1.2 million; 2004 - $1.1 million; 2005 - $11.4 million; 2006 - $.3 million, thereafter - $.9 million.

Gateway Loan Guarantees: The County currently guarantees the repayment of $35.5 million of bonded debt
of Gateway. This amount represents the outstanding par amount of bonds of two issues, the original outstanding
amount of which was $38.4 million of Subordinate Excise Tax Revenue Bonds and $31.0 million of Stadium Revenue
Bonds. As of December 31, 2001, the outstanding balance on these Gateway bond guarantees, including future
interest payments, was $8.9 million on the Subordinate Excise Tax Revenue Bonds (payable through September 1,
2005), and $38.1 million on the Stadium Revenue Bonds payable through September 15, 2014). The County has not
been required to make any payments on behalf of the Gateway bonds.

Conduit Debt Obligations: Periodically, the County has issued Industrial Development, Hospital Revenue
and Mortgage Revenue Bonds to provide financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and
construction of industrial, commercial and hospital facilities deemed to be in the public interest. These bonds are
secured by the property financed and are payable solely from payment received on the underlying mortgage loans.
The bonds do not constitute a debt or pledge of the full faith and credit of the County and, therefore, are not reported
in the financial statements. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-
sector entity served by the bond issuance.
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As of December 31, 2001, the aggregate principal amounts outstanding for the Industrial Development,
Hospital Revenue and Mortgage Revenue Bonds were $218.1 million, $1.5 billion and $155.8 million, respectively.

NOTE H - Pension and Retirement Plans and Other Post-employment Benefits
Primary Government

PERS PLAN DESCRIPTION: All full-time employees of the County, except teachers employed by the
County Board of Mental Retardation, participate in the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS). Itis a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability benefits,
annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 145 of the Ohio
Revised Code assigns the authority to establish and amend benefits to the PERS Board of Trustees. PERS issues a
stand-alone financial report. A copy of the report may be obtained by making a written request to the Public
Employees Retirement System of Ohio, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642, or by calling (614) 466-
2085.

PERS FUNDING POLICY: The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer
contributions. Employees are required to contribute 8.5% of covered payroll, except for law enforcement employees.
In January 2001, House Bill 416 divided the PERS law enforcement program into two separate divisions with
separate employee contribution rates and benefits as follows: (1) The law enforcement classification which consists
of sheriffs and deputy sheriffs with an employee contribution rate of 10.1% and (2) all other members of the law
enforcement program who were placed in a newly named public safety division and are required to contribute 9%.
The employer contribution rate is 13.55% of covered payroll, except for law enforcement which is 16.70%. There was
a temporary employer contribution rate rollback effective July 2000 through December 2000. The rates were 8.13%
of covered payroll except for law enforcement personnel for which the contribution rate was 14.70%. The total
employer contributions from the County to PERS (excluding amounts paid in 2001 for ERIP — See Note G) for the
years 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $51.5 million, $40.3 million and $45.2 million, respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year.

OPEB BENEFITS PROVIDED THROUGH PERS: In addition to the pension benefits described previously,
PERS provides postretirement health care coverage to age and service retirants with 10 or more years of qualifying
Ohio service credit. Health care coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor recipients is also available.
The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB)
as described in GASB Statement No. 12.

A portion of each employer’s contribution to PERS is set aside for the funding of postretirement health care.
The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority requiring public employers to fund postretirement health care
through their contributions to PERS. The portion of the employer contribution rate used to fund postretirement health
care for 2001 and 2000 was 4.3% of covered payroll. During 2001 and 2000, $16.3 million and $15.9 million,
respectively, of the County’s total contribution to PERS was used for postretirement benefits. At December 31, 2001,
the County was not responsible for paying premiums, contributions, or claims for OPEB under PERS for any retirees,
terminated employees or other beneficiaries.

The OPEB is advance-funded on an actuarially determined basis through employer contributions and
investment earnings thereon. The principal assumptions used for the 2000 actuarial computations (latest available)
were as follows:

Funding Method: The entry age normal actuarial cost method of valuation is used in determining the
present value of OPEB. The difference between assumed and actual experience (actuarial gains and
losses) becomes part of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

Assets Valuation Method: For actuarial valuation purposes, a smoothed market approach is used. Under
this approach assets are adjusted annually to reflect 25% of unrealized market appreciation or depreciation
on investment assets.

Investment Return: The investment return assumption for 2000 was 7.75%.
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Active Employee Total Payroll: An annual increase of 4.75%, compounded annually, is the base portion of
the individual pay increase assumption. This assumes no change in the number of active employees.
Additionally, annual pay increases, over and above the 4.75% base increase, were assumed to range from
0.54% 10 5.1%.

Health Care: Health care costs were assumed to increase 4.75%.

At December 31, 2000, (latest information available), there were 411,076 active participants contributing to
the plan. The County’s actuarially required OPEB contribution for 2000 equaled the actual amount contributed to
PERS by the County. In addition, at December 31, 2000, the actuarial value of the plan’s net assets available for
OPEB approximated $11.8 billion and the actuarial accrued liability and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability,
based on the actuarial method used, were $14.4 billion and $2.6 billion, respectively.

The contributions allocated to retiree health care, along with investment income on allocated assets and
periodic adjustments in health care provisions, are expected to be sufficient to sustain the program indefinitely.

STRS PLAN DESCRIPTION: Teachers employed by the County Board of Mental Retardation (CBMR)
participate in the State Teachers Retirement System Of Ohio (STRS). It is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan. STRS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code assigns the authority to
establish and amend benefits to the STRS Board of Trustees. STRS issues a stand-alone financial report. A copy of
the report may be obtained by making a written request to the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio, 275 East
Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3771 or by calling (614) 227-4090.

STRS FUNDING POLICY: The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer
contributions. Employees are required to contribute 9.3% of covered payroll. The employer contribution rate is 14%
of annual covered payroll. The employer contributions from the County Board of Mental Retardation to STRS for the
years 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $1.9 million, $1.9 million and $1.8 million, respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year.

OPEB: STRS also provides OPEB to plan members. The qualifications required to receive benefits
replicate PERS. STRS has established a Health Care Reserve fund to accumulate monies for OPEB. The portion of
the employer contribution rate allocated to the Health Care Reserve fund was 4.5% of covered payroll. The County’s
contributions for OPEB for the years 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $.6 million, $.8 million and $1 million, respectively,
equal to the required contributions for each year.

The balance in the Health Care Reserve Fund was $3.3 billion at June 30, 2001 (latest information
available). For the year ended June 30, 2001, the net health care costs paid by STRS were $300.8 million and there
were 102,132 eligible recipients.

Component Unit

Retirement and OPEB benefits for Hospital employees are provided through PERS in the same manner as
employees of the County’s primary government. The Hospital’s total contributions to PERS for the years 2001, 2000
and 1999 were $32.5 million, $24.3 million and $28.8 million, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each
year. The portion of the Hospital's total contribution to PERS which was used to fund OPEB for the years 2001 and
2000 was $10.5 million and $9.5 million, respectively.

NOTE I - Deficit Balances

At December 31, 2001, the County Airport, Central Custodial Services and Communications funds had
retained earnings deficits of $.8 million, $4.7 million and $2.6 million, respectively. The County Airport is an
Enterprise fund and the Central Custodial Services and the Communications funds are Internal Service funds. The
deficits will be eliminated through adjustment of the related fee schedules.
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NOTE J - Fund Equity

Reserves and Designations: The County segregates fund balances using two different account categories;
reserved and designated. Two general types of reserved fund balance accounts are used. The first type indicates
the portion of fund balance which is legally segregated for a specific future use. The second type indicates the
portion of fund balance which does not represent available, spendable resources and is, therefore, not eligible to fund
current year expenditures. Designations indicate the portion of the unreserved fund balance which management has
earmarked for a specific future use. Designations are not legal segregations.

Reserve accounts used by the County include:

Reserved for Restricted Assets: This account represents the portion of fund equity that includes grants and
contributions made to the Hospital (Component Unit) which have been restricted by donors or grantees for specific
purposes and assets held by the Hospital in a custodial nature. At December 31, 2001, the balance in this account
was $5.2 million. Earnings on investments of these assets are included in restricted assets unless such earnings are
not restricted by donors.

This account also represents the portion of the General fund’s equity that includes certificates of deposit that
support the County’s Housing Enhancement Loan Program (H.E.L.P.) and the unspent proceeds of the County’s
Brownfield Economic Redevelopment bonds. At December 31, 2001, the balance in this account was $37.3 million of
which $25.5 million represents the fund equity related to the certificates of deposit and $11.8 million represents the
fund equity related to the Brownfield Redevelopment bond proceeds.

Reserved for Loans Receivable: This account is used to separate the portion of fund equity that pertains to
long-term loans receivable and is not available for current expenditure. At December 31, 2001, $15 million has been
reserved for loan repayments.

Reserved for Debt Service: This account is used to separate the portion of fund equity that must be used to
fund principal and interest on Gateway Economic Development Revenue Bonds in the succeeding year as well as the
equity balance in the Debt Service fund. At December 31, 2001, $8.3 million has been reserved for debt service.

Designation accounts used by the County include:

Designated for Self-Insurance: This account is used to designate resources which management has
earmarked to fund any claims or judgements against the County which are not covered by insurance. At December
31, 2001, $1.1 million has been designated for self-insurance.

Designated for Proprietary Funds: This account is used to designate resources which management has
earmarked to retire outstanding Enterprise and Internal Service funds' deficits. At December 31, 2001, $8.2 million
has been designated for future Enterprise and Internal Service funds' subsidies.

NOTE K - Risk Management and Other Contingencies
Primary Government

Litigation and Claims: There are certain pending and threatened lawsuits and other claims against the
County. The County’s management, after consultation with the County Prosecutor, is of the opinion that the potential
uninsured claims against the County are not material to the County’s combined financial statements.

Contingencies Under Grant Programs: The County participates in a number of Federal and State assisted
grant programs. These programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by grantors or their representatives.
The County believes that disallowed claims, if any, will not have a material adverse effect on the County's financial
position.
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Self-Insurance: The County has designated $1.1 million of the fund balance of the General fund, pursuant
to Ohio law, to provide monies for claims and judgements not covered by the various County insurance policies.
Settled claims from risks covered by the County's insurance policies have not exceeded the insurance coverage for
the past three fiscal years. Actual expenditures for claims and judgements against the County in 2001 and estimates
for unsettled claims at December 31, 2001, including those incurred but not reported, were immaterial. The County is
also self-insured with respect to unemployment and workers’ compensation benefits. Self-insurance expenditures
were immaterial for unemployment compensation in 2001. Since 1992, the County has maintained an Internal
Service fund for its self-insured workers’ compensation benefits administered through a retrospective rating plan with
the State of Ohio. Prior to 1992, the County was fully insured for workers’ compensation benefits. The County uses
a payroll-based rate to charge its various funds for workers’ compensation benefits. These charges are contributed
into the Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation fund and are based on estimates needed to pay current claims and
establish a reserve for claims incurred but not reported. Changes to the estimated claims payable recorded in the
Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation fund during the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 were:

(Amounts in 000’s)

Estimated Claims Payable 2001 2000

Estimated claims payable beginning of year...........ccccocceevieennenn. $ 18,827 $ 33,252
Plus: Current year claims and changes in estimates................... 4,833 (13,047)
Less: Claim payments(1) ............................................................ 5,070 1,378
Estimated claims payable end of year .........c.ccocceviiiiieinieennenne $ 18,590 $ 18,827

(1) The 2000 amount is net of a $2 million one-time, state-wide dividend credit the Ohio Bureau of Workers’
Compensation allowed the County to offset against its claim payments during that year only.

Uncertainties associated with estimates of workers’ compensation liabilities can often result in wide ranges
of reasonably possible estimates. Estimates developed in the year a claim occurs can vary significantly. Normally, a
finite estimate of cost for a specific claim does not become fixed and determinable until a determination of the benefit
award is made by the Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation. This can occur several years after an injury occurs
and a claim is filed. During 2000, the County reduced its estimated workers’ compensation liability recorded in prior
years by approximately $17.6 million based on the recommendation of an independent actuary. Since the County
entered the retrospective rating program in 1992, it had recorded its best estimate of the liability each year without the
assistance of an actuary. The passage of time since the County’s entry into the retrospective program has provided
sufficient historical information to enable the County’s previous liability estimates to be refined and an actuary was
consulted to assist in this process. Nevertheless, there is no assurance that additional costs greater than the amount
accrued at December 31, 2001 will not be incurred or that changes in workers’ compensation laws or their
interpretation will not require that additional amounts be spent.

Special Termination Benefits: The State of Ohio has granted statutory authority enabling Ohio public
employers to establish early retirement incentive programs. In conjunction with this program, the County Board of
Mental Retardation (CBMR) adopted a plan in 1999, which allows for participation by eligible CBMR employees in
such a program. The plan is in effect for the period July 1, 2000 through June 30, 2002 during which time eligible
employees may elect to retire in exchange for the County paying the necessary amount to PERS and STRS (see
Note H) to enable the individuals to receive full retirement benefits under these plans. In 2001, $.7 million was paid to
PERS and STRS under the program. Because CBMR pays these costs when employees elect to participate in the
program, there are no amounts recorded as a liability in the accompanying combined balance sheet.

Component Unit

Self-Insurance: ~ The Hospital is self-insured for professional and patient care third party liability and
workers’ compensation benefits. For the professional and patient care liability, professional insurance consultants
have been retained to determine funding requirements. Amounts funded for professional and patient care have been
placed in an irrevocable, self-insurance trust account, which is being administered by a trustee.
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Losses from asserted claims and from unasserted claims identified under the Hospital’s incident reporting
system are accrued based on estimates that incorporate the Hospital's past experience, as well as other
considerations including the nature of each claim or incident and relevant trend factors. The reserve for estimated
self-insured claims includes estimates of the ultimate costs for both reported claims and claims incurred but not
reported, discounted at a rate of 6%. The changes in the reserve were as follows during the years ended December

31, 2001 and 2000:

(Amounts in 000’s)
Estimated Claims Payable 2001 2000
Estimated claims payable beginning of year............cccccceevveenneen. $ 29,685 $ 24,987
Plus: Current year claims and changes in estimates................... 18,169 16,577
Less: Claim payments .........ccccoeviieeeiiienieeieesee e 18,383 11,879
Estimated claims payable end of year.........c.ccccocevvivevceenieennnennn $ 29,471 $ 29,685

NOTE L - Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is employed in all County funds during the normal course of operations for
purchase orders and contract-related expenditures/expenses. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are closed to
unreserved fund balance/retained earnings and are re-encumbered at the beginning of the succeeding year.

At December 31, 2001, encumbrances outstanding in Governmental funds and Proprietary funds which

were reappropriated in the 2002 budget were:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
(=Y 01T =TI 1] o I $ 31,426
Special Revenue funds ........cccocceeviiiieeiiniiei e 123,355
Capital Projects fund ..........cccoovieeiiniieeeeiee e 68,369
Enterprise funds ..........oooviiiiiiee e 3,461
Internal Service funds..........ccooviiiiiiiiiin e 13,724
1o £ SR $240,335

On a GAAP basis, a portion of these encumbrances represented liabilities of the County. At December 31,

2001, encumbrances recorded as liabilities were:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
(=Y 01T =TI 11T Lo $ 3,265
Special Revenue funds ........cccocceeviiiieniniiee e 33,638
Capital Projects fund ...........ccoiieeniiiiiieneeeeeee e 5,335
Enterprise funds ..o 389
Internal Service funds..........ccocvveiiiiiiein e 1,628
1o £ SR $ 44,255
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NOTE M - Property Tax Revenues

Property taxes include amounts levied against real, tangible (used in business) and public utility property.
The assessed value upon which the 2001 tax collection was based follows:

Property Type (Amounts in 000’s)
Real Property .......cccoceeeieeeniee e $ 24,341,838
Personal tangible property 3,011,512
Tangible public utility property .........ccccooveeeiiiienennnns 1,218,900
Total assessed Value ..........ccocccvvveeeeeeeeieccireeeeee e, $ 28,572,250

Ohio law prohibits taxation of property from all taxing authorities in excess of 10 mills of assessed value
without a vote of the people. Presently, the County levies 1.45 mills of the first 10 mills of assessed value of which
.52 is designated for debt service and the remainder is credited to the County’s General fund. In addition to the 1.45
mills, 10.27 voted mills have been levied for debt service, mental retardation, health and human services and health
and welfare. A summary of voted millage follows:

Voter Rates Levied for Final
Authorized Current Year Collection
Purpose Rate (1) Collection (2) Year
Agricultural/ Commercial/
Residential Industrial
Debt ServiCe....ccooeveveeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee, $ 27 $ 27 $ 27 2013
Mental retardation 3.90 3.48 3.42 2005
Health and human services.................. 3.00 1.82 2.14 2004
Health and welfare...........cccccceeeeeeenns 3.10 2.76 2.71 2003
Total voted millage........ccccoeeevveeiiennns $ 10.27 $ 8.33 $ 8.54
(1) In mills per $1,000 of assessed valuation.
(2) Onhio law provides for a credit to certain voted levies to offset inflation in the value of real property.
The mental retardation, health and human services and health and welfare levies are subject to this
credit.

Real property taxes are levied each December on the assessed values as of the preceding January 1st, the
lien date. Assessed values are established the preceding year by the County Auditor at 35% of appraised market
value. A revaluation of real property is required to be completed no less than every six years, with a statistical update
every third year. The most recent revaluation was completed in 2000. Public utility property taxes are assessed on
tangible personal property, as well as land and land improvements at true value, which is, in general, net book value.
Tangible property is assessed at 25% of true value except for inventories which are assessed at 25% of average
value. Personal property (other than public utility property) taxes are levied in October of the preceding calendar year
based on tax rates determined in the preceding year and assessed values determined at the close of the most recent
fiscal year of the taxpayer that ended on or before March 31 of the current calendar year. Under Ohio law, personal
property taxes do not attach as a lien on the personal property. Public utility real and tangible personal property
taxes collected in one calendar year are levied in October of the preceding calendar year on assessed values
determined as of January 1 of that preceding year, the lien date.

The County Treasurer bills and collects property taxes on behalf of all taxing districts in Cuyahoga County
including the County. Taxes are payable semi-annually. The County's practice is to extend the statutory due dates to
January and July. Unpaid taxes become delinquent after December 31 of the year they are due. Foreclosure
proceedings may be initiated by the County Prosecutor if delinquent taxes are not paid within one year.

The County Auditor periodically remits portions of the taxes collected to all taxing districts. The final
settlements of real and public utility property taxes are made in June and November and tangible taxes in July and
December for the first and second halves of the year, respectively.

42



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2001

The County accrues property taxes as receivables since they can be measured and recorded when an
enforceable legal claim exists. The receivables are also recorded as deferred revenue since they are recorded in
advance of the year for which they are levied. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they
are levied.

Property tax revenues were recorded in the following funds in 2001:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
(=Y 01T =TI 1] o 1R $ 22,646
Special Revenue funds ........cccococeeeiiiierenieee e 217,629
Debt Service fund..........eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeiiieeeeeeeeeeeeerevereeerererenee. 19,335
Total property tax revenues...........ccccceeeeiiiiieieeeeee e $ 259,610

Property tax revenues include levies collected from both the current levy and delinquent levies. The
cumulative delinquency as of December 31, 2001 for Cuyahoga County was $33.0 million. The delinquent property
tax revenue was not recorded in the financial statements due to the uncertainty of collection. Recording the
delinquency would not have an impact on the fund balances of the County since it would be offset by a reserve for
doubtful accounts.

The delinquent property taxes described above do not include certain receivables that have been sold to a
third party. Since 1998, the County has sold, on a nonrecourse basis, certain qualifying, delinquent real estate tax
receivables, along with the related liens, to a third party in exchange for cash payments that approximated the face
value of the receivables. In connection with the sale of the receivables, the third party obtained the right to foreclose
on the related properties, as well as charge interest and certain fees on the delinquent amounts. The cash payments
received by the County were credited to the County’s Undivided Tax Agency fund and distributed to the various
taxing districts within the County (including the County) in the same manner as if the delinquent receivables had been
collected directly from the taxpayers.
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NOTE N - Segment Information for Enterprise Funds and Component Unit

The County maintains four Enterprise funds which provide sanitary sewer, airport, parking, and regional
crime information services. The County also has a component unit which operates as a hospital (see Note A).
Segment information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2001, follows:

(Amounts in 000's)

Cuyahoga
Sanjtary Count Hung;r;gton Infcz:)?r':\gttlon En;l;eor?rlise Component
Engineer Airpo Garage System Funds nit

Operating revenues ..........ccccecererenenennens $ 9,065 $ 678 $ 2,543 $ 2,547 $ 14,833 $ 434,235
Operating expenses

before depreciation ...........cccccveevreenen. 9,230 842 1,476 2,510 14,058 449,970
Depreciation..........cceeeeverienieniesiesiesens 1,340 _420 533 1 2,294 32,300
Operating inCOMe(l0SS) .......ccoererererenenns (1,505) (584) 534 36 (1,519) (48,035)
Nonoperating revenues(expenses)

other than grants-net. (365) (365) 8,967
Operating grants 5,829
Operating transfers in.........ccccceeeenincnnene 158 1,415 1,573 25,050
Operating transfers out...........ccccceveevrennene (646) (50) (696)
Current capital contributions...................... 1,859 137 3,597 5,593
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle - - - - - 1,232

Net income(loss) (11) (289) 3,485 1,401 4,586 (6,957)
Property, plant and equipment:

AdAItIoONS ..o 4,313 220 3,597 8,130 20,471

DispositionS.......ccccceveenieiiniise e, 1,957 1,957 487
Net working capital .........ccccoooerienenieniene 1,706 (90) 767 1,322 3,705 6,083
Total @SSetS ....coovcviviiriirieirieee e 43,868 8,810 5,716 1,511 59,905 583,930
Bonds and other long-term liabilities:

Payable from operating revenues........ 9,007 19 9,026 250,959
Total fund equity 26,511 8,644 5,565 1,307 42,027 236,534
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NOTE O - Other Intergovernmental Revenue

A summary of the principal components of other intergovernmental revenue for the year ended December
31, 2001 follows:

Fund Type (Amounts in 000's)
General fund:
State Public Defender reimbursement.............oeevvvevvvvevnnnne $ 5,999
State property tax reimbursement...........cccocieiiinniiiiieenne 3,431
(1 = PSRRI 721
Total General fund............cooviveiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees $ 10,151
Special Revenue funds:
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development ...... $ 15,328
U.S. Department of JUSEICE ........coveeeveiiiiieeeeee e, 15,879
Federal and State mental health and retardation............... 159,379
Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
AddiCtion SErViCEeS .......coevvviiviiiiieiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeverererereaaaens 20,697
Ohio Department of Job and Family Services.................... 333,747
Ohio Department of Rehabilitation and Corrections........... 4,051
Ohio Department of Transportation ...........cccoccceeeiiiieennnee. 476
Ohio Department of Youth Services ........cccccocveeeeiceenenee. 1,186
State property tax reimbursement...........cccoceeiiiiiiiiineens 14,660
(3 T R 5,374
Total Special Revenue funds...........cccoevvieieeiieeniee e $ 570,777
Debt Service fund:
State property tax reimbursement...............cccceeeeecieeeeennen. $ 3,562
Capital Projects fund:
Ohio Department of Job and Family Services.................... $ 2,404
Ohio Department of Mental Retardation.............c.cccceenne. 93
Ohio Department of Transportation ...........ccccceevveerveennenn. 18,778
OthEr e 5,928
Total Capital Projects fund .........cccooeeeiiiiinieniiecee e $ 27,203

NOTE P - Interfund Transactions

During the normal course of operations, the County has numerous transactions between funds which
include operating and residual equity transfers. Operating transfers are transfers of resources from a fund receiving
revenue to a fund through which those resources will be expended. Residual equity transfers are non-routine, non-
recurring transfers of equity between funds, usually transfers of residual balances of discontinued funds.

Operating transfers are recorded as other financing sources (uses) in Governmental funds and as
nonoperating revenues (expenses) in Proprietary funds. Residual equity transfers are recorded separately as an
adjustment to beginning fund balance in Governmental funds and as an adjustment to contributed capital or retained
earnings, as appropriate, for Proprietary funds.
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A summary of interfund transfers by fund type follows for the year ended December 31, 2001:

(Amounts in 000's)

Fund Type Transfer From
Special Capital Internal
Transfer To General  Revenue Projects Enterprise  Services Total
Operating Transfers:
General......ccceeceeecieeeee e $ $ 658 $ 6,000 $ $ $ 6,658
Special Revenue.........ccccccoevveenee. 61,906 160,563 24 50 222,543
Debt Service ......coovveeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeens 10,677 646 11,323
Capital Projects.........ccccovvvevueenne. 1,408 6,576 600 8,584
Enterprise ......ccccccveevieiciiiieeeeeee 1,573 1,573
Internal Service.........cccccvveeveenennn. 214 214
Component Unit.........ccoccvvvveenennn. 6,835 18,215 _ _ 25,050
Total Operating Transfers ................. $ 82613 $ 186,012 $ 6,024 $ 696 $ 600 $ 275,945
Residual Equity Transfers:
General......coecceeeceeeeiee e $ $ 68 $ $ $ $ 68
Special Revenue..........ccccvvveeeen.. _ 28 22 _ _ _50
Total Residual Equity Transfers......... $ 0 $ % $ 2 $ 0 $ 0 § 118
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NOTE Q - Transactions with Gateway

In 1990, the County, the city of Cleveland and Gateway Economic Development Corporation of Greater
Cleveland (Gateway) entered into a three party agreement which authorized Gateway to construct, own and provide
for the operation of a sports facility which included a baseball stadium, an arena and a joint development site.
Gateway was incorporated on May 31, 1990 and is a governmental not-for-profit corporation legally separate from
any other entity.

The County and Gateway also entered into a revolving loan agreement whereby the County agreed to issue
bonds and loan the bond proceeds to Gateway to pay arena construction costs. As part of this agreement, the County
issued taxable Economic Development Revenue Bonds of $75 million on September 24, 1992 and $45 million on
February 1, 1994. At December 31, 2001, the County has $106 million of debt outstanding relating to these bond
issues (See Note G).

The amount due from Gateway under the revolving loan agreement is $170.3 million at December 31, 2001,
including unpaid accrued interest. During 2001, Gateway repaid the County over $2 million and the remaining amount
is fully reserved due to the uncertainty of the repayment from Gateway.

The County, Gateway and the Convention and Visitors Bureau of Greater Cleveland (the Bureau) entered
into a cooperative agreement on September 15, 1992, which included a provision that allowed a credit to be given to
Gateway for the incremental amount the Bureau receives from the County Transient Occupancy Tax to use as
payment to the County for the bonds issued. This agreement was amended on December 22, 1998 to redefine the
annual incremental credit and to provide for the deposit by the Bureau for the years 1994 through 1998. The County
received $1 million from this agreement during the year ended December 31, 1999. The County will receive $.2
million during each subsequent year, subject to certain adjustments. The County received $.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001.

The County has also guaranteed the repayment of certain bonds issued by Gateway. See Note G for the
details of the County’s guarantee.

NOTE R - Loans

Loans receivable represent economic development and property rehabilitation loans outstanding under the
Federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and various other grant and development programs. The
loans are either non-interest bearing or have below market interest rates and are made to qualifying citizens and
businesses for rehabilitation of real property within the County. The loans are secured by mortgages against the
individual properties and generally have various repayment terms which may extend over several years.
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Financial Section

PART II

COMBINING FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES

Combining financial statements are presented for
individual funds within the Special Revenue, Enterprise,
Internal Service and Agency funds. Schedules of financial
activity are also presented for the General Fixed Asset
Account Group.

The General fund, Debt Service fund and Capital
Projects fund are each reported in a single fund and,
therefore, do not require presentation of financial statements
below the combined level. However, the General fund is
presented on a Non-GAAP budgetary basis reflecting the
legal level of control.




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
GENERAL FUND

THE GENERAL FUND IS ESTABLISHED TO
ACCOUNT FOR ALL FINANCIAL RESOURCES EXCEPT
THOSE REQUIRED TO BE ACCOUNTED FOR
IN ANOTHER FUND.
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AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Property taxes .......occeeeeiiieeeeeee e 22,419 $ 22,571 $ 152
Sales ANd USE taX......ccevveeeereeeieerererreereereeererersrnrererereae.. 157,944 158,018 74
Other taX .eo.eee e 74 13 (61)
State local government fund ...........ccccoovcieeiiiiiineieeen. 40,837 41,048 211
Licenses and permits .........coocveveiiiieenniieee e 150 104 (46)
Charges for SEIVICES .......cueviiriiii e 54,129 61,163 7,034
Fines and forfeitures ........cccooveeiiiiiii i, 6,300 6,013 (287)
Investment earnings........cccevvveee e 25,000 28,750 3,750
Other intergovernmental ............ccocoeriiiiiieenic e, 10,565 10,343 (222)
MiISCEIIANEOUS ........cevvvieieeeeeeeeee e 9,354 5,286 (4,068)
TOTAL REVENUES........cooieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 326,772 333,309 6,537
EXPENDITURES
Current:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Vital Statistics
(O] { 1= ST 24 21 3
Total Vital Statistics........cceeeviiiiiieieiiieeeeeee e, 24 21 3
Bureau of Inspection
(O] (o= 528 483 45
Total Bureau of InSpection ...........ccccovcveeiiiieerennnee 528 483 45
Auditor
Personnel......cccccceeeiiii 5,400 5,380 20
(O] (0= 4,900 4,069 831
Capital.....ccceeeeeee 73 6 67
L0 = LI 0 Lo [ 10,373 9,455 918
Board of Elections
Personnel......cccccceveiiii 6,129 6,010 119
(] (o= 5,547 5,122 425
Capital....ceeeeeee e 251 40 211
Total Board of Elections.........cccuueviieeeiiiiiiiiiieeeene, 11,927 11,172 755
Board of Revision
Personnel .......cooeeeiiiiiiiieeeeeece e, 276 275 1
Total Board of Revision...........ceeeeveviiiieviiieeeeeeeeene 276 275 1
(Continued)
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(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
County Commissioners
Personnel.......ccoooeeiiiiiiiceeieeeeeeee e, 1,034 1,032 2
(O] (g 486 459 27
Capital.....ccceiiieeee 3 3
Total County COMMISSIONErS ........cvveiviieeriieeeeneee 1,523 1,494 29
County Administrator
Personnel ... 733 706 27
(O] (g =T 897 721 176
Capital.....ccceeiieee e 8 8
Total County Administrator..........cccceveeeeeveiiereneeee. 1,638 1,435 203
Human Resources
Personnel......cccccceeeieii 1,980 1,960 20
(O] (o= 3,178 2,915 263
Capital.....ccceeiieee e 41 34 7
Total Human REeSOUICES ........ccvvvveeeeeeeeeeiiiceee e, 5,199 4,909 290
Employment Relations
Personnel ... 744 739 5
(O] (o= 502 370 132
Capital....ceeeeeee e 4 3 1
Total Employment Relations ... 1,250 1,112 138
Benefits
Personnel........cooooiiiiiiieeecieeeee e 450 439 11
(O] (o= 370 180 190
Capital....ceeeeeee e 2 2
Total BenefitS .....coooeviieeiieieieeeeeee e 822 619 203
Labor Relations
Personnel.......cccoooeieeiiieiiieeecee e 405 395 10
(O] { 1= SN 39 36 3
Capital.....ccoieeeeeiie e 2 2
Total Labor Relations ..........coouvveeeiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeinn, 446 433 13
Office of Budget and Management
Personnel.......coooeiiiiiiiiieeieeeecee e 1,049 1,033 16
(O] (=T 2,523 1,222 1,301
Capital.....ccceieieee e 4 2 2
Total Office of Budget and Management................. 3,576 2,257 1,319
(Continued)
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(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Clerk of the Board

Personnel.......ccoooeeiiiiiiiceeieeeeeeee e, 404 394 10

(O] (2= 101 100 1

Capital.....ccceiiieeee 2 1 1
Total Clerk of the Board ..........ccccoeeevevieiiiiininnennn. 507 495 12
Procurement and Diversity

Personnel ... 887 833 54

(O] (g =T 1,007 773 234

Capital.....ccceeiieee e 4 1 3
Total Procurement and Diversity ..........cccccceeeennnes 1,898 1,607 291
Risk and Property Management

Personnel ... 594 482 112

(O] (o= 2,864 2,174 690

Capital.....ccceeiieee e 24 16 8
Total Risk and Property Management..................... 3,482 2,672 810
Archives

Personnel ..o 175 173 2

(] (o= 732 620 112

Capital....ceeeeeee e 9 8 1
Total ArChiVES .....ooeeieeeeeceeeeeeeeeee e 916 801 115
Recorder

Personnel......cccccceeeiiiii 4,114 4,110 4

(O] (o= 2,403 1,497 906

Capital.....ccccceeeeeciee e 149 33 116
Total RECOrdEr ...cooveveeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 6,666 5,640 1,026
Treasurer

Personnel.......ccoooeiiiiiiiieeeeeeeecee e 3,721 3,696 25

(O] (o= 2,569 2,112 457

Capital...coeeeeeeee e 4 1 3
Total TreasUrer.....ccoeeeeeeeieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 6,294 5,809 485
Reserve/Contingencies

(O] (0= 7,156 7,156
Total Reserve/Contingencies ........ccccccveeeeeceeeeennneen. 7,156 7,156

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT .......cccovvieeeeeeeins 64,501 50,689 13,812
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
JUDICIAL

Board & Care of Prisoners

Other e 2,967 2,777 190
Total Board & Care of Prisoners ..........cccccceeeeeeee.... 2,967 2,777 190
Court of Appeals

Personnel......ccccccoeeeeeii 1,279 1,277 2

Other e 1,231 707 524

Capital.....ccceeiieee e 33 33
Total Court of Appeals ........cccceveviieeeeiiiieeeeiee e 2,543 2,017 526
Clerk of Courts

Personnel......cccccceeeieii 5,817 5,798 19

(O] (0= 3,925 3,576 349

(07 o] 1 - S 118 104 14
Total Clerk of Coumts .......oooevveviiiiiiiiiieeeeee 9,860 9,478 382
Court of Common Pleas - Law Library

Personnel ..o 186 186

(O] { 1= SRR 2 2

Capital....ceeeeeee e 2 2
Total Court of Common Pleas - Law Library ........... 190 186 4
Common Pleas Legal Research

(@1 =1 RO 208 111 97
Total Common Pleas Legal Research..................... 208 111 97
Common Pleas-Judicial Administration

Personnel........coooeeiiiiiiieeeieiecee e, 5,834 5,826 8

(©]1 1= ST OUSUTRR PR 15,585 15,088 497

Capital.....coceeeieee e 22 14 8
Total Common Pleas-Judicial Administration.......... 21,441 20,928 513
Common Pleas-Referees

Personnel ..o 701 700 1

(O] (2= 204 195 9

Capital.....coceeiiieeee e 13 13
Total Common Pleas-Referees..........cccccoeeeeeeeeenn... 918 908 10

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Common Pleas-Court Services
Personnel.......ccoooveeeiiiieeiiieeceeeeeeeeee e 6,088 6,078 10
(O] (o= 714 714
Capital.....ccoeieieee e 42 9 33
Total Common Pleas-Court Services...................... 6,844 6,801 43
Common Pleas-Probation/Psychiatric
Personnel......cccccceeeieiii 7,340 7,324 16
(O] (o= 3,565 2,151 1,414
Capital.....ccoeeiiee 68 29 39
Total Common Pleas-Probation/Psychiatric............ 10,973 9,504 1,469
Coroner
Personnel......ccccccoeeeieii 4,245 4,220 25
(O] (o= 2,117 1,829 288
Capital....ceeeeeeee e 14 14
Total COrONEN ....ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 6,376 6,063 313
Domestic Relations Court
Personnel......ccccccoeeeieii 2,605 2,580 25
(O] (o= 1,310 1,165 145
Capital...ceeeeieeee e 120 31 89
Total Domestic Relations Court...........cooeeeeeeeeeee.n. 4,035 3,776 259
Domestic Relations-Bureau of Support
Personnel.......coooeiviiiiiieeeiieeeee e 2,759 2,721 38
(O] { 1= SO 806 723 83
Capital....ceeeeeee e 75 75
Total Domestic Relations-Bureau of Support.......... 3,640 3,519 121
Justice Affairs Administration
Personnel........cooeeiiiiiiicieeeeieeee e, 436 429 7
(O] (2= 371 288 83
Capital...coeeeeeeee e 2 2
Total Justice Affairs Administration ......................... 809 719 90
Justice Affairs-Criminal Justice
Personnel.......ccooeeeiieiiiieeeeeeeecee e, 485 435 50
(O] (0= 180 34 146
Capital.....coceeiiieee e 4 4
Total Justice Affairs-Criminal Justice ...........c.c........ 669 473 196
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Witness Victim Services

Personnel........cooeeiiiiiiiiceeieeeeece e 583 583

(O] (o= 225 181 44

Capital.....ccoeieieee e 4 4
Total Witness Victim Services........ccccceeeveveeeeennnn... 812 768 44
Criminal Justice Intervention Services

Personnel ... 53 52 1

(O] (1= SR 83 68 15

Capital.....ccceeiieee e 4 4
Total Criminal Justice Intervention Services............ 140 124 16
Domestic Violence One-Stop Program

Personnel ..o 96 11 85

(1 1= SRR 599 599

Capital....ceeeeeeee e 5 3 2
Total Domestic Violence One-Stop Program.......... 700 14 686
Juvenile Court-Administration

Personnel......ccccccoeeeieii 2,467 2,374 93

(O] (o= 7,101 6,147 954

Capital....ceeeeeeee e 11 10 1
Total Juvenile Court-Administration ........................ 9,579 8,531 1,048
Juvenile Court-Legal

Personnel ... 6,209 6,176 33

(©]1 =1 OO SR 5,062 3,789 1,273

Capital....ceeeeeee e 11 11
Total Juvenile Court-Legal .........ccoeveviiiiiiiiieienee 11,282 9,976 1,306
Juvenile Court-Probation

Personnel........oo i 5,747 5,733 14

(O] (0= 4,592 4,384 208

Capital...coeeeeeeee e 8 7 1
Total Juvenile Court-Probation.............c.oeeeeeeee. 10,347 10,124 223
Juvenile Court-Child Support

Personnel........oooo e 2,582 2,547 35

(O] (0= 389 344 45

Capital ..ooeeeeeeee 11 3 8
Total Juvenile Court-Child Support ..........cccceeenneen. 2,982 2,894 88

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Juvenile Court-Detention Home

Personnel.......ccoooeeiiiiiiiieeieeeecee e 7,815 7,801 14

(O] (=T 4,377 4,272 105

Capital.....ccoeieieee e 44 38 6
Total Juvenile Court-Detention Home...................... 12,236 12,111 125
Municipal Judicial Costs

Personnel......cccccceeeeeii 2,476 2,476

(O] (0= 511 496 15
Total Municipal Judicial Costs..........ccccvverieeeennnen. 2,987 2,972 15
Village and Township Costs

(O] { 1= SRR 5 5

Total Village and Township COStS........cccccvevernnen. 5 5
Probate Court

Personnel.......cooeeeiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeecee e, 4,824 4,562 262

(O] (o= 1,602 1,539 63

Capital.....coceeeieee e 58 40 18
Total Probate Court.........coooovvveieeiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeee, 6,484 6,141 343
Public Defender

Personnel.......ccooooiiieiiiceieieiecee e 4,975 4,963 12

(O] (o= 2,136 853 1,283

Capital.....ccceeeieee e 37 37
Total Public Defender...........oooouueeeiieiiiiieeeeeeeeeeee 7,148 5,816 1,332
Prosecutor-General Office

Personnel.......ccoooooiiieiiee e 12,681 12,640 41

(O] (=T 2,622 1,888 634

Capital.....coceeeieee e 40 34 6
Total Prosecutor-General Office.........ccccceeeeeeeneen.... 15,243 14,562 681
Prosecutor-Child Support

Personnel ... 2,462 2,453 9

(O] { 1= SO 152 151 1

Capital.....ccceeiieee e 9 9
Total Prosecutor-Child Support...........cccovveerieennnen. 2,623 2,613 10
Prosecutor-Children and Family Services

Personnel ... 2,342 2,331 11

(O] { 1= SR 91 75 16

Capital...coeeeeeeee e 9 9
Total Prosecutor-Children and Family Services...... 2,442 2,415 27

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Sheriff
Personnel.......ccoooeeeeieiieeiiieeeeeee e 48,172 48,073 99
(01 1= SRRSO UURRRRRROOt 18,257 11,388 1,869
Capital.....ccoeeeiiee e 211 139 72
Total Sheriff......coooiieeeeeeee e, 61,640 59,600 2,040
Sheriff-lInmate Services
Personnel......cccccceeeieii 3,275 3,274 1
(©]1 =T SO USRS 3,597 3,071 526
Capital.....coceeeiee 29 18 11
Total Sheriff-lnmate Services.........ccccceeveeeveeennnn... 6,901 6,363 538
TOTAL JUDICIAL. ...t 225,024 212,289 12,735
DEVELOPMENT
Development-Administration
Personnel ... 114 113 1
Capital...coeeeeeee e 2 2
Total Development-Administration ............ccccccevueeee. 116 113 3
Economic Development
Personnel......cccccoeieiii 649 575 74
(©]1 9 1= SO USRS 1,707 1,379 328
Capital.....ccceiiieeee 6 6
Total Economic Development ...........ccccveeveeeieeinens 2,362 1,960 402
NOACA
(01 =1 S S PUUTRROP 149 149
Total NOACA ... 149 149
Soil Conservation
(©]1 =] OSSR 107 106 1
Total Soil Conservation.........ccccceeeeeeeeiieieee, 107 106 1
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT ... 2,734 2,328 406
SOCIAL SERVICES
Cooperative Extension
(O] (0= 363 363
Total Cooperative EXtension .........cccoccvvveeviieeeinnnen. 363 363
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Graves for Indigents
(O] (o= TN 8 7 1
Total Graves for Indigents..........ccccceevieenieriiiennnenn, 8 7 1
Children Who Witness Violence
Personnel ..o 214 205 9
(] (o= 783 370 413
Capital....ceeeieeee e 2 2
Total Children Who Witness Violence....................... 999 575 424
Ombudsman Program
(O] (g R 244 244
Total Ombudsman Program..........ccccoceeeevereveeennnen. 244 244
Veterans Service Commission
Personnel.......ccooeeeiiiiiiieeeeeeeecee e 1,443 1,435 8
(O] (0= 8,975 8,541 434
Capital.....ccceeiieee e 10 2 8
Total Veterans Service Commission ...........ccce....... 10,428 9,978 450
TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES .......coooeviveieeeiiieieeeeeeeeeeees 12,042 11,167 875
HEALTH AND SAFETY
Agriculture and Apiary Inspection
(O] (1= SRR 1 1
Total Agriculture and Apiary Inspection................... 1 1
Treatment Service Division
Personnel........cooeeiiieiiiiceeeeiiecce e 143 143
(O] (o= 183 163 20
Total Treatment Service DiviSion .......ccccceeeeeeeeeennn.. 326 306 20
CECOMS Center
Personnel ... 600 597 3
(O] (2= 416 278 138
Capital.....ccceeeeeee 3 1 2
Total CECOMS Center........cooeevvveieeeiiiiiieeeeeeee 1,019 876 143
Hospital Operations
(O] (g T=Y SRR 186 186
Total Hospital Operations...........ccccceeviieeeiniieee e, 186 186
TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY .covveiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 1,632 1,368 164
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
MISCELLANEOUS
Agricultural Society
Other ... 3 3
Total Agricultural SOCIety .........ccevveeiiierieeiieeee, 3 3
Memorial Day Allowances
(013 =Y SRR 52 51 1
Total Memorial Day Allowances............cccocceveernnee. 52 51
Soldiers and Sailors Monument
Personnel......c.oeeeieicciiiiiiiie e 71 70 1
(01 =Y ST 46 42 4
Capital....oeeeeeee e 2 2
Total Soldiers and Sailors Monument ..................... 119 112 7
Cuyahoga County School District
Other ... 104 96 8
Total Cuyahoga County School District................... 104 96 8
Self Insurance
Other ... 1,000 491 509
Total Self INSUranCe ......ccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 1,000 491 509
Miscellaneous
Personnel......cccccceeeiiiii 2,443 2,443
Other ... 1,085 685 400
Total MisCellaneous .......cccoeevveieieieieeeeiieeeeeeeeeeeeee, 3,528 685 2,843
Data Systems Development
Other ... 479 479
Total Data Systems Development..........cccccceeeenneee. 479 479
Capital Improvement G/F Subsidy
Other ... 500 500
Total Capital Improvement G/F Subsidy ................. 500 500
TOTAL MISCELLANEOQUS. ..o 5,785 1,438 4,347
TOTAL EXPENDITURES.......ccoe e 311,618 279,279 32,339
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES ..ot 15,154 54,030 38,876
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)
General Fund
Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers iN..........cccevvvereenieenee e 6,680 6,680
Operating transfers out:
Component UNit.........coovieieeiiienee e (6,835) (6,835)
Debt retirement (10,683) (10,678) 5
Other .., (37,359) (37,155) 204
NET OTHER FINANCING USES (54,877) (47,988) 6,889
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES.......cccoiiiiieeieereeenee e (39,723) 6,042 45,765
FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR.............. 153,003 153,003
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS IN......ccccceiiieniene 68 68
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR ........ccccuverinnans $ 113,280 $ 159,113 $ 45,833
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS ARE USED TO ACCOUNT FOR
SPECIFIC GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES (OTHER THAN
MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS) REQUIRING SEPARATE
ACCOUNTING BECAUSE OF LEGAL OR REGULATORY
PROVISIONS OR ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION AND
EXPENDITURES FOR SPECIFIED PURPOSES.

Human Services To account for revenue from the Federal, State and
County governments and expenditures used to
provide entitlement services, senior and adult
programs, children and family services and
employment services to eligible county residents.

Health and Human Services Levies To account for revenue from Health and Human
Service Levies. Levies and expenditures are
determined by policies of the Board of County
Commissioners.

Motor Vehicle Gas Tax To account for Motor Vehicle Gas Tax federal and
state revenues which are distributed to various
municipalities and townships for repair and building of
streets and bridges.

County Board of Mental Retardation To account for revenues primarily from the State and
the special mental retardation levy and expenditures
thereof which are used for the benefit of the mentally
retarded and developmentally disabled.

Health and Community Services To account for revenues from the Federal, State and
County governments and expenditures thereof as
prescribed under the various health and community
service functions including mental health and alcohol
and drug programs.

Community Development To account for revenue from the Federal government
and expenditures as prescribed under the Community
Development Block Grant Program and Housing and
Urban Development Programs (HUD).

Other To account for miscellaneous special revenue grants
received by the county. Health and Community
Services Grants have been combined with this special
revenue fund.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and
investments.........cccoveeneeiienicneee
Accounts receivable
Loans receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments .
TOTAL ASSETS. .....coormrermsernnns

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable .
Deferred revenue.
Due to other funds
Accrued wages and benefits ............
TOTAL LIABILITIES ....cooveevvveirieienne

FUND BALANCE

Reserved for loans receivable..........

Unreserved:
Undesignated............cccoeieiiicnne.

TOTAL FUND BALANCE..................

TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND EQUITY .....cccevmrurnrnnns

Budgeted Annually

Health and County Health Total
Human Motor Board of and Annually
Human Services Vehicle Mental Community Budgeted
Services Levies Gas Tax Retardation Services Funds

$ 229 30,874 $ 11,300 30,000 $ 72,403
376 376
14,915 123,265 115 89,520 25,069 252,884
69,177 6,935 10,764 8,369 23,950 119,195
$ 84,092 130,429 41,753 $ 109,189 79,395 $ 444,858
$ 20,422 12 1,486 $ 4,066 35,260 $ 61,246
128,476 7,480 92,987 11,800 240,743
59,104 644 1,520 842 62,110
4,566 538 2,964 1,593 9,661
84,092 128,488 10,148 101,537 49,495 373,760
1,941 31,605 7,652 29,900 71,098
1,941 31,605 7,652 29,900 71,098
$ 84,092 130,429 41,753 $ 109,189 79,395 $ 444,858
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Multi-Year Budgeted

Total
Multi-Year
Community Budgeted 2001

Development Other Funds Totals
$ $ 7,307 $ 7,307 $ 79,710
376
14,013 14,013 14,013
325 1 326 253,210
3,836 3,836 123,031
$ 18,174 $ 7,308 $ 25,482 $ 470,340
$ 2,880 $ 4,205 $ 7,085 $ 68,331
2,636 2,636 243,379
687 73 760 62,870
62 187 249 9,910
3,629 7,101 10,730 384,490
14,013 14,013 14,013
532 207 739 71,837
14,545 207 14,752 85,850
$ 18,174 $ 7,308 $ 25,482 $ 470,340
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

Budgeted Annually

Health and County Health Total
Human Motor Board of and Annually
Human Services Vehicle Mental Community Budgeted
Services Levies Gas Tax Retardation Services Funds

REVENUES
Property taxes... e $ $ 119,412 $ $ 86,163 $ 12,054 $ 217,629
Other tax........ . 61 28,797 40 28,898
Licenses and permits.. 985 985
Charges for services... 668 15,640 16,308
Fines and forfeitures... 241 172 413
Investment earnings ... 1,262 80 536 1,878
Other intergovernmental. 273,101 14,660 3,896 78,965 158,946 529,568
Miscellaneous............. 1,414 (21) 823 959 3,175
TOTAL REVENUES 275,183 134,133 34,175 166,071 189,292 798,854
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government. . 17,020 17,020

Judicial............... . 40,235 40,235

Development 3,374 3,374

Social services.... 387,152 160,496 112,145 659,793

Health and safety . 60 126,330 126,390

Public works.............. . 30,004 2,529 32,533
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 387,152 60 30,004 160,496 301,633 879,345
EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF

REVENUES OVER

EXPENDITURES........cooiiiirineeieeeeeeene (111,969) 134,073 4171 5,575 (112,341) (80,491)
OTHER FINANCING

SOURCES(USES)
Operating transfers in..........ccccceovcrenininienenns 105,960 665 219 110,671 217,515
Operating transfers out:

Component unit (18,215) (18,215)

(2,511) (154,005) (2,739) (3,066) (4,711) (167,032)

Capitalized leases 8,520 8,520
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES). 111,969 (172,220) (2,074) (2,847) 105,960 40,788
EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF

REVENUES AND OTHER

FINANCING SOURCES

OVER EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER FINANCING USES...........cc.... (38,147) 2,097 2,728 (6,381) (39,703)
FUND BALANCE AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR......cccccotniiniiirieenins 40,088 29,508 4,902 36,253 110,751
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS IN(OUT) 22 28 50
FUND BALANCE AT

END OF YEAR $ 0 $ 1,941 $ 31,605 $ 7,652 $ 29,900 $ 71,098
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Multi-Year Budgeted

Total
Multi-Year
Community Budgeted 2001
Development Other Funds Totals
$ $ $ $ 217,629
28,898
985
16,308
413
1,878
15,328 25,881 41,209 570,777
18 2,925 2,943 6,118
15,346 28,806 44,152 843,006
17,020
22,281 22,281 62,516
16,152 132 16,284 19,658
7,561 7,561 667,354
3,224 3,224 129,614
123 123 32,656
16,152 33,321 49,473 928,818
(806) (4,515) (5,321) (85,812)
5,028 5,028 222,543
(18,215)
(765) (765) (167,797)
8,520
4,263 4,263 45,051
(806) (252) (1,058) (40,761)
15,351 555 15,906 126,657
(96) (96) (46)

$ 14,545 $ 207 $ 14,752 $ 85,850




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL ANNUALLY BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

REVENUES

Property taxes

Other tax

Licenses and permits....................

Charges for services....

Fines and forfeitures...........ccccccovviiiiinnns

Investment earnings........

Other intergovernmental ................ccccocevennicinnnnn.

Miscellaneous

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current:
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Personnel

Other

Capital

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

JUDICIAL
Personnel

Other

Capital

TOTAL JUDICIAL

DEVELOPMENT
Personnel

Other

Capital

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT ..ottt sa s

SOCIAL SERVICES
Personnel

Other

Capital

TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES

HEALTH AND SAFETY
Personnel

Other

Capital
TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

PUBLIC WORKS
Personnel

Other

Capital

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES .....coiiiiiiccccc e

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES.............ccccuu..

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in ...........cccccccovveiiiinicnenne

Operating transfers out:
Component unit

Other

NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) BEGINNING OF YEAR .......ccccovsiniiminininniccininiinns

RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS IN

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) AT END OF YEAR

Human Services

Revised
Budget

Actual

Variance-
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

2,327

400,788
2,179
405.294

132,014
288,184

1,652
421.850

421.850

(16,556)
67,568

(2,511)
65.057

48,501

(48,495)

668

304,930
1,414
307.012

129,441
244,899

986
375.326

375.326

(68,314)
62,918

(2,511)
60.407
(7,907)
(48,495)

151

$ _ (56,251)

(1,659)

(95,858)
765
(98.282)

2,573
43,285
666
46.524

46.524

(51,758)

(4,650)

(4.650)

(56,408)

151

$  (56,257)
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Health and Human Services Levies

Motor Vehicle Gas Tax

Variance- Variance-
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
121,227 $ 118,874 $ (2,353)
31 61 30 29,169 28,730 (439)
4 4)
278 300 22
3,377 2,928 (449)
13,806 14,660 854 2,833 3,763 930
- S I 308 100 __ (208
135.064 133,595 (1,469) 35,969 35,821 (148)
1,658 48 1,610
1.658 48 1.610
15,546 14,838 708
4,338 2,335 2,003
28,493 12,023 16,470
48.377 29.196 19,181
1.658 48 1.610 48,377 29.196 19,181
133,406 133,547 141 (12,408) 6,625 19,033
641 665 24
(18,215) (18,215)
(114,967) (114,967) (3,544) (2,739) 805
(133.182) (133.182) (2,903) (2.074) 829
224 365 141 (15,311) 4,551 19,862
(136) (136) 26,323 26,323
88 $ 229 $ 141 $ 11,012 30,874 19,862
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ALL ANNUALLY BUDGETED SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

County Board of Mental Retardation

Variance-
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Property taxes $ 86,537 $ 85,798 $ (739)
Other tax 26 40 14
Licenses and permits............c.......
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures............cccocvviiiiniinene.
Investment earnings.......... 120 79 (41)
Other intergovernmental ................cccooiiicininnnns 79,616 79,176 (440)
Miscellaneous 500 823 323
TOTAL REVENUES 166,799 165,916 (883)

EXPENDITURES

Current:

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Personnel
Other
[T o1 OSSO PSSP PR TSYPSUSIPTRRPI

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT

JUDICIAL
Personnel
Other
(72T o 1= OSSO PRSP S TPUPSTUSUPRRP

TOTAL JUDICIAL

DEVELOPMENT
Personnel
Other
(72T o 1= SO O PSPPSR UPTPSUSUPTPRP

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT ...ttt

SOCIAL SERVICES
Personnel 80,129 77,644 2,485
Other 85,466 77,972 7,494
Capital 5,802 3,119 2,683

TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES 171,397 158,735 12,662

HEALTH AND SAFETY
Personnel
Other
CAPITAL. .ttt ettt e s enenen

TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

PUBLIC WORKS
Personnel
Other
CAPITAL. .ttt ettt enenen

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ..ottt 171.397 158.735 12,662

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES.. (4,598) 7,181 11,779
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in ... 2,434 219 (2,215)
Operating transfers out:

Component unit

Other (3,500) (3,066) 434
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES) (1.066) (2.847) (1.781)
EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (5,664) 4,334 9,998
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) BEGINNING OF YEAR ........ooovovvveeeeoeessssssseeeeeeeseeeeoonnnnon 6,944 6,944
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS IN(OUT) ............. 22 22

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT) AT END OF YEAR $ 1,280 $ 11,300 $ 10,020




Health and Community Services 2001 Totals

Variance- Variance-

Revised Favorable Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 12,000 $ 12,015 $ 15 $ 219,764 $ 216,687 $ (3,077)
29,226 28,831 (395)

1,094 985 (109) 1,094 985 (109)
16,446 15,738 (708) 18,777 16,406 (2,371)
185 172 (13) 463 472 9

525 563 38 4,022 3,570 (452)
201,141 151,694 (49,447) 698,184 554,223 (143,961)
3,132 832 (2,300) 6,119 3,169 (2,950)
234.523 181,999 (52,524) 977,649 824,343 (153,306)
10,617 10,612 5 10,617 10,612 5
7,569 5,956 1,613 7,569 5,956 1,613
95 28 67 95 28 67
18.281 16,596 1,685 18,281 16,596 1,685
24,258 23,829 429 24,258 23,829 429
20,504 14,814 5,690 20,504 14,814 5,690
657 352 305 657 352 305
45.419 38,995 6,424 45,419 38,995 6,424
2,022 1,851 171 2,022 1,851 171
3,662 1,488 2,174 3,662 1,488 2,174
__ 7 2 5 7 2 5
5.691 3,341 2,350 5,691 3,341 2,350
425 425 212,568 207,510 5,058
116,919 104,151 12,768 490,569 427,022 63,547
2 1 1 7,456 4,106 3,350
117.346 104,577 12,769 710,593 638,638 71,955
6,873 6,456 417 6,873 6,456 417
123,847 118,514 5,333 125,505 118,562 6,943
326 220 106 326 220 106
131.046 125,190 5,856 132,704 125,238 7.466
311 293 18 15,857 15,131 726
2,614 1,963 651 6,952 4,298 2,654
2 1 1 28,495 12,024 16,471
2.927 2,257 670 51.304 31.453 19.851
320.710 290,956 29,754 963.992 854.261 109,731
(86,187) (108,957) (22,770) 13,657 (29,918) (43,575)
88,033 86,708 (1,325) 158,676 150,510 (8,166)

(18,215) (18,215)
(4,711) (4,711) (129,233) (127,994) 1,239
83,322 81,997 (1,325) 11,228 4,301 (6,927)
(2,865) (26,960) (24,095) 24,885 (25,617) (50,502)
56,932 56,932 41,568 41,568

28 28 201 201

$ 54,067 $ 30,000 $ (24,067) $ 66,453 $ 16,152 $ (50,301)
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS ARE ESTABLISHED TO ACCOUNT
FOR OPERATIONS THAT ARE FINANCED AND OPERATED
IN A MANNER SIMILAR TO BUSINESS IN THE PRIVATE SECTOR.
THE EXPENSES (INCLUDING DEPRECIATION) OF PROVIDING
GOODS AND SERVICES PRIMARILY OR SOLELY
TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC ARE FINANCED OR RECOVERED
PRIMARILY THROUGH USER CHARGES.

Sanitary Engineer

County Airport

Huntington Park Garage

Cuyahoga County Information System

The Sanitary Engineer's primary operating function is
the maintenance of county sewer lines. The office
also enforces compliance of county sanitary
regulations.

The airport provides landing and storage facilities for
commercial flights, private business aircraft and
recreational aircraft for the general public.

The garage provides parking facilities to nearby
County Administration, Courthouse and Justice
Center buildings for the general public.

The system provides computerized information on
criminal records and court cases to communities
within the county.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2001
b
.
(Amounts in 000's)

Sanitary County Huntington

Engineer Airport Park Garage
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and

INVESIMENTS....coiiiieiiee et $ 6,154 $ $ 918
Receivables:

ACCOUNES ..ttt et ae s 483 198

Special nents . 3,285
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts...........c.ccecvrvriiniiinincnnens 3) (130)

Net ReCeivables ... 3,765 68
Due from other funds 3
Due from other governments 131
Inventory of supplies 8
Deferred bond financing cost 38
Fixed assets:

522 5,280

Land improvements .. 592 10,055

Utility plant 44,950

Buildings, structures

and improvements 4,249 2,518 7,841

Furniture, fixtures and equipment. 2,153 218 108

Vehicles ......ooovveeniieiiiiieiee, 2,522 803 107

Less: Accumulated depreciation (29,194) (10,146) (3,258)

Construction in progress 7,983 6
Net Fixed Assets 33,777 8,734 4,798
TOTAL ASSETS $ 43,868 $ 8,810 $ 5,716
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 492 $ 61 $ 77
Due to other funds 200 34 16
Due to other governments 38
Accrued wages and benefits .... 575 71 58
Other liabilities 367
Loans payable . 6,357
Special termination benefits 588
Other debt:

Notes payable 6,105

Bonds payable.... 2,635
TOTAL LIABILITIES 17,357 166 151
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL AND
RETAINED EARNINGS
Contributed Capital........cccceveiriiiiiinienie e 8,203 9,396 925
Retained earnings:

Unreserved(deficit) 18,308 (752) 4,640
TOTAL FUND EQUITY 26,511 8,644 5,565
TOTAL LIABILITIES

AND FUND EQUITY $ 43,868 $ 8,810 $ 5,716
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Cuyahoga County 2001
Information System Totals
$ 1,098 $ 8,170
208 889
3,285
(151) (284)
57 3,890
39 42
313 444
8
38
5,802
10,647
44,950
14,608
749 3,228
3,432
(745) (43,343)
7,989
4 47,313
$__1511 $__59,905
$ 158 $ 788
2 252
38
13 717
367
6,357
31 619
6,105
2,635
204 17,878
18,524
1,307 23,503
1,307 42,027
$ 1,511 $ 59,905
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)
Sanitary County Huntington
Engineer Airport Park Garage

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for SEIVICES........ccvecveririreeeereee e $ 9,014 $ 653 $ 2,543
Other revenue..........cooceeevciiieiiicc e 51 25
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 9,065 678 2,543
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal SEIVICES ........ccceevieeiiieeeecceeeeeeeee e 5,815 523 602
Contractual SerViCes ..........ccocveiieiierieieeeeeeee s 199 23 120
COMMOUAItIES ...t 667 114 31
Depreciation ... s 1,340 420 533
Other EXPENSES ......cvviieeeeiiiee e e e e e 2,549 182 723
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES ..o 10,570 1,262 2,009
OPERATING INCOME(LOSS)......ccoriuieieeieenieiieeeenreene (1,505) (584) 534
NONOPERATING

REVENUES(EXPENSES)
INterest EXPENSE .......oiiiiiiiiiiieee e (388)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets .........ccccceceeneeriicieennen. 23
NET NONOPERATING

EXPENSES ... .ottt 365
INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE

OPERATING TRANSFERS .......ccooiiiieieeeeeeeee (1,870) (584) 534
Operating transfers in..........cccccooiiiiiieeee 158
Operating transfers out:

Debt retirement..........coccoiiiiiii (646)

Other .
Capital contributions ...........ccooeeeiiiiiiiii e 1,859 137 3,597
NET OPERATING TRANSFERS

AND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS ........ccceerieiiereeeiene. 1,859 295 2,951
NET INCOME(LOSS) ...eeiiieieieeiee e (11) (289) 3,485
DEPRECIATION ON FIXED ASSETS

ACQUIRED WITH CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL................. 676 374 483
RETAINED EARNINGS(DEFICIT) AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR......ccciiiieiereene e 17,643 (837) 672
RETAINED EARNINGS(DEFICIT) AT

END OF YEAR.......oorcmimrnrssssrssersssssssssssssss s sssssnsssssenas $ 18,308 $ (752) $ 4,640
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Cuyahoga County 2001
Information System Totals
$ 2,546 $ 14,756
1 77
2,547 14,833
273 7,213
970 1,312
2 814
1 2,294
1,265 4,719
2,511 16,352
36 (1,519)
(388)
23
(365)
36 (1,884)
1,415 1,573
(646)
(50) (50)
5,593
1,365 6,470
1,401 4,586
1,633
L) _ 17,384
$ 1,307 $ 23,503
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)
Sanitary County Huntington
Engineer Airport Park Garage

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash receipts from customers $ 9,339 $ 666 $ 2,543

Other operating cash receipts 51 26

Cash payments to suppliers for

goods and services (3,510) (517) (872)

Cash payments to employees for services (5,723) (514) (581)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES......ccioiiiiiinictneiees e 157 (339) 1,090
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Operating transfers in from other funds .. 158

Operating transfers out to other funds ... (646)

Proceeds from short-term interfund loan 28
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES ....ociiiiiiiiiiiscirceriee e 186 (646)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from notes .... 6,365

Contributed capital........ 239

Proceeds from sale of capital assets ...... . 23

Acquisition and construction of capital assets (4,564) (83)

Principal paid on notes (6,080)

Principal paid on loans (263)

Interest paid on loans ... (179)

Principal paid on bonds . (130)

Interest paid 0N DONAS........cccooiiiiiiiiiii e (165)
NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ....ccoeiiieececece e (4,754) (83)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest received on investments 18
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES ......ccccecevenne 18
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. ..ottt (4,579) (236) 444
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR ......cooiiiiiieeieeeeeee e 10,733 236 474
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR................. $ 6,154 $ 0 $ 918
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Cuyahoga County 2001

Information System Totals
$ 2,461 $ 15,009
1 78
(2,573) (7,472)
(274) (7,092)
(385) 523
1,415 1,573
(50) (696)
28
1,365 905
6,365
239
23
(4,647)
(6,080)
(263)
(179)
(130)
(165)
(4,837)
18
18
980 (3,391)
118 11,561
$ 1,098 $ 8,170

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)
Sanitary County Huntington
Engineer Airport Park Garage

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating iNCOME (IOSS) ........ccveuriririreeere e $ (1,505) $ (584) $ 534

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING
INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY
(USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
DEPrECIAtION.....c.eiiiieeiieeiiesiee e 1,340 420 533

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable-net .... 987 (54)
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds.....
(Increase) decrease in due from other governments.
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable .................. (837) (130) 4
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds ............. 40 2 6
Increase (decrease) in due to other governments ..... (509)
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and benefits ..... 53 7 13
Increase (decrease) in special termination benefits....... 588
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS ....cooiiiiiiiiieineenee et 1,662 245 556
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES......ciiiiiiiiietnet e $ 157 $ 339 $ 1,090

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING,
CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital contributions - fixed assets/special assessments..........
TOTAL NONCASH TRANSACTIONS

1,623 $ 137 $ 3,597
137 $ 3,597

@ o
-
‘o
N
©
3
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Cuyahoga County 2001

Information System Totals
$ 36 $ (1,519)
1 2,294
9 924
(37) (37)
(244) (244)
(136) (1,099)
(27) 21
(509)
73
31 619
—@en 2042
$ 385 $ 523
$ $ 5357
$ 0 $ 5,357

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS ARE ESTABLISHED TO
ACCOUNT FOR THE FINANCING OF GOODS OR SERVICES
PROVIDED BY ONE DEPARTMENT OF THE COUNTY TO
OTHER DEPARTMENTS OF THE COUNTY ON A
COST-REIMBURSEMENT BASIS.

Central Custodial Services

Maintenance Garage

Data Processing Center

Printing, Reproduction and Supplies

Communications

Self-Funded Workers’ Compensation

The Central Custodial Services division is responsible
for all maintenance, cleaning and upkeep of county
buildings and offices. It also bills all rents to county
offices and agencies.

The Maintenance Garage is responsible for the
upkeep of all county owned vehicles and equipment.

The Data Processing Center provides centralized
data processing for the entire county.

The Printing, Reproduction and Supplies division
provides the county with all printing and reproduction
services and central purchasing of supplies.

The Communications division provides all telephone
service in addition to mail and delivery services for the
county.

The Self-Funded Workers’” Compensation fund
provides self-insurance to the County through a
retrospective rating plan with the State of Ohio for
workers’ compensation.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)
Central Data
Custodial Maintenance Processing
Services Garage Center

ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and

INVESTMENES ..o $ 2,003 $ $ 2,640
Accounts receivable.........ccccceviviiiiiiiiiiiiiere e, 18
Due from other funds ........cccccoovviiiiiiieeeieiiiee, 32 134 61
Due from other governments ........ccccccoeeccvvveennnnn. 418
Inventory of SUPPlIES ....ccoeevvevvveceeeeeieeeceeee e, 18
Fixed assets:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment........................ 425 42 21,660

VENICIES ..o 260 4,143

Less: Accumulated depreciation ............ccccee...... (493) (2,890) (16,529)
Net Fixed ASSELS.....cccviiiiiieeeeeeeeee e 192 1.295 5.131
TOTAL ASSETS.....coccimrinmsrnsssn s ssssasssnsssnns $_ 2.645 $_ 1.447 $ 7.850
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable..........cccceveeeieciiee e $ 678 $ 10 $ 1,086
Due to other funds...........cccoooeiiiiiiiiiieeeeees 1,103 630 69
Due to other governments..........ccccoevvvvvveeeeeeeennne.
Accrued wages and benefits............ccccceeieeiiiinnns 2,584 22 806
Capital lease obligations ...........ccccccvvvveveeeiiiinnneen. 269
Special termination benefits ..........ooevvvveevvevevevennnnns 3,014 1,146
TOTAL LIABILITIES......coooieeeeeeee e 7.379 662 3.376
RETAINED EARNINGS

Unreserved(defiCit).......coceveeeieciiieeiee e (4,734) 785 4,474
TOTAL LIABILITIES

AND FUND EQUITY ....cerrrecerrrsmerrssnserssssmenennes $ 2,645 $ 1,447 $ 7,850
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Printing, Self-Funded

Reproduction Workers’ 2001
and Supplies Communications Compensation Totals
$ 3,568 $ $ 48,629 $ 56,840
18

214 282 8,417 9,140

47 465

27 45
2,854 247 9 25,237
4,403

2,348 (94 (6 22,360
506 153 3 —_7.280
$_ 4315 $ 435 $_57.096 $_ 73.788
$ 288 $ 167 $ 10 $ 2,239
17 2,328 4,147
18,590 18,590

31 137 12 3,592

60 108 437

231 318 4,709
627 3.058 18.612 33.714
3,688 (2,623) 38,484 40,074

$ 4315 $ 435 $ 57,096 $ 73,788




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)
Central Data
Custodial Maintenance Processing
Services Garage Center

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services .........uuuuummerevereerevevevenennns $ 42,902 $ 1,327 $ 19,177
Other reVENUE .........cccevvveieeeeieeeee e, 118 17 7
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES................. 43,020 1.344 19,184
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal Services.......ccooocueviieveiiiiieeeeeeeeeenn, 31,452 246 7,153
Contractual services and claims .................... 1,316 3,605
(070 0018 gTe o [1i =T 8,462 340 298
Depreciation...........cuuceeeeeieiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeee e 37 574 1,946
Other EXPENSES.......uuuvueeriiiicreeeeeeaan 6,891 381 6,445
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES. ................. 48.158 1.541 19.447
OPERATING INCOME(LOSS).....ccccvvvveeeeennn. (5,138) (197) (263)
NONOPERATING

REVENUES(EXPENSES)
Interest eXpense..........cccceeeeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees (22)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets .................... (6) (2)
TOTAL NONOPERATING

EXPENSES.......ooooooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e (6) (24)
INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE

OPERATING TRANSFERS. .......cccooecnevinnnnee (5,138) (203) (287)
Operating transfers in.........cccccccoeeeiciiinnennenn. 214
Operating transfers out:

(@1 1= (600)
NET OPERATING TRANSFERS................... (386)
NET INCOME(LOSS).....coveeeeeiiririeeeeeeeeeeinns (5,524) (203) (287)
RETAINED EARNINGS(DEFICIT) AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR .......cvvvvvevevvveeeveeeinnns 790 988 4,761
RETAINED EARNINGS(DEFICIT) AT

END OF YEAR........sceevereeererereresssensnssssenenens $ (4,734) $ 785 $ 4,474
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Printing, Self-Funded
Reproduction Workers’ 2001
and Supplies Communications Compensation Totals
$ 3,288 $ 3,195 $ 12,125 $ 82,014
16 5 263 426
3.304 3.200 12.388 82.440
566 1,251 114 40,782
1,036 17 4,800 10,774
1,688 5 1 10,794
261 21 1 2,840
479 3,453 31 17,680
4.030 4.747 4.947 82.870
(726) (1,547) 7,441 (430)
(5) 9) (36)
()]
(5) (9) (44)
(731) (1,556) 7,441 (474)
214
(600)
(386)
(731) (1,556) 7,441 (860)
4,419 (1,067) 31,043 40,934
$ 3,688 $  (2,623) $ 38,484 $ 40,074
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

. '
(Amounts in 000's)
Central Data
Custodial Maintenance Processing
Services Garage Center
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from customers and others ...........cccccevvvenveiennns $ 118 $ 17 $ 7
Cash receipts from quasi-external
operating transactions ............ccccuecvririinininene e 43,062 1,296 19,278
Cash payments to suppliers for
goods and services (13,517) (716) (10,373)
Cash payments to employees for services (31,349) (242) (7,343)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES....cociiieirieirieiriet e (1,686) 355 1,569
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Operating transfers in from other funds 214
Operating transfers out to other funds ... (600)
Proceeds from short-term interfund loan.
Repayment of short-term interfund loan 218
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPI
FINANCING ACTIVITIES .....ocoiniiiiiinisceneenet s (386) (218)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 12
Acquisition and construction of capital assets .. (59) (149) (1,066)
Principal paid on capital leases (223)
Interest paid on capital leases............ccccocevveiiiiiiiciccics (22)
NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ......cooviiiiiiieineineee (59) 137 (1,311)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. ..ottt (2,131) 258
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR .....ccoooiiiiiiiiciincinietsee e 4,134 2,382
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR............. $ 2,003 $ 0 $ 2,640
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Printing, Self-Funded

Reproduction Workers’ 2001
and Supplies Communications Compensation Totals
$ 16 $ 5 $ 4,349 $ 4512
3,630 3,244 8,463 78,973
(2,891) (3,164) (5,066) (35,727)
(578) (1,236) (115) (40,863)
177 (1,151) 7,631 6,895
214
(600)
1,184 1,184
(218)
1,184 580
12
(1,274)
(34) (24) (281)
__ @4 )} - __ (3%
(38) (33) (1,578)
139 7,631 5,897
3,429 40,998 50,943
$ 3,568 $ 0 $ 48,629 $ 56,840

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

. '
(Amounts in 000's)
Central Data
Custodial Maintenance Processing
Services Garage Center

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING

INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating iNCOME (I0SS) ....c.vvveveriereiiieiriee et ees $ (5,138) $ (197) $ (263)
ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING

INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY

(USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

DEPrECIAtiON.....ceieieiiieieeie et 37 574 1,946

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable-net .... 3)

(Increase) decrease in due from other funds.............. 55 (31) 104

(Increase) decrease in due from other governments. 106

(Increase) decrease in inventory of supplies.............. 2

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable ...... (56) 2 (1,169)

Increase (decrease) in due to other funds ............. 520 4 25

Increase (decrease) in due to other governments .....

Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and benefits ..... (224) 1 (217)

Increase (decrease) in special termination benefits....... 3,014 1,146
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS ....cooiiiiiiiiciiicicieeeeeee e 3.452 552 1.832
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES $  (1,686) $ 355 $ 1,569
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Printing, Self-Funded
Reproduction Workers’ 2001
and Supplies Communications Compensation Totals
$  (726) $  (1,547) $ 7,44 $  (430)
261 21 1 2,840
@)
341 50 (3,638) (3,119)
4,063 4,169
2 4
80 81 2 (1,060)
9 (71) 487
(237) (237)
(21) (3) (1) (465)
231 318 4,709
903 396 190 7.325
$ 177 $  (1,151) $ 7,631 $ 6,895

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AGENCY FUNDS ARE ESTABLISHED TO ACCOUNT
FOR ASSETS RECEIVED AND HELD BY THE
COUNTY ACTING IN THE CAPACITY OF AN AGENT

OR CUSTODIAN.

Payroll Agency Fund To account for payroll taxes and other related payroll
deductions collected for other governmental units or
funds.

Undivided Tax Agency Fund To account for all undivided taxes collected by the

county and their distribution to the proper
beneficiaries.

Other Agency Fund To account for all other monies held by the county as
custodian.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES-ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)
PAYROLL
Balance at
Beginning Balance at
of Year Additions Deductions End of Year
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalents ............ccoceevveeeeeeeeieiinnns $ 10,089 $ 554,195 $ 552,549 $ 11,735
Due from other funds ..........coevveeeriiiiiinnnnnnn. 843 4,895 965 4,773
TOTAL ASSETS......coeceeereeeceeeeeeeeeenncannnns $_ 10.932 $__559.090 $_553.514 $__ 16.508
LIABILITIES
Due to other funds..........coceeeeveeeeeeeceeee e $ $ 96 $ 96 $
Due to other governments... 10,895 97,294 91,743 16,446
Other liabilities..........vvvereeerereeeinnns 37 461,700 461,675 62
TOTAL LIABILITIES.......cooeeeeeeeereeeceeeees $_ 10.932 $_ 559.090 $_553.514 $_ 16.508

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES-ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)

UNDIVIDED TAX

Balance at
Beginning Balance at
of Year Additions Deductions End of Year
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and
investments $ 104,724 $ 2,199,950 $ 2,179,667 $ 125,007
Taxes receivable... 1,377,979 1,401,368 1,377,979 1,401,368
TOTAL ASSETS.....ccceeeeeeeeererereeeresererenes $ 1.482.703 $ 3.601.318 $ 3.557.646 $ 1.526.375
LIABILITIES
Due to other funds........cc.ccoovevuvveeireeeeene $ 271,481 $ 297,102 $ 300,940 $ 267,643
Due to other governments....................... 1,210,596 3,287,371 3,239,851 1,258,116
Other liabilitieS........cooeveeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeen, 626 16,845 16,855 616
TOTAL LIABILITIES........ccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeens $_1.482.703 $ 3.601.318 $_3.557.646 $_1.526.375
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES-ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)
OTHER
Balance at
Beginning Balance at
of Year Additions Deductions End of Year
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and
iNVesStMents..........coevvvvvvveveveeeeeviiennns $ 21,814 $ 73,331 $ 75,125 $ 20,020
Cash and investments-
segregated accounts....................... 37,951 394,324 392,279 39,996
Accrued interest.........ccceeeeeeieeiiennnnnnn. 7,326 4,614 7,326 4,614
Due from other funds ........cccccceeee 2 2
TOTAL ASSETS.....coceeererererererererenens $ 67.093 $_ 472.269 $ 474.732 $ 64.630
LIABILITIES
Due to other funds.............ccoeeveeenen. $ 12,634 $ 121,430 $ 123,541 $ 10,523
Due to other governments................. 11,759 224,751 225,405 11,105
Other liabilities.........cccceeeeevieieennnne 42,700 126,088 125,786 43,002
TOTAL LIABILITIES.......ccceeeeeeeeeeeenn $ 67.093 $ 472.269 $ 474.732 $ 64.630

(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES-ALL AGENCY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)
TOTALS
Balance at
Beginning Balance at
of Year Additions Deductions End of Year
ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash and
investments........cccceeeeeeveevviceee e, $ 136,627 2,827,476 2,807,341 156,762
Cash and investments-
segregated accounts...............cevvuennnnn. 37,951 394,324 392,279 39,996
Taxes receivable..........cccceeeeeeeiiieviieennnn. 1,377,979 1,401,368 1,377,979 1,401,368
Accrued interest.........ccccceeeeeiiiiiiiiiieeeenns 7,326 4,614 7,326 4,614
Due from other funds .........ccccooevevernnnnnn. 845 4,895 967 4,773
TOTAL ASSETS....ccovvvrrrrrmrsrssssssssssssnnns $_1.560.728 4.632.677 4.585.892 1.607.513
LIABILITIES
Due to other funds...........coovvvvvvvvvveeennns $ 284,115 418,628 424,577 278,166
Due to other governments...................... 1,233,250 3,609,416 3,556,999 1,285,667
Other liabilitieS...........uvevererererereeinirnnnennnns 43,363 604,633 604,316 43,680
TOTAL LIABILITIES......ccccceruenennnnnnnnnnns $ 1.560.728 4.632.677 4.585.892 1.607.513
(Continued)
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
ACCOUNT GROUP

THIS ACCOUNT GROUP IS USED TO PRESENT
THE GENERAL FIXED ASSETS OF THE COUNTY
UTILIZED IN ITS GENERAL OPERATIONS,
EXCLUSIVE OF THOSE USED IN THE ENTERPRISE
AND INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS. GENERAL
FIXED ASSETS INCLUDE LAND, LAND IMPROVEMENTS,
BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES AND IMPROVEMENTS, FURNITURE,

FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES OWNED BY THE COUNTY.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

BY SOURCE
DECEMBER 31, 2001
(Amounts in 000's)

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

6= o T SRR $ 33,472

Land iMProVEMENTS .......uuueiiiiiiieeee et e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeans 2,888

Buildings, structures and improvements............oooovuveeieeeiiiieeiiieeeeeeeeien, 444 904

Furniture, fixtures and equIPMEeNt ...........oouveieieiiiiiiiicie e, 19,400

RV =Y 1[0 [ 12,798

Construction iN ProgreSS.......cooeeeeeei e e 62,417
TOTAL GENERAL FIXED ASSETS .....cccvrrrrrnrnrnsnnsssssssssssssssssssssnsnnnns $_575.879
INVESTMENT IN GENERAL

FIXED ASSETS FROM

General fUNA FBVENUES ......cooeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 107,842

Special revenue fund reVENUES ...........ceuvueeiiiiiieeeeeeeee e 94,666

Capital projects:

General obligation bonds.........ccoooeeeiiiii 317,660
Federal and state grantS............uuueeiiiiiieiiieee e, 55,696

[ Lo] =1 (o] o 1< T PO 15
TOTAL INVESTMENT IN GENERAL

FIXED ASSETS.....ccocttrnrnrnrnrssnssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsnnnns $ 575,879
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

DECEMBER 31, 2001
b
.
(Amounts in 000's)
Buildings, Furniture,
Land Structures and  Fixtures and

Function and Activity Land Improvements Improvements Equipment Vehicles Totals
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:

Administration ..........ccccveevieniennenienes $ 2,903 $ 422 $ 78,139 $ 62 $ 19 $ 81,545

Fiscal management .. 965 964 1,929

Records and elections.. 450 200 4,753 2,473 7,876

Supportive services 424 138 3,022 23 3,607
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT ......... 3,777 760 86,879 3,522 19 94,957
JUDICIAL:

Adjudication 10,688 165 106,662 1,411 118,926

Legal services............... 17,721 2,210 19,931

Adult offender management... 1,333 85,391 1,867 13 88,604

Juvenile offender management. 4,290 1,359 16,483 241 22,373

Support enforcement 10 148 158
TOTAL JUDICIAL ...t 16,311 1,524 226,267 5,877 13 249,992
DEVELOPMENT:

ECONOMIC ..o 30 6 36

Community 443 14 457
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT... 443 30 20 493
SOCIAL SERVICES:

Financial assistance 1,521 9 42,545 1,124 45,199

Protective services 106 39 2,736 425 3,306

Support services....... 9,404 556 76,756 4,208 6,618 97,542

Employment and training 337 8,537 227 54 9,155
TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES .......ccocvvviviieene 11,368 604 130,574 5,984 6,672 155,202
HEALTH AND SAFETY:

Mental health .........c..cccoveeeiiiiiecceece 94 379 541 1,014

Emergency assistance . 1,249 258 1,507

Alcohol and drug abuse 125 125

Animal control..........c.c.c...... 356 6 146 508
TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY .........c...... 450 379 1,921 404 3,154
PUBLIC WORKS:

PUDIIC WOTKS.....coeciiiiiciiciicece e 1,123 775 2,076 5,690 9,664
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS .......ccooirirenericsieine 1,123 775 2,076 5,690 9,664
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS ..........cc.c... 62,417 62,417
TOTAL GENERAL

FIXED ASSETS $ 33,472 $ 2,888 $ 507,321 $ 19,400 $ 12,798 $ 575,879
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

(Amounts in 000's)
Balance at
Beginning Balance at

Function and Activity of Year Additions Deductions End of Year
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:

Administration.........cccceeveeiieiiciieieeeee s $ 78,896 $ 2,649 $ $ 81,545

Fiscal management..........ccccceeeeeiiiiiiiniienenns 1,787 142 1,929

Records and elections..........cccoceevvvivvvneenens 7,599 277 7,876

SUPPOMIVE SEIVICES .....vvvvverererererrrerererernrnenns 3,297 310 3,607
TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT ............. 91.579 3.378 94.957
JUDICIAL:

Adjudication..........coooeeeeiii 113,714 5,324 112 118,926

Leqal SErVICES.......cceveveeeeeiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 2,517 17,414 19,931

Adult offender management ........................ 73,599 16,486 1,481 88,604

Juvenile offender management.................... 16,018 10,241 3,886 22,373

Support enforcement .........ccoooevvvviiiieieeeienne. 175 19 36 158
TOTAL JUDICIAL .o, 206.023 49.484 5.515 249.992
DEVELOPMENT:

ECONOMIC......ciiiiiiieiice e 36 36

(07611 0114107 a 11 4720 457 457
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT ..., 493 493
SOCIAL SERVICES:

Financial assistance ...........c.ccccccvvvvvvveeeennns 44,737 465 3 45,199

Protective Services .........ccccceeeeeieiiiivieenns 2,877 429 3,306

SUPPOI SEIVICES....uvverererererererererererererarnrnenns 91,892 5,840 190 97,542

Employment and training..............ooevvveeeeens 617 8,538 9,155
TOTAL SOCIAL SERVICES ..., 140.123 15.272 193 155.202
HEALTH AND SAFETY:

Mental health..........cccooooviiiiiiiiiieee, 1,008 6 1,014

Emergency assistance ........ccccoeeevvviviinieeeens 1,469 38 1,507

Alcohol and drug abuse.........cccccceeeeeveennnnn.. 125 125

Animal control............ceeeeiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee, 493 15 508
TOTAL HEALTH AND SAFETY .................... 3.095 59 3.154
PUBLIC WORKS:

PUDIIC WOIKS ... 9,073 1,040 449 9,664
TOTAL PUBLICWORKS ... 9.073 1.040 449 9.664
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS................ 100,490 24,196 62,269 62,417
TOTAL GENERAL

FIXED ASSETS......coeeeeerereeererereeenenenesenesenees $ 550,876 $ 93,429 $ 68,426 $ 575,879

100



Statistical Section

The information presented in the schedules and tables in this
section is provided to reflect social and economic data, financial trends
and the general fiscal capacity of the County.




COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
STATISTICAL SECTION
STATISTICAL DATA TABLES

THE STATISTICAL SECTION PROVIDES SELECTED
FINANCIAL, ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
WHICH MAY BE USED TO INDICATE TRENDS
FOR COMPARATIVE FISCAL PERIODS.

THE STATISTICAL TABLES INCLUDE INFORMATION
ON GENERAL FUND RATIOS AND TRENDS,
ASSESSMENTS AND TAXES, LONG-TERM DEBT
AND MISCELLANEOUS DATA.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF STATISTICS-GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001

OPERATING RATIOS-GENERAL FUND-GAAP BASIS
FOR 2001

REVENUE DOLLAR BY SOURCE

Where the money came from: %o
a. Property taxes........ccocceviiieeiiiiinennns 6.7
b. Sales, use and other tax................... 46.9
C. State local government fund.............. 12.2
d. Licenses and permits........ccccccveveenes A
e. Charges for services..........cccovcveenen. 17.8
f. Fines and forfeitures.........ccccocveeennes 1.7
g. Investment earnings .........c.ccocceeeunen. 10.2
h. Other intergovernmental.................... 3.0
i Miscellaneous............cccovcveeeeiiieeennns 1.4
Total ...covverrierrrer e 100.0
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EXPENDITURE DOLLAR BY FUNCTION

Where the money was spent: %
a. General government..........ccocceeenee.. 18.1
b. Judicial ....occveeiie 75.6
C. Development........cccccovveeeeiinenennnee. 1.3
d. Social ServiCes .......cocevvueeeeiiieeennns 4.0
e. Health and safety ..........cccoccevenneen. .5
f. Miscellaneous.............ccceeevveeeennnen. 5
Total....ccoirerrer e 100.0
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GENERAL FUND CASH RECEIPTS BY SOURCE AND

COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

CASH DISBURSEMENTS BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

RECEIPTS: 1992 1993 1994
Property taxes ......coo v 16,486 $ 18,121 18,826
Sales AN USE taX......cceivieieieieieieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneees 101,750 104,589 117,698
OthEI X weeiiee e a e e 10 7 19
State local government fund ...........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 25,229 27,190 29,593
Licenses and permitS ........cooccvereireeeinieee e 184 158 155
Charges fOr SEIVICES .......cuuiiiiiiiii e 36,978 39,553 41,745
Fines and forfeitures ...........cccccooovviieiieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeas 3,219 4,006 4,400
Investment @arnings..........ooo i 24,508 23,368 28,833
Other intergovernmental ...........ccccooeiiiiiiiieee e 6,078 10,812 12,200
MiISCEIIANEOUS .......cceeviiieieeeeeeece e 3,563 4,800 3,078
Proceeds from loan.........ccccccoeeeiiiiiiiiee

Proceeds from NOES .....cooveiveevieieeeeeecee e, 39,690 82,117
Operating transfers iN.........cccccoooee e 14,700 1,980 16,553
Residual equity transfers in..........cccccovieeiiiii e

TOTAL RECEIPTS ...ccoeiiiiiiceeceenrressssssese s s e ss s ssmssssssesssssnns 232,705 $ 274,274 355,217
DISBURSEMENTS:

General governMENt .......c.eeeviiiiiee e 35,865 $ 34,124 36,797
JUAICHAL .. 142,162 139,209 143,343
DevelopmeNt........coi i 1,018 1,099 1,120
SOCIAl SEIVICES ....coevveeeieeiieeeeeeeeeeeeeveeeeeeereeeererersrersraraarararaaae 1,728 3,996 3,756
Health and safety ... 5,378 5,342 1,035
Miscellanous ...........ccooeeeeiiiiiiii 2,239 2,608 44 231
Debt retirement ...

Operating transfers out .........ccocveveeiiiii e 51,792 83,105 136,375
Residual equity transfers out............ooooiiiiiii

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS.......cccciieiceeceerreecsnmeceeeeeesnnes 240,182 $ 269,483 366,657

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Financial Reporting Section. Budgetary basis.
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1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
$ 19,065 $ 16,952 $ 16,531 $ 24,094 $ 22,064 $ 19,328 $ 22,571
126,790 130,830 137,113 144,339 151,168 160,664 158,018
14 15 13 16 12 10 13
31,794 33,432 35,559 37,530 39,800 40,922 41,048
146 130 129 130 128 124 104
36,075 42,529 44,684 46,919 47,564 55,070 61,163
5,166 4,731 5,840 5,896 6,075 5,458 6,013
39,584 22,682 23,106 28,157 26,549 26,325 28,750
7,370 7,073 7,531 9,421 8,010 10,257 10,343
1,333 6,864 13,179 2,357 1,890 3,783 5,286
5,000

2,707 20 195 579 10,894 938 6,680
7 68
$ 270,044 $ 270,258 $ 283,880 $ 299,445 $ 314,154 $ 322,879 $ 340,057
$ 38,604 $ 34,224 $ 40,621 $ 40,732 $ 43,118 $ 49,100 $ 50,689
133,474 140,267 159,080 177,836 190,004 199,371 212,289
1,038 941 1,019 4,245 1,659 2,169 2,328
3,793 4,325 3,990 4,080 5,836 9,473 11,167
827 945 880 1,033 796 1,376 1,368
2,922 23,180 5,874 2,656 1,289 978 1,438
56,615 25,449 34,405 78,678 42,162 55,210 54,668

298 245
$ 237,273 $ 229,331 $ 246,167 $ 309,260 $ 284,864 $ 317,922 $ 333,947
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY
SOURCE AND EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION

LAST TEN YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)
1992 1993 1994

REVENUES
Property taxes ......ccccuiieiiiiee et $ 184,459 $ 183,670 $ 185,102
SaleS AN USE tAX.....iiiiieiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeereeeeeeeesereesrsrerere—————.. 101,882 108,060 117,931
(@] (oYY g 7= 24,638 25,313 26,238
State local government fund ..........ccccoovieeiniii i 25,228 27,479 29,739
Licenses and permits ..o 913 985 1,107
Charges fOr SEIVICES ......ocuuiiiiiiiii e 42,572 47,283 49,826
Fines and forfeitures ...........cccccoeeeviiiiiieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeas 3,415 4,276 4,860
INVeStMENt @arniNgS........ceviiiiiieiieee e 28,405 26,767 44,268
Other intergovernmental ...........cccooeiiiiiiiiieee e 264,522 279,435 292,575
MiISCEIIANEOUS .......cceeviieeeeeeeeeecee e 9,365 9,804 9,180
TOTAL REVENUES ... s sese s e nsne s e nenenenens $ 685,399 $ 713,072 $ 760,826
EXPENDITURES
General gOVEIMMENT ......eeviireiieirieeenie et $ 46,060 $ 43,561 $ 54,105
8[| o] = 170,704 159,482 180,528
Development..... ... 7,633 9,446 12,186
SOCIAl SEIVICES ....oeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseererererararararaaaaaaaaaes 312,792 308,615 336,488
Health and safety ..., 63,213 95,698 82,371
PUDIIC WOIKS ... .ot 32,539 39,358 39,180
Miscellanous ............coeoeeeiiiiiiii 2,285 3,054 56,227
Capital OULIAY .....eeeieieiii e 49,667 46,819 71,651
Debt service:

Principal retirement ...........coooiiiiiee e 7,645 12,680 10,620

INtEreSt ..o 12,611 13,793 19,012
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ........ccooieeeevierereierenese s esse s s s nenenenens $ 705,149 $_732,506 $ 862,368

Note: Includes all governmental fund types on a GAAP basis.
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1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001

$ 190,172 $ 199,469 $ 201,941 $ 206,595 $ 231,433 $ 232,684 $ 259,610
127,585 131,551 138,519 146,123 151,304 161,910 157,747
26,562 26,950 27,452 28,346 29,334 29,130 28,920
31,804 33,723 35,791 37,607 39,841 40,967 41,050
1,454 1,352 1,318 1,297 1,199 1,581 1,089
48,861 55,595 59,056 62,241 62,272 72,366 76,238
5,606 5,224 6,416 6,330 6,535 6,311 6,120
26,783 24,771 26,647 34,219 20,583 41,567 37,772
318,497 338,396 356,972 392,280 495,421 626,857 611,693
5,869 13,517 17,069 6.070 8,351 14,014 11,993

$ 783,193 $ 830,548 $ 871,181 $ 921,108 $1,046,273 $1,227,387 $1,232,232
$ 49,704 $ 41,936 $ 50,363 $ 53,826 $ 58,923 $ 65,886 $ 68,563
168,323 179,380 205,085 226,932 245,738 263,619 278,414
11,815 11,801 15,099 37,321 23,155 29,910 23,278
335,864 351,515 380,983 422,274 467,961 587,963 678,881
83,779 87,282 96,225 100,445 102,427 121,977 131,028
28,256 35,625 35,533 35,100 36,800 46,023 58,565
3,130 24,093 5,864 2,522 1,550 1,235 1,493
10,065 11,327 15,339 39,624 38,589 34,032 34,392
11,450 13,320 13,468 14,885 16,251 17,909 19,232
14,818 16.870 14,696 13,693 13,937 12,528 18,539
$ 717,204 $ 773,149 $ 832,655 $ 946,622 $1,005,331 $1,181,082 $1,312,385

107



COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
REAL, UTILITY AND TANGIBLE TAXES

LAST TEN YEARS

Tax Year/

Collection Current Delinquent Total Current
Year Levy Levy Levy Collection
1991/1992 $ 268,521,712 28,330,218 $ 296,851,930 258,619,140
1992/1993 268,786,789 28,349,555 297,136,344 258,841,389
1993/1994 270,428,700 29,171,681 299,600,381 259,797,166
1994/1995 274,774,712 25,601,379 300,376,091 264,518,998
1995/1996 297,638,447 25,611,370 323,249,817 287,496,258
1996/1997 301,687,315 31,450,099 333,137,414 289,324,803
1997/1998 313,161,002 30,893,055 344,054,057 299,707,825
1998/1999 342,827,633 30,486,779 373,314,412 328,339,476
1999/2000 346,727,681 30,840,744 377,568,425 330,024,233
2000/2001 380,845,885 36,977,909 417,823,794 356,858,712

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Budget Commission. Includes all direct and overlapping governments.
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Total

Current Collections As

Levy Delinquent Total A Percent Of Cumulative
Collected Collection Collections Current Levy Delinquency
96.3% $ 7,802,745 $ 266,421,885 99.2% $ 25,879,345
96.3% 7,324,031 266,165,420 99.0% 27,381,660
96.1% 7,770,629 267,567,795 98.9% 24,211,070
96.3% 7,242,257 271,761,255 98.9% 23,173,179
96.6% 7,571,570 295,067,828 99.1% 25,477,278
95.9% 8,003,728 297,328,531 98.6% 28,804,510
95.7% 9,084,528 308,792,353 98.6% 30,524,427
95.8% 12,015,150 340,354,626 99.3% 28,126,723
95.2% 12,083,354 342,107,587 98.7% 35,029,786
93.7% 13,366,910 370,225,622 97.2% 43,663,793
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

ASSESSED AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE

OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

REAL PROPERTY

PERSONAL PROPERTY

Tax Year/ Estimated Estimated
Collection Assessed Actual Assessed Actual

Year Value Value Value Value

1992/1993 $ 16,760,649 $ 47,887,568 $ 2,532,365 $ 10,129,460
1993/1994 16,923,520 48,352,914 2,529,616 10,118,464
1994/1995 18,770,759 53,630,740 2,541,031 10,164,124
1995/1996 18,983,267 54,237,906 2,603,148 10,412,592
1996/1997 19,291,442 55,118,406 2,728,871 10,915,484
1997/1998 20,838,304 59,538,011 2,791,334 11,165,336
1998/1999 21,173,385 60,495,385 2,855,467 11,421,868
1999/2000 21,493,369 61,409,625 2,916,480 11,665,920
2000/2001 24,341,838 69,548,110 3,011,512 12,046,046
2001/2002 24,689,595 70,541,702 3,032,064 12,128,255

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Budget Commission.
(1) Beginning in tax year 1990, percentages for valuing the estimated actual
value of Public Utility properties vary by class, type and age.
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PUBLIC UTILITY

TOTAL

Ratio of
Estimated Estimated Assessed To
Assessed Actual Assessed Actual Estimated
Value Value(1) Value Value Actual Value
$ 1,447,110 2,894,220 20,740,124 60,911,248 34.0%
1,446,154 2,892,306 20,899,290 61,363,684 34.1%
1,468,399 2,936,796 22,780,189 66,731,660 34.1%
1,355,615 2,711,230 22,942,030 67,361,728 34.1%
1,337,936 2,675,872 23,358,249 68,709,762 34.0%
1,323,512 2,647,024 24,953,150 73,350,371 34.0%
1,326,935 2,653,870 25,355,787 74,571,123 34.0%
1,223,332 2,446,664 25,633,181 75,522,209 33.9%
1,218,900 2,437,800 28,572,250 84,031,956 34.0%
977,713 1,955,426 28,699,372 84,625,383 33.9%
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
PROPERTY TAX RATES
ALL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS

LAST TEN YEARS
(Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation)

1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001

CUYAHOGA COUNTY:
General operating........ccccoocveeiiienenenns 1.01 1.04 09 085 0.82 1.12 1.00 087 093 0.86
Debt (bond retirement).........cccccevevvinnene 0.71 068 076 087 090 060 072 085 079 0.86
Mental retardation...............cccoeoiiinns 320 320 320 300 3.00 3.00 300 3.00 39 390
Health and human services .................... 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 3.00 3.00
Health and welfare............c..cccccennnne 440 440 440 440 440 440 310 310 3.10 310
SUB-TOTAL ....oeiiiieiereeeeeee e 12.32 1232 1232 1212 1212 1212 1082 10.82 11.72 11.72
METROPARKS .......ccoviiiiiiieieneeeeee 165 155 155 155 155 155 155 155 155 155
CUYAHOGA COMMUNITY COLLEGE..... 280 280 280 280 280 28 280 280 280 2.80
PORT AUTHORITY ..o 0143 013 013 013 013 0143 013 013 0.13 0.13
TOTAL .. snssnsas 16.80 16.80 16.80 16.60 16.60 16.60 15.30 15.30 16.20 16.20

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Budget Commission-tax year data.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT
TO ASSESSED VALUE AND

NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA

LAST TEN YEARS
Assessed Less:Balance Net Ratio of Net
Tax Value Gross General Debt Service General Bonded Bonded Debt Net Debt
Year Population(1) (Amounts in 000's) Bonded Debt(3) Fund® Debt To Assessed Value Per Capita
1992 1,414,041 $ 20,740,124 $ 147,950,000 $ 3,724,485 $ 144,225,515 0.70% $ 102.00
1993 1,414,041 20,899,290 172,409,636 4,951,629 167,458,007 0.80% 118.43
1994 1,403,239 22,780,189 161,979,636 919,162 161,060,474 0.71% 114.78
1995 1,396,169 22,942,030 186,799,636 1,069,858 185,729,778 0.81% 133.03
1996 1,401,552 23,358,249 174,639,636 659,673 173,979,963 0.74% 124.13
1997 1,386,803 24,953,150 162,384,636 5,502,241 156,882,395 0.63% 113.13
1998 1,380,696 25,355,787 150,324,636 1,658,942 148,665,694 0.59% 107.67
1999 1,371,717 25,633,181 137,774,636 968,193 136,806,443 0.53% 99.73
2000 1,393,978 28,572,250 220,639,636 4,009,551 216,630,085 0.76% 155.40
2001 1,380,421 28,699,372 205,364,636 661,473 204,703,163 0.71% 148.29

(1
(2
(3
(4

Estimates - Various sources. 2000 population figure based on actual United States Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census.
Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Budget Commission-tax year data.

Tax supported debt outstanding December 31.

Balance outstanding December 31, Financial Reporting Section.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

COMPUTATION OF
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

DECEMBER 31, 2001

Total of all County Debt Outstanding

Debt Exempt from Computation:
Sewer Improvement Bonds.......
County Jail Facilities General Obligation Bonds.........................
Gateway Economic Development Bonds..........cccccceeeevinerennnee.
Brownfield Economic Redevelopment Bonds............cccceevieeee.
Shaker Square Redevelopment Bonds............cccoveeriiieneeennnen.

Total Exempt Debt .......ccoooiiinnieeen.

Net Indebtedness(Voted and Unvoted)

$ 2,635,000
32,669,506
106,148,000
14,125,000
2,855,000

Less: Available funds in Debt Service fund

as of December 31, 2001 M.

Total Net Indebtedness Subject
to Direct Debt Limitation........

Assessed Valuation of County(2001 tax year) .........ccccoeeevverevneennnen.

$ 28,699,372,169

Direct Debt Limitation-ORC 133.02 and ORC 133.05
(3% of first $100,000,000 assessed valuation; 1 1/2%
amount in excess of $100,000,000 not in excess of
$300,000,000; 2 1/2% of amount in excess

of $300,000,000)........ccccrveveruene.

Total Net Indebtedness(Voted and Unvoted) ........cccceevceeeriiriniennnnn

DIRECT DEBT MARGIN..........

Unvoted Debt Limitation(1% of County Assessed Valuation)...........

Total Unvoted Net Indebtedness Subject to 1% Debt Limitation......

UNVOTED DEBT MARGIN

(1) GAAP basis.

$ 331,127,831

158,432,506

172,695,325

661,473

172 2

715,984,304
172,033,852

4 452

286,993,722
166,930,000

12 722
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

DECEMBER 31, 2001
Debt
Gross Service Net Percent County
Debt Fund Debt Applicable  Share(3)

County of Cuyahoga(™ ..........ccooorvvcomrrcererce. $ 216,544,636 $ 371,048 $ 216,173,588  100% $ 216.173.588
216,173,588

Total Net Direct Debt .............cooeeiieiiiiieieeeeeees

Cuyahoga County Cities, Villages, Townshipsm ...... 911,645,557 33,092,896 878,552,661 100% 878,552,661
Cuyahoga County School Districts(z) ....................... 569,376,744 105,142,233 464,234,511 100% 464,234,511
Total Net Overlapping Debt ........ccocceiiiiiiiieniieee. 1,342,787,172
Total Net Direct and Overlapping Debit.................. $ 1,558,960,760 $1,558,960,760

(1) 2002 Tax Budgets filed in July, 2001 and certified unencumbered 2002 balances filed in January, 2002 with Cuyahoga County
Budget Commission. Budgetary basis.

(2) Cuyahoga County School Districts file on fiscal year ending June 30, 2001. Budgetary basis.

(3) Percent applicable to the County of Cuyahoga calculated using assessed valuation of County divided by assessed valuation of
taxing district. Assessed valuation of taxing districts furnished by Cuyahoga County Budget Commission.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE
FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL

GENERAL EXPENDITURES
LAST TEN YEARS
Ratio of Tax Ratio of
Supported Debt Self-Supported
Debt Service on Debt Service on General Service to Debt Service
General Tax Self-Supporting Expenditures General To General

Year Supported Debt Debt (in 000'5)(1) Expenditures Expenditures
1992 $ 18,380,831 $ 1,874,745 $ 705,149 2.61% 0.27%
1993 17,750,996 6,382,925 732,506 2.42% 0.87%
1994 18,985,550 487,425 862,368 2.20% 0.06%
1995 18,522,334 7,746,544 717,204 2.58% 1.08%
1996 21,646,664 8,543,700 773,149 2.80% 1.11%
1997 20,911,716 7,251,900 832,655 2.51% 0.87%
1998 20,132,392 8,445,300 946,622 2.13% 0.89%
1999 21,502,862 8,685,224 1,005,331 2.14% 0.86%
2000 22,082,794 8,354,269 1,181,082 1.87% 0.71%
2001 27,093,577 10,677,309 1,312,385 2.06% 0.81%

(1) GAAP basis. Includes all governmental fund types.

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Financial Reporting Section.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
REVENUE BOND COVERAGE - HOSPITAL BONDS

LAST TEN YEARS
(Amounts in 000's)

Net Revenue

Available Debt Service Requirements
Gross Operating for Debt
Year Revenue(!) Expenses(?® Service Principal(®) _Interest Total  Coverage
1992 $ 344,438 $ 302,087 $ 42,351 $ 7,143 $ 7,143 5.93
1993 353,782 328,705 25,077 1,650 7,090 8,740 2.87
1994 329,922 317,136 12,786 1,755 6,981 8,736 1.46
1995 320,124 302,279 17,845 1,870 6,863 8,733 2.04
1996 327,711 308,873 18,838 1,990 6,737 8,727 2.16
1997 367,125 334,816 32,309 2,120 8,805 10,925 2.96
1998 387,220 360,642 26,578 4,982 6,863 11,845 2.24
1999 423,981 407,070 16,911 1,955 8,702 10,657 1.59
2000 448,458 434,191 14,267 3,850 10,861 14,711 .97
2001 476,331 449,970 26,361 4,035 10,664 14,699 1.79

(1) Gross revenue is total operating revenue plus interest income and operating transfers.

(2) Operating expenses is exclusive of depreciation and bond interest expense.

(3) 1997 principal payment exclusive of refunded bonds.

Source: MetroHealth System. GAAP basis.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

PROPERTY VALUES, CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS

LAST TEN YEARS

Assessed Value(1)

Bank Deposits At
December 31 2

Building

Permits Issued(3)

Year (Amounts in 000's) (Amounts in 000's)

1992 $ 20,740,124 $ 19,379,280 21,724
1993 20,899,290 21,009,421 19,795
1994 22,780,189 20,885,453 21,480
1995 22,942,030 22,458,573 23,585
1996 23,358,249 27,068,211 21,700
1997 24,953,150 53,941,971 20,612
1998 25,355,787 58,904,596 24,244
1999 25,633,181 57,816,942 23,428
2000 28,572,250 61,942,764 24,272
2001 28,699,372 63,893,769 22,827

Sources: (1) Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Budget Commission-tax year data for real, personal and public utility

property.

(2) Banks deposits at year-end for banks headquartered in City of Cleveland-Federal Reserve Bank of

Cleveland (Total demand, time and savings deposits). Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland.

(3) Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, Real Estate Assessment Division.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

POPULATION(1) County MSA
TOA0 e 1,217,250 1,319,734
LS 1,389,532 1,632,574
TOB0 e 1,647,895 1,909,483
070 e 1,721,300 2,063,729
L < 1,498,400 1,898,825
900 i 1,412,140 1,831,122
200 e e 1,380,421 1,856,399
AGE DISTRIBUTION(2) 2000
Number Percentage

Under 5 yrs ... 90,996 6.5
5O YIS e 101,372 7.3
10 - 14 YIS e 99,235 7.1
15 - 19 YIS e 89,960 6.5
20 -24 YIS oiiiiiiieeeeee e 77,515 5.6
25 - 34 YIS i, 188,873 13.5
B5-44 YIS 219,449 15.7
45 - 54 YIS oo 187,601 135
55 =B YIS coovieieeeeeeeeeeeeennan. 65,599 4.7
60 - B4 YIS.ooviiiiiiiieeeee e 56,217 4.0
65 — 74 YIS oo 107,327 7.7
75 =84 YIS e 82,469 5.9
85 yrsand over.........ccceeveennes 27,365 2.0

TOTAL ... 1,393,978 100.00
Median age .........ccccoeeriieercnennne 37.3
Males .....oovvveeeeeeieiiieeeeeeeeee, 658,481
Females .....cccceeevvvvvnceeeeeeennnnen. 735,497
DISTRIBUTION OF FAMILIES BY INCOME BRACKET(3)

2000
(Average 3.06 persons)
Number Percentage

$O - 10,000 25,261 71
$10,000 - 14,999 ....coeiiieiiecieeeeee e 15,018 4.2
$15,000 - 24,999 ....cooviiiiiecieeeeee e 38,075 10.7
$25,000 - 34,999 ..., 41,222 115
$35,000 - 49,999 .....coiiiiiieeee e 60,077 16.9
$50,000 - 74,999 ....cooiiiiiieieeee e 78,607 22.1
$75,000 - 99,999.....cciiiiiiiiieeee e 45,341 12.7
$100,000 - 149,999 ......ciiiviiiiiieeee e 32,877 9.2
$150,000 - 199,000.......cccccvmiiiieeeeeereeereeenn 8,824 2.5
Over $200,000 .......eeeeeeeiieiiiieeiee e 10,919 3.1

TOTAL ..o, 356,221 100.00
Median Family Income............. $ 49,559
Per Capita Income .................. $ 22,272

Source: (1) Ohio Department of Development-The Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), as defined by the

Department of Development, includes Cuyahoga, Geauga, Lake and Medina Counties. Population

totals for 2001 are estimates provided by the U.S. Census Bureau.

(2) U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2000.
(8) U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2000
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN YEARS
Employment - Annual Average(1) 1992 1993 1994 1995
Total Civilian Labor Force ...........ccoovvveveveveieieeeeees 678,000 673,900 675,600 676,600
Total Employed™..........coooiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeieeeeee 629,200 627,900 636,300 644,200
Total Unemployed.........coooiiiiiiiiiniiiiiieeeeee e 48,800 46,000 39,300 32,400
Unemployment Rate .....ccceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiiieee 7.2% 6.8% 5.8% 4.8%
Employment By sector(1)
(Amounts in 000's)
Wholesale Professional State
Retail and Related and Local

Manufacturing Trade Services Government

Number % Number % Number % Number %
1992 147.3 20.4 176.6 24.4 210.1 29.0 82.1 11.3
1993 140.9 191 176.4 24.3 219.8 29.9 82.2 111
1994 139.5 18.6 181.0 241 227.3 30.2 83.6 11.1
1995 140.0 18.3 187.7 24.5 236.3 30.8 80.1 10.5
1996 137.1 17.8 188.8 24.5 236.8 30.7 81.1 10.5
1997 136.3 17.3 192.9 24.5 242.8 30.9 84.1 10.7
1998 136.5 17.0 195.1 24.4 252.9 31.6 84.8 10.6
1999 133.3 16.5 195.5 24.2 259.6 32.2 83.3 10.3
2000 128.8 16.0 189.3 23.6 264.4 32.9 83.9 104
2001 121.4 15.3 182.4 23.0 262.3 33.0 88.4 111

Source: (1) Ohio Bureau of Employment Services.

* Difference due to non-county residents employed in county.
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1996 _1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
678,800 676,800 699,200 681,200 691,000 692,600
643,800 637,400 668,500 649,900 659,900 661,700

35,000 39,400 30,700 31,300 31,100 30,900

5.2% 5.8% 4.4% 4.6% 4.5% 4.5%

Finance, Transportation
Insurance, and Public
Real Estate Utilities Other TOTAL*
Number % Number % Number % Number %

53.1 7.3 32.4 4.5 22.4 3.1 724.0 100.0
53.7 7.3 31.8 4.3 30.2 4.0 735.0 100.0
56.7 7.5 33.1 4.4 30.5 41 751.7 100.0
57.6 7.5 33.2 4.3 31.2 41 766.1 100.0
59.8 7.8 33.8 4.4 32.8 4.3 770.2 100.0
62.2 7.9 34.4 4.4 33.4 4.3 786.1 100.0
63.7 7.9 34.9 4.4 32.9 41 800.8 100.0
67.9 8.4 34.7 4.3 33.1 41 807.4 100.0
68.4 8.5 34.8 4.3 34.7 4.3 804.3 100.0
70.3 8.9 35.8 4.5 33.1 4.2 793.7 100.0
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE

DECEMBER 31, 2001

Name of Carrier/ Policy Policy Annual
Type of Coverage Number Period Premium Details of Coverage Liability Limit
Coregis Insurance 651011669 07/01/01 - $257,700 Motor vehicle liability $1,000,000
Company 07/01/02 insurance covering licensed combined single limit
Auto Liability Insurance and unlicensed county per occurrence
vehicles. bodily injury and
property damage.
Auto Physical Automobile physical Actual Cash Value-
Damage Insurance damage coverage for $1,000
certain limited county comprehensive
vehicles. deductible $250,
$500 and $1,000
collision deductible.
FM Gilobal NB369 07/01/01 - $478,428 All risk coverage on county $1,509,367,050
Insurance Company 07/01/02 owned properties, boilers and blanket.
machinery and data processing Replacement cost
equipment. limit $50,000
deductible.
Western Heritage SCP0287812 02/06/01 - $6,195 Liability insurance for $1,000,000
02/06/02 private voting places for the combined single
Board of Elections. limit per occurrence
bodily injury and
property damage
and $2,000,000
aggregate.
Fidelity and CPP0034534-04 07/01/99 - $12,054 Blanket Bond-Form P including $250,000 per person
Deposit Insurance till canceled faithful performance. Covers $500 deductible limit
Company of Maryland all employees except public of coverage per
Blanket Bond officials who require individual person.
bonds, treasurers, and tax
collectors by whatever title known.
Excess Blanket Bond Excess Blanket Bond — Form O $100,000 per loss.
Covers Treasurers’ Department
and Human Services.
Money and Securities Monies and Securities all $400,000 limit Form
departments. C all departments
except Treasurer at
$1,000,000.
Western World NPP717202 01/12/01- $1,932 Liability insurance for $1,000,000
Insurance Company 07/01/01 Home Health and combined single limit
07/01/01- $3,120 Nurses Assistance Training. per occurrence
07/01/02 bodily injury and

Source: Department of Central Services, Risk and Property Management.

property damage
and $1,000,000
aggregate.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
DECEMBER 31, 2001
Assessed % of Total Assessed
Name of Taxpayer Nature of Business Valuation Valuation

Cleveland Electric Electric Utility $ 462,063,650 1.61%
llluminating Company
Ohio Bell Telephone Telephone Utility 221,755,000 0.77%
Company
Ford Motor Company Automotive Manufacturing 132,877,650 0.46%
L T V Steel Corporation Steel Manufacturing 123,261,260 0.43%
City of Cleveland Enterprise Activities 106,960,940 0.37%
ZML-Cleveland Public Square Real Estate Investor 56,305,130 0.20%
Cablevision Cable Television 45,987,090 0.16%
Plain Dealer Publishing Daily News Publishing 42,564,900 0.15%
Company
Cleveland Clinic Foundation Hospital 42,395,980 0.15%
LTV Steel Products LLC Steel Products 40,311,640 0.14%

$ 1,274,483,240 4.44%

These taxpayers were selected based solely upon a review of the 200 taxable parcels of real, personal and public
utility property with the highest assessed valuation. A taxpayer owning many smaller parcels would not be included
in this list even if the aggregate assessed valuation of such parcels exceeded that of one or more taxpayers on the
list.

Source: Cuyahoga County Auditor's Office, IST Division-tax year data.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS

DECEMBER 31, 2001

Date Of INCOIPOTAtION. ... .eeii ittt b e e s b e e e en b e e e snnee e s anneeeean 1810
Twenty-third most populous County in the United States"

Form of Government: Three member elected Board of County Commissioners with legislative and executive powers.
Eight other elected officials with administrative powers.

ArEA-SQUAIE IMIIES ...ttt ettt b et ra e bt b e e bt e a e e bt e e e e nnn e nnne e 459

Number of Political Subdivisions Located in the County

MUNICIPAITIES ... e e et s e e st e e e nne e e s saneeas 57
Lo X =] 1 o 1= PP PURRTN 2
STl aToTo I D 1 (o] TR P U PP PRP 33
SPECIAI DISTIICES ...ttt et r e nn e 13
Total Number of County EMPIOYEES ......cc.eiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee et 10,756

2
Voter Statistics, Election of November, 2001( )

Number of Registered VOIErS ..........oii e 932,335
Number of Voters-Last General EICHON ............oiiiiiiiiiieceeeeeee e 349,663
Percentage of Registered Voters VOtNgG .........cccoociviiiiiiiiiiie e 37.5%

MetroHealth System

Total Patient DayS-2007 ...ttt e et e e e e s s e e e e e e s e nnbeeeeeaeseananeee 289,730
Total Number Of BEAS-2007 .......ccci ittt e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e ea e e e e e eeesanaeeeeeeennees 1,169
Average Percent OcCUPaNCY-2007 ........cocuiiiiieiiieniie ettt se e e sne e 68%

Sanitary Engineer

Miles of Sewer LiNe OPErated ..........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 600

Wastewater Treatment Plants Operated ...........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e e 6

Pump Stations Operated ..........coouieiiiiiie e 43
Airport

HANGAIS ... e e e e e e s 16

F Yo =\ 1 OO PP PP 205

Traffic(Takeoffs and LANTiNgS) ......ccoeiuiiiiiiiiee ittt ee s 65,500

OFfiCE BUIIAINGS. ...ttt ettt b et e b e e bt neeenbeeenane e e 8
Other

Number of Colleges and Universities in COUNtY ..........ccccviiiiiiiiiiiiene e 8

Source: (1) U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census, 2000.
(2) Cuyahoga County Board of Elections.
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COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA, OHIO
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88 East Broad Street
STATE OF OHIO P.O. Box 1140

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

Telephone  614-466-4514
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

FINANCIAL CONDITION

CUYAHOGA COUNTY
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This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
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